
AGENDA and NOTICE

SCHOOL COMMITTEE MEETING

Regular Session Meeting LOCATION

Monday, October 7, 2024 Remote Location

Dial In: 1 301 715 8592 - Webinar ID: 896 2310 5381
URL: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89623105381

AGENDA

7:00 p.m. Open Regular Session - Remote Call

1. Special Matter

a. Capital Planning Workshop, Alicia Mallon, MASC Field Director (Discussion) 60 Mins

2. Public Comment 15 Mins

a. This is an opportunity for members of the community to address the School Committee. At the start of each regularly

scheduled School Committee meeting, individuals will sign in for an opportunity to speak during public comment.

School Committee Policy BEDH allots each speaker three (3) minutes to present their material and must begin their

comments by stating their name and city/town. Public comment is not a discussion, debate, or dialogue between

individuals and the School Committee. It is an individual's opportunity to express an opinion on issues within the School

Committee's authority.

3. Educational and Operational Matters (Report) 20 Mins

a. SEA Report (Drew Kelsey)

b. District Reports

i. Director of Business and Human Resources Report

ii. Assistant Superintendent Report

iii. Superintendent’s Report

4. Business and Policy Matters

a. FY26 Capital Recommendations (Discussion/Action 30 Mins

b. Fee Approval for Unified Games (Discussion/Action) 10 Mins

c. Approval of Grant for Grading for Equity Facilitation (Discussion/Action) 10 Mins

d. Food Service and SED Contracts (Discussion/Action) 30 Mins

e. Liaison Reports (Discussion) 10 Mins

f. Minutes (8/5/24, 8/19/24 and 9/9/24) (Discussion/Action) 5 Mins

5. Adjournment

"This listing of matters is those reasonably anticipated by the Chair which may be discussed at the meeting. Not all items listed may in

fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.”

The next School Committee Meeting is scheduled for Thursday, October 10, 2024

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89623105381


Sudbury Public Schools

School Committee Meeting

Date: October 7, 2024

Agenda Item: 1a

Capital Planning Workshop

Alicia Mallon, MASC Field Director

Recommendation:

Background

Information:

Attachments:

Sudbury Capital Planning October 7

Brookline Capital Plan 2019

Groton Dunstable Capital Plan 2016

NT Budget Book 2024

Action: Report: Discussion: XX



Sudbury School Committee

Capital Planning Workshop

October 7, 2024



What We Will Cover:

❏ MASBO Best Practices

❏ MSBA Best Practices

❏ Key Components of a Long Term 
Strategic Plan

❏ The School Committee’s Role



The Massachusetts Association of School Business Officials (MASBO) 
recommends Districts develop a long-term capital plan that:

❏ Includes a formal preventive maintenance program to maximize and prolong the 
effective use of the district’s capital and major facility assets

❏ Includes a formal preventive maintenance program to ensure that educational and 
program facilities are clean, safe, secure, well-lit, well-maintained, and conducive 
to student learning

❏ Clearly and accurately reflects future capital development and improvement 
needs 

❏ Includes the need for educational and program facilities of adequate size

❏ Is regularly reviewed and revised as needed with input from all appropriate 
stakeholders



The Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) 
Recommended Best Practices

STAFFING:  
In order to effectively maintain the district’s building portfolio, the district should have qualified 
and sufficient staff and staffing policies to maintain and operate its facilities and,

❏ Written job descriptions for custodial and maintenance staff that clearly delineate
duties and responsibilities and minimum qualifications.

❏ Training protocol for newly hired staff including orientation, instructions on operating 
equipment and major building systems and safety protocols.

❏ Data driven performance evaluation system for custodial staff that is used to review
staff performance annually and that is updated regularly to address new goals and account for 
new building systems.

❏ Specialized training for health, safety, code compliance for appropriate staff.

❏ Training in how to improve the energy efficiency, air quality and comfort of district facilities.

❏ Vendor contracts as appropriate.



The Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) 
Recommended Best Practices

WRITTEN MAINTENANCE MANUAL:  
A maintenance manual is a written guide consisting of items such as:

❏ Minimum custodial and routine maintenance standards that govern day to day
operations

❏ The district’s philosophy and approach to maintenance

❏ Standards and benchmarks related for the effect outcomes of good maintenance

❏ Preventive/predictive maintenance plan and schedule

❏ Operating instructions for specialized equipment

❏ Instructions regarding emergencies and protocols regarding safety

❏ Protocols to maintain healthy air quality and building comfort



The Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) 
Recommended Best Practices

A Predictive/Preventative Maintenance Program that includes:
❏ A detailed listing of activities including, but not limited to, items such as roof

inspections, exterior wall inspections, interior flooring and finishes inspections,
repainting, door hardware adjustments, window replacement, as well as more
traditional items such as bearing lubrication and belt replacements on HVAC equipment
and the dates for performance.

A Work Order System that:
❏ Addresses facility problems as they occur or are reported and utilize a

manual or computerized work order system for managing facility problems.

A Building Inspections Plan that:
❏ Includes standardized forms and checklists and a standard condition rating

system that allows inspectors to observe building components logically and record data uniformly.



A long term (5-10 year) capital improvement plan is a systematic approach to addressing
deferred maintenance and the replacement of building components that have reached the end of 
their useful life and. Projections of operating and capital costs should be coordinated with school 
boards, municipal officials and other policymakers’ information in order to anticipate and develop 
budgets that incorporate the upcoming financial needs.

Key components of a capital improvement plan include:

❏ A listing of improvements, the number of years expected for completion and an
estimated cost of each improvement

❏ A ranking by priority, based on the expected remaining life of building systems and/or
educational needs

❏ An assessment of the financial resources required to fund and operate the desired
improvements

❏ Coordination with the municipal officials, a link to the budget, routine review for
implementation and dedicated funding

Source: MSBA

Long-Term Five to Ten-Year Facility Capital Improvement Plan



❏ Review and provide feedback to the district on long term capital goals

❏ Support current and/or recommend facilities reviews and best practices

❏ Consider the budgetary impacts on those goals

❏ Provide, whenever possible, budgetary support for preventative maintenance and long 
term projects

❏ Ensure Committee, District, and Superintendent Goals are aligned with the 
Mission/Vision/Strategic Plan/District Improvement Plan

❏ Ensure your policies are up to date and align/support district goals

❏ Advocate for town support where appropriate

The School Committee’s Role in Capital Planning



Massachusetts Association of School Business Officials (MASBO)
https://www.masbo.org/

The Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA)
https://www.massschoolbuildings.org/

Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE)
https://www.doe.mass.edu/finance/

Sources/Resources:

https://www.masbo.org/home
https://www.massschoolbuildings.org/
https://www.doe.mass.edu/finance/




Massachusetts Association of School Committees
MASC.org

One McKinley Square
Boston, MA 02109

617-523-8454

Alicia (Curtin) Mallon
MASC Field Director/Search Coordinator

AMallon@MASC.org
(978) 729-1117

https://goo.gl/maps/RcV8vu6dtCQSiEN38
https://goo.gl/maps/RcV8vu6dtCQSiEN38


School Committee
Long-Term Capital Plan

September 23, 2019

Three School Plan:
5/4/2+++ Section Schools

w/BEEP



Long Term Capital Plan - Three School Solution

In June 2018, The Select Board, School Committee and Ad Hoc Subcommittee to the 
Advisory Committee decided on a three school solution to expand school capacity and 
address Brookline's overcrowded schools, substandard facilities, and historic enrollment 
growth.
 
They used the body of work generated since 2009 to address Brookline's historic 
enrollment growth, which consisted of
● site selection studies,
● enrollment projections,
● a feasibility study,
● expansion in place efforts that have built 55 classrooms (44 in our buildings/11 

leased), and
● more than 80 public meetings between 2015 and 2018.

 



The Decision from June 2018 Continues

The June 2018 plan remains in place 

●5 Section School = renovating or rebuilding Pierce with MSBA

●4 Section School = a rebuilt and expanded Driscoll School  

●2+++ Section School = Location TBD (formerly Baldwin)
❖ could potentially be Old Lincoln, Newbury or an unidentified 

site



Ongoing Need for Long Term Capital Planning

Planning for and Finding Solutions for:

● Continued overcrowding

● Substandard facilities particularly for our most vulnerable populations

● Need for additional special education (RISE) and English Learner Education (ELE) 
programs

● BEEP - Returning classrooms into K-8 school and adding classrooms to meet demand

● Administrative space that used to be in school buildings and is now temporarily housed 
at Clark Road

● The “expand in place” program that provided 55 classrooms 11 leased and 44 inside 
eight (8) preK-8 schools is “built out” and complete

● School Committee will only plan using properties currently under its control



Three School Plan w/BEEP 

Pierce (5 section), Driscoll (4 section), TBD (2+++ section), and BEEP

1. School Committee will only plan using properties currently under its control.

2. Allows the district to balance current enrollment and accommodate projected student 
growth by adding a net of 37 additional classrooms across the district. 

3. Begins to address the School Committee’s long-term goal to bring BEEP classes back 
into our K-8 schools and eventually terminate leased classroom space.

4. Allows the district to complete minimal student reassignment and simultaneously 
expand spaces to bring early education classes back into the elementary schools, while 
maintaining the Lynch and Baldwin as Early Childhood Centers at either end of Town. 

5. Does not address district administrative space needs or long term solutions for Baker.



        5 Section:  Pierce Elementary School - MSBA

● Pierce School has reached the completion of its lifecycle (Pierce 
Historical built 1899, Expanded in 1974).

● Building Systems and building envelope related elements, including 
ADA accessibility need remediation and updating.

● Originally designed as a 3 section school and it now holds 5 sections. 

● No expansion of core academic spaces, cafeteria, gymnasium, library 
and auditorium means they are inadequate for student body and out 
of date.



Steps Weblink to MSBA page
Average Time 

from now
Approximate Date

Eligibility Period http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/prerequisites 270 days/9 months February 2020

Forming of Project Team http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/team 6-8 months TBD 2020

Feasibility Study http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/feasibility 2 years TBD 2021

Schematic Design http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/schematic 2 years TBD 2021

Funding the Project http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/funding 2 years TBD 2021

Debt Exclusion Override N/A 2 years May 2021

MSBA vote on Project  http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/about/board_leadershi
p/board_meetings

2 years July 1st 2021

Detailed Design http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/design 4 years TBD 2023

Construction http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/construction 4 years April-July 2023

Completing the Project http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/completing 7 years TBD 2026

{http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/}

Pierce:  MSBA Project Timeline

http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/
http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/team
http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/feasibility
http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/schematic
http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/funding
http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/about/board_leadership/board_meetings
http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/about/board_leadership/board_meetings
http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/design
http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/construction
http://www.massschoolbuildings.org/building/completing


4 Section:  Driscoll Elementary School - No MSBA

● Driscoll School has reached the completion of its lifecycle (built 1911).

● Building systems and other building envelope related elements need to be 
replaced.  

● Current building does not meet the needs of a 21st century education.

● Originally designed as a 2 section school. Through additions and conversion 
of classrooms it has now been functioning as a full 3 section school, with one 
grade cohort that has four classes.

● The density of the student population in the Driscoll zone, as well as 
surrounding Coolidge Corner and Runkle School zones, warrant the need for 
a 4 section school.



Driscoll Possible Project Timeline 

● November 2019:  Article 4:  
https://www.brooklinema.gov/DocumentCenter/View/20115/Article-Explanations-2019-STM#page=1

● TBD:  Town Wide Referendum Vote 

● Modifications to the following original timeline will be needed once the project passes. 
Up to 1 year of planning and construction time could have been lost with the delay in 
funding approval.

● Most Aggressive and Optimistic Timeline
❖ Summer 2020: Construction Documents complete
❖ Fall 2020:  Construction commences
❖ Fall 2022 or Winter 2023: Occupancy

Driscoll Building Plans and information is available at: https://www.brookline.k12.ma.us/Page/2353

https://www.brooklinema.gov/DocumentCenter/View/20115/Article-Explanations-2019-STM#page=1
https://www.brookline.k12.ma.us/Page/2353


         Old Lincoln School as 2+++ School

● Old Lincoln School and Baldwin are the only existing school sites controlled by PSB
● Currently serving BHS 9th grade through June 2021 (could be later if BHS is delayed)
● 18 to 20 general education classrooms
● Additional 4 to 6 classrooms for art, music, special education services, and learning supports
● Rooms have been fully renovated for Upper Devotion and for BHS use

Possible Timeline for Old Lincoln as a 2+++ School -- Occupancy September 2021
● January 2020 - Planning begins for  student assignment, decision on how to “grow” school (grade by grade, which grades to 

start)

● Spring 2020 - Principal hiring to begin in September 2020

● Fall 2020 - Classroom configuration determined and staff assignment/hiring plan

● Winter through Spring 2021 - Hire staff

● July 2021 - BHS moves out of OLS

● August 2021 - Building reorganized for elementary school 

● September 2021 - Building opens



         2+++ section School: Site (TBD/when available)

● Need for 37 Classrooms similar to the Baldwin School Design 
{https://www.brookline.k12.ma.us/baldwin-expansion}

● Newbury College is currently being studied for 140,000 square foot school
● Old Lincoln School is the only potential site controlled by PSB

Possible Project Timeline for New Site (Newbury or other TBD):
● July Year 1 after site located: Design Feasibility Phase Begins
● April Year 1: Cost Estimates + Preferred Design Finalized and Shared with Town Boards and Community Members
● May Year 1: Town Meeting Vote on Schematic Design Funding
● July Year 2: Schematic Design Phase Begins 
● March  Year 2: Schematic Design Phase Complete
● May  Year 2: Town Wide Referendum Vote 
● May  Year 2: Town Meeting Vote  
● Spring Year 3: Technical Drawings Complete
● Summer Year 3: Demolition/Construction Commences
● Summer Year 5: Complete Faculty and Staff Occupancy
● Fall Year 5 Complete Student Occupancy

https://www.brookline.k12.ma.us/baldwin-expansion


BEEP

Long-standing goals of the School Committee

● Bring early education classrooms back into our K-8 schools along with Early 
Childhood Centers in order to meet children and community needs. 

● Expanding the number of BEEP classrooms from 21 to 27 has been part of this 
long-term planning.

● Ensure that all future school renovations will include at least 2, if not 3, early 
education classrooms in their building.

● In short term, BEEP classes continue to move out of K-8 buildings to provide relief 
to Driscoll and allow Heath to add a RISE program and potentially a Native 
Language Support (NLSP) Program for ELE students.



BEEP Locations FY 20 - FY 26

● By September 2020, only three BEEP classrooms remain in K-8 schools (1 at Runkle and 2 at 
Coolidge Corner) 

● Lynch - 5 classrooms
● Beacon - 5 classrooms  (leased)
● Clark Road   (leased)

○ 3 classrooms in September 2019 
○ 1 additional in 2020

● Baldwin - 
○ 2 move from Heath in September 2020
○ When Winthrop House moves to the BHS Campus, potentially move 3 classrooms from 

Putterham in September 2021 
● Putterham - 6 classrooms   (leased) 

○ 2 classrooms could move to Baldwin if space is needed at Baker due to anticipated 
growth from Hancock Village 

○ Baker K classrooms would move to Putterham



South Brookline BEEP Center

Baldwin will be used as a South Brookline BEEP Center (while Lynch will serve as a 
North Brookline BEEP Center). 

Timeline:

● Until July 2020 – Brookline School Staff Children’s Center (ground floor) 
- non-renewal of lease June 2020. Notice given in Fall 2018

● September 2020 – BEEP Classroom from Heath, BEEP administrative space 
(ground floor)

● July 2021 – Winthrop House moves to BHS campus

● September 2021 and beyond – BEEP Center adds new classrooms and takes on 
Putterhamp classes as Baker needs to expand



 Baker School Expansion/Renovation - Preliminary

● By 2028 the Baker School will reach its current lifecycle and will require renovation 
(built 1936, addition 1938 and 1953, and renovation/addition in 1997).

● Needs expansion, if enrollment continues to climb or flattens out at a higher level 
than the capacity the district has available. 
○ The holding pattern for Baker has to do with not knowing how quickly the 

Hancock Village units will become occupied by families with school-aged 
children.

● Originally built as a 3-section school. Operating as a 4-section school.
○ Overflow plan for Baker is to move kindergarten classes to BEEP Putterham. 

● School Committee has not discussed the Baker School renovation/expansion beyond 
the above. 



Office/Administrative Space Needs to be identified

The elimination and removal of the 24 Webster Place Lease and the 62 
Harvard Lease (to fund the lease for 2 Clark Road) has resulted in up to 60 
staff without a place to work in September 2020. 

● 42 staff members formerly at 24 Webster Place and 18 staff members at 
the Sperber Education Center require office/desk space by September 
2020.

● To fully solve the administrative workspace issue, PSB needs between 
15,000 and 25,000 square feet of office space. 

● There are no available funds for leases. 



Office/Administrative Space Needs to be identified

Other ideas for Administrative Office Space currently under consideration include:

● Issue lease for office space in Fall 2019 for FY21-FY26 (CIP funding required)

● Bid two-high trailers for placement on Town owned property for permanent site 
(between 15,000 – 25,000 sq. ft.)

○ Purchase two-high trailers and place them on the green space between Town 
Hall and the Public Library over the underground garage (structural engineer 
review needed).

○ Place two-high trailers on pillars/stilts in Kent Street Parking Lot or Webster 
Street Parking area to preserve parking for local area businesses and employees.

○ Place two-high trailers on the green space behind the Brookline Public Health 
Center.



Office/Administrative Space Needs to be identified

● Distribute employees throughout Town

○ Town Hall: doubling up offices or taking conference rooms
○ Oak Street Condos (requires code modifications) - See Notes from Capital 

Improvements Subcommittee Meeting on August 13, 2019 

● Consider building/adding administrative office space as part of the 9th School site

● Town Meeting Warrant Article 5 to consider discarding Oak Street Condos in 
November 2019

○ https://www.brooklinema.gov/DocumentCenter/View/20115/Article-Explanati
ons-2019-STM#page=2

https://www.brooklinema.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Minutes/_08132019-7107
https://www.brooklinema.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Minutes/_08132019-7107
https://www.brooklinema.gov/DocumentCenter/View/20115/Article-Explanations-2019-STM#page=2
https://www.brooklinema.gov/DocumentCenter/View/20115/Article-Explanations-2019-STM#page=2


 

 

Groton Dunstable Regional School 
District: Capital Plan 

 

 

 

FY 2017-2026 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Submitted by: 

Co-Chair Steve Byrne, GDRSD Director of Building and Grounds  
Co-Chair Jared Stanton, GDRSD Director of Business and Finance  
 

Brad Bobzien, Groton Community Member 
Mark Calari, GDRSD Maintenance Department 

Tom Delaney, Groton DPW  
Phil Kendall, Dunstable Community Member 
Michael Knight, Assistant Director of Business and Finance 

Alison Manugian, GDRSD School Committee  
Michael McCaffrey, GDRSD Athletic Director  

Ron Mikol, Dunstable Finance Advisory Committee 
Pete Myerson, GDRSD Principal  
Karen Tuomi, GDRSD Director of Extended Day Programs and District Safety Liaison 

 

  



 ii 

Table of Contents 

Table of Contents ........................................................................................................................... ii 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................... iv 

District Facilities Information ........................................................................................................ v 

Prescott School ..............................................................................................................................v 
Boutwell Early Childhood Center ....................................................................................................v 

Florence Roche Elementary School ................................................................................................vi 
Swallow Union School ..................................................................................................................vii 

Middle School North ...................................................................................................................viii 

Middle School South ...................................................................................................................viii 
High School ...................................................................................................................................ix 

Peter Twomey Youth Center ..........................................................................................................ix 

Funding Sources & Definitions.......................................................................................................xi 

Groton Dunstable Regional Schools FY2017-2026 Capital Plan Comment Sheets ...................... 1 
Project Name:  Replacement of Dump Truck ..............................................................................1 

Project Name:  Replacement of Maintenance Vehicles ...............................................................2 
Project Name:  Replacement of (4) Lawnmowers (2 small and 2 large) ........................................3 

Project Name:  Replacement of PAVE Van ..................................................................................4 

Project Name: Replacement of Phone System and Network Infrastructure .................................5 

Project Name:  Resurfacing of the High School Track ..................................................................6 

Project Name:  HVAC System .....................................................................................................7 
Project Name:  Outside Walkways and Tree Removal .................................................................8 

Project Name:  Repair and Replace Ground Flooring...................................................................9 

Project Name:  HVAC Controls System ..................................................................................... 10 

Project Name:  HVAC System ................................................................................................... 11 

Project Name:  HVAC ............................................................................................................... 12 
Project Name:  Roof Replacement............................................................................................ 13 

Project Name:  Kitchen Equipment Upgrade............................................................................. 14 

Project Name:  Furniture Upgrade ........................................................................................... 15 

Project Name: Second Floor Locker and Floor Replacement ...................................................... 17 

Project Name: Renovation to the Weight/Aerobic Room .......................................................... 18 
Project Name: Renovation to School Building........................................................................... 20 

Project Name: Exterior Painting of the Union Building .............................................................. 21 
Project Name: Replacement of Main Walkway......................................................................... 22 

Project Name: Removal of (2) Oil Tanks and Gas Conversion .................................................... 23 

Project Name: Replacement of Boiler....................................................................................... 24 
Project Name: Restructuring of High School and Middle School Fields ...................................... 25 

Project Name: Replacement of the Union Building Boiler ......................................................... 26 
Project Name:  Roof Replacement............................................................................................ 27 



 iii 

Project Name:  Replacement of the Septic System.................................................................... 28 

Project Name:  Black Box Theater Flooring and Lighting Replacement....................................... 29 
Project Name:  Roadway Repair............................................................................................... 30 

District Wide ................................................................................................................................. 33 

High School ................................................................................................................................... 35 

Middle School ............................................................................................................................... 37 

Middle School South .................................................................................................................... 38 

Middle School North .................................................................................................................... 40 

Florence Roche ............................................................................................................................. 41 

Swallow Union.............................................................................................................................. 43 

Boutwell........................................................................................................................................ 45 

Peter Twomey Youth Center........................................................................................................ 47 

Central Office ................................................................................................................................ 49 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 iv 

Introduction  

 

The Groton-Dunstable Regional School District Capital Planning Committee was 
established in December 2015. The committee was comprised of administrators, 
elected officials, town employees, and community members from both Groton and 

Dunstable. The members were tasked with creating a multi-year capital plan to identify 
and prioritize the district’s expected capital needs, establish project scope and cost, 

detail estimated amounts of funding, and identify potential funding sources.  
 
The decision to create a structured plan for long-term capital spending will allow the 

district to preserve our capital assets and highlight the district’s priorities for the future. 
Prior to FY16, the district made expenditures for capital assets and infrastructure 

without regard to the long-term impact of such projects. In the absence of 
comprehensive information and a structured plan, the district lacked accountability and 
measurability. To preserve district resources, prioritize capital requests, and sustain the 

financial health of the district, the committee created a ten-year plan that will begin in 
FY17. 

 
Drafting the Capital Plan was a comprehensive process which began with creating an 
inventory of assets, identifying needs, establishing priorities, and identifying funding 

mechanisms. Throughout this process, we learned the district has a large inventory of 
aging facilities that are difficult and costly to maintain.  This is an impediment to 

providing the best possible education to our students. By focusing on the needs of the 
district and fostering collaboration amongst stakeholders, the committee created a plan 
that supports the district’s long-term goals and priorities for responsible growth and 

development.  
 

The total cost of the proposed plan is $27,705,235 funded through such mechanisms as 
the general fund, capital debt, revolving funds, and Massachusetts School Building 
Authority reimbursements.  In addition, the committee will apply for grants and 

Community Preservation Committee funds.  This plan will focus on updating existing 
facilities, equipment, and our fields to encompass the district’s overall needs. 

Implementation of this plan will allow us to preserve our assets and infrastructure while 
ensuring the efficient use of public funds. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Public_funds


 v 

District Facilities Information 

Prescott School 

  

The Prescott School was built in 1927 

as a high school for the town of Groton 

and leased for the last decade from the 

town of Groton.  During the last 

decade, the town of Groton has 

committed fiscal resources to maintain 

the historical building. The Prescott School has a new boiler, a new roof, new windows, 

and a newly installed fan for ventilation/air circulation to align to Fire Code 

specifications. The building’s heating system was also converted from oil to gas and the 

electricity was retrofitted to meet Central Office needs.  There are no capital projects for 

Prescott included in this plan.  

 

Boutwell Early Childhood Center  

 

The Boutwell School was built in 

1914 and used as an elementary 

school until the New England 

Business Service took over the 

building in 1980.  The district reclaimed the building in 1995 and converted it to an Early 

Childhood Center, serving children from 3-5 years of age.  From 1996-2005, Boutwell 

housed both Preschool and Kindergarten classrooms for Groton students.  In 2005, 

Prescott Fast Facts 

Gross Floor Space 25,936 

Parcel Acreage 2.81 

Maximum Capacity 220 

Central Office Staff 16 

Parking spaces 40 

Boutwell Fast Facts 

Gross Floor Space 8,208 

Parcel Acreage 2.83 

Maximum Capacity 120 

5/1/16 Enrollment 76 

Parking Spaces 26  



 vi 

Kindergarten classes were moved to both Prescott School and the Florence Roche 

elementary schools.  During FY2003, an air quality issue was discovered because 

carbon monoxide levels were elevated.  The HVAC system was inspected and it was 

determined that the dampers needed to be opened, which fixed the air quality problems.  

As a result, carbon monoxide detectors were installed. 

 
Currently, the Boutwell ECC is in need of a new roof and two rooftop ‘weather-maker’ 

units.  The roof is 21-years old and the current units are 28-years old and have 
surpassed their anticipated life span.  
 

Florence Roche Elementary School 

 

 

 

The Florence Roche Elementary School 

was built in 1951 and is owned and 

leased by the Town of Groton. In 1988, an additional 17,600 square feet was built to 

meet increasing enrollments. The next 15 years saw further increases in enrollment, 

which resulted in the installation of 7 modular units, each 1000 square feet with their 

own self-contained heating and air conditioning units. One unit was added in 1996 and 

another four were added in 1998. In 2001, two additional modular units were added.  

These units should last for 30 years. 

 
The modular units were inspected in February 2008. The result of the inspection 

indicated that the units were structurally sound. Past improvements include roof repairs, 
re-carpeting, staining the exterior every four years, and a heating and air conditioning 
unit replacement in the oldest modular in FY2016.  

 
The main building is heated by two boilers. One provides steam heat and the other is 

forced hot water. There is a 10,000 gallon underground oil tank. In the past there had 
been a problem with “heat control” and the district has replaced uninvent heaters (as 
needed) and each room has a thermostat. 

 
A Massachusetts School Building Authority study was performed in February 2006 and 

stated, at the time, that the main building was in good condition with few areas of 
attention. A decade later, the building has significant capital needs. Florence Roche 
needs a full renovation to include new electrical, plumbing, asbestos abatement, 

Florence Roche Fast Facts 

Gross Floor Space 52,002 

Parcel Acreage 35.62 

Maximum Capacity 400 

5/1/16 Enrollment 519 

Parking Spaces 389 



 vii 

heating, roof, windows, flooring, kitchen, potential build out for central office, and 
removal of modular units. In addition, the steam boiler needs to be replaced. Although 

the windows are in good condition, they are showing signs of stress and wear. Lastly, it 
is important to note that there is asbestos in the crawl space under the flooring of the 

building and is totally self-contained. 
 

 

Swallow Union School 

 
 

The Union Building was built in 1895. Swallow Union Elementary was built in 1962 at 
19,862 square feet.  In 1975 and again in 1995, additions were added, due to increasing 
enrollment. Recent updates to the Union Building include a window replacement in 

2009, when architecturally energy efficient windows were installed. Currently, the 
Swallow Union Elementary plumbing and electrical are in stable condition. Walkways 

around the two buildings are in need of repair and the two underground oil tanks need 
to be replaced.  Also, the Union Building exterior needs to be painted in FY2018.  
Lastly, Swallow Union Elementary needs a roof replacement by FY2026. 

  

Swallow Union Fast Facts 

Gross Floor Space 

Main Building 

70,246 

Gross Floor Space 
Modulars 

7000 

Parcel Acreage 6.08 

Maximum Capacity 420 

5/1/16 Enrollment 275 

Parking Spaces  49 



 viii 

Middle School North 

  

The Middle School North was built in 
1962 and was originally the High School 

for the district.  It was renovated in 2004 
to meet the increasing enrollment of the 

towns.  
 

The North building is heated by three gas powered, forced hot water boilers that are in 

good condition.  The temperature control system for the building is currently functional.  
However, it requires frequent adjustments to keep room temperatures balanced.  The 
system is obsolete and no longer supported by the manufacturer and for this reason a 

full replacement of the system is necessary.  
 

Walkways around the North Building need some attention, as they are lined with trees 
and roots, which are lifting the surrounding walk area and creating safety concerns.  As 
a result, these trees need to be removed.  

 

Middle School South 

The Middle School South was built in 1989.  

Increasing enrollment necessitated the addition in 

1999 and the purchase of 2 modular units in 

2000. The only significant upgrade to the building 

was the replacement of a Gen Flex roof with 

Sarnafil roofing in 2013. Overall, the building and 

the modular units are in good condition. Capital 

improvements include the replacement of ground floor and second floor spaces, 

replacing the student lockers on the second floor, renovating existing kitchen facilities, 

and resurfacing the walkways around the building like the Middle School North. 

 

  

Middle School North Fast Facts 

Gross Floor Space 95,630 

Parcel Acreage 35.62 

Maximum Capacity 685 

5/1/16 Enrollment 415 

Parking Spaces 389 

Middle School South Fast Facts 

Gross Floor Space 92,000 

Parcel Acreage 35.62 

Maximum Capacity 515 

5/1/16 Enrollment 374 

Parking Spaces 389 



 ix 

High School 

 

   

Groton-Dunstable Regional High School 
was built in 2003. Since the high school 

was built, there have not been significant 
upgrades to HVAC, the water filtration 

system, or the athletics fields. The current AC chiller, installed when the building was 

constructed, handles multiple offices, the library, The Black Box Theatre, teacher prep 
rooms and computer rooms.  One of the compressors is burnt out and needs to be 

replaced.  This unit is sized to handle the areas above and runs all of them at once.  It is 
an inefficient system when cooling is only needed in smaller areas. To make the system 
more efficient, the building needs ductless split units.  

 
The high school is served by an on-site well and filtration system.  Upon completion of 

the building construction it took several years of effort to make the water safe for 
consumption. The current water filtration system is no longer manufactured and parts 
are nearly impossible to find.  The two water softeners and the UV light component 

need to be replaced as a result. Replacement of the entire system would ensure that 
the water remains viable for use and would make repairs less likely and more 

economical. 

Peter Twomey Youth Center 

 

The "New Gym" was constructed in 

1977 as a replacement gym while the 

High School gym floor was repaired.  After the High School gym was completed, the 

"New Gym" was used as a storage facility for the district's maintenance department.  In 

High School Fast Facts 

Gross Floor Space 165,000 

Parcel Acreage 42 

Maximum Capacity 970 

5/1/16 Enrollment 842 

Parking Spaces 262 

PTYC Fast Facts 

Gross Floor Space 13,626 

Parcel Acreage N/A 

Maximum Capacity 300 

Current Enrollment N/A 

Parking Spaces 389 

High School Fast Facts 

Gross Floor Space 165,000 

Parcel Acreage 42 

Maximum Capacity 970 

5/1/16 Enrollment 842 

Parking Spaces 262 



 x 

1996, the "New Gym" Renovation Committee was formed to renovate the building as a 

permanent home for the district's Extended Day Program, along with classroom space 

for Community Education. It provided meeting space for outside groups including youth 

athletic leagues. The gym was the largest phase of the renovation which included the 

laying of a wood floor and is available for school and community use. For the last 20 

years, the building has provided the district with rental revenue allowing the programs to 

be self-supporting.   

 

The PTYC HVAC system is currently served by four units.  Two of the units feed the 

gym area for heating only.  The other two feed the main portions of the building.  All four 

units are in need of replacement.  The intent is to provide two heating only systems for 

the gym.  The other two units need to be upgraded to include air conditioning.  This 

would allow removal of the aging and ineffective window ACs currently used during the 

summer months.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 xi 

Funding Sources & Definitions 

 

Capital Budget 

An appropriation or spending plan that uses borrowing or direct outlay for capital or 

fixed asset improvements.  Among other information, a capital budget should identify 

the method of financing each recommended expenditure, i.e., tax levy or rates, and 

identify those items that were not recommended. 

 

Capital Exclusion 

A temporary increase in the tax levy to fund a capital project or make a capital 

acquisition.  Exclusions require two-thirds vote of the selectmen or city council and a 

majority vote in a community-wide referendum.  The exclusion is added to the tax levy 

only during the year in which the project is being funded and may increase the tax levy 

above the levy ceiling. 
 

Capital Funding 

Funding for capital projects as presented in the municipal budget or as a separate 

article to be approved by the municipality. The municipality can choose to make a direct 

cash outlay to cover the cost or borrow for the specific purpose of the capital project. 

The cash outlay can come from existing unrestricted municipal revenue sources or 

capital expenditure exclusions which raise tax revenue pursuant to (M.G.L. c. 59, 

§21C(i½)). A capital exclusion does not involve borrowing over time but raises one time 

funds to cover the capital expense for the project. 

 

If the municipality chooses, a debt exclusion may also be used to fund such projects. A 

debt exclusion raises tax revenue beyond proposition 2 ½ to pay debt services costs of 

borrowing to finance a capital project. The additional tax remains until the underlying 

bond which funded the project is retired. 

 

Capital Plan 

A plan for capital expenditures to be incurred each year over a fixed period of years to 

meet capital needs arising from the long term work program or otherwise.  It sets forth 

each project or other contemplated expenditure in which the school system is to have a 

part and specifies the full resources estimated to be available to finance the projected 

expenditures.   

 

Dunstable Community Preservation Committee (CPC) 

The Town of Dunstable adopted the Community Preservation Act at a Special Town 

Meeting on September 25, 2006.  The nine member committee was to consider projects 

and make recommendations for appropriations which preserve open space, provide 



 xii 

affordable housing, preserve or restore historic property, documents or artifacts, or 

which create recreational opportunities. 

 

Groton Community Preservation Committee (CPC) 

The CPC is responsible for the general oversight of the Groton Community Preservation 

Act (CPA) funds and the selection and recommendation of Groton CPA proposals. The 

CPC created and updates this Community Preservation Plan (CPP) and monitors the 

execution of projects based on town approved proposals.  

 

General Fund 

A fund used to account for all transactions of a school system which are not accounted 

for in another fund.  The general fund is used to account for the ordinary operations of a 

school system which is financed from town assessments, state funds, and other general 

revenues.   

 

Massachusetts Building Authority Reimbursement (MSBA)  

The Massachusetts School Building Authority (“MSBA”) is a quasi-independent 

government authority created to reform the process of funding capital improvement 

projects in the Commonwealth’s public schools. The MSBA strives to work with local 

communities to create affordable, sustainable, and energy efficient schools across 

Massachusetts. 

 

Operating Expenses 

The term is used to describe expenses for general fund purposes. 

 

Revolving Accounts 

Special funds established to dedicate a specific source of revenue from fees and 

charges to pay expenses in rendering the service for which those payments are made.  

The hallmarks of a revolving fund are that expenses cannot be paid until sufficient 

amounts have been received and that once received, money in the fund can be 

expended without further appropriation.  Revolving accounts may carry a positive 

balance from year to year.  

 



 1 

Groton Dunstable Regional Schools FY2017-2026 Capital Plan 

Comment Sheets 

  

Department:   Facilities Department       

  

School:   District Wide 

Project Name:  Replacement of Dump Truck  

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   31 Years and 21 Years    

 

Estimated Life:  8 Years  

 

 

Reason for Need: 

  

An existing 1995 Ford dump truck is used in district for sanding of driveways and 

parking lots.  In addition, the high school property is home to a rebuilt 1985 Chevy dump 

truck.  The facilities department is in need of a new dump truck by FY2018 and the price 

for one is approximately $53,000. A replacement schedule of one truck every eight 

years needs be put in to place and therefore, $60,420 will be needed in FY2026.  These 

items are anticipated to be capital expenses.  

 

     Cost 2018   $53,000 

Cost 2026   $60,420(i) 

   

     Total Cost   $113,420 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

(i) We used a yearly inflation rate of 2.15% which was the average historical inflation 

rate between 2000 and 2015 according to the current Consumer Price Index which is 

published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics. 

 

 

 



 2 

Department:   Facilities Department       

  

School:   District Wide 

Project Name:  Replacement of Maintenance Vehicles 

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Ages:   12 Years, 13 Years, 5 Years, and 3 Years  

 

Estimated Life:  8 Years    

 

Reason for Need: 

The maintenance staff currently has four pickup trucks that are used throughout the 

district.  The trucks were purchased in 2004, 2005, 2011, and 2013.  A replacement 

schedule of one every other year would mean that each is replaced at approximately 

eight years old.  This is a realistic schedule given the use and miles that these trucks 

endure.  These are anticipated to be capital expenses beginning in FY2018.   

   

     Cost 2018   $50,000 

     Cost 2020   $52,000(i) 

     Cost 2022   $54,080(i) 

     Cost 2024   $56,243(i) 

Cost 2026   $58,492(i) 

   

     Total Cost   $270,815 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

(i) We used a yearly inflation rate of 2.15% which was the average historical inflation 

rate between 2000 and 2015 according to the current Consumer Price Index which is 

published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 3 

Department:   Facilities Department        

 

School:   District Wide 

Project Name:  Replacement of (4) Lawnmowers (2 small and 2 large) 

 

New:    Yes    Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Ages:   2 Large (20+ Years)/ 2 Small (1 Year and 2 Year)  

 

Estimated Life:  10+ Years (Large)/6+ (Small)   

 

Reason for Need: 

There are four lawnmowers utilized throughout the district.  Our 2 large lawnmowers are 

currently over 20 years old.  The district recently purchased 2 smaller lawnmowers in 

FY2015 and FY2016.  The two large lawnmowers need to be replaced in FY2018 and 

FY2019 and then need to be on a 10 year replacement plan.  The two smaller 

lawnmowers need to be on a replacement plan every 6 years.  It is important to 

schedule a replacement plan for these lawnmowers because we have experienced that 

the repair costs, the downtime, and the loss of productivity is more expensive than 

replacing the units. We have done some research and the costs for these lawnmowers 

have remained steady and an inflation cost is not necessary.  These are anticipated to 

be capital expenses beginning in FY2018.   

  

     Cost 2018   $25,000 

     Cost 2019   $25,000 

     Cost 2021   $8,000  

     Cost 2022   $8,000 

 

Total Cost   $66,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 4 

Department:   Special Education        

  

School:   District Wide 

Project Name:  Replacement of PAVE Van 

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Ages:   14 Years  Estimated Life: 10 years  

 

Reason for Need:  

The only passenger vehicle currently owned by the district is a 2002 van used for the 

special education PAVE program. This vehicle is used to transport students to various 

work learning opportunities and community experiences in the area.  Having this ability 

in-house has yielded additional flexibility and cost savings over reliance on an outside 

vendor.  The district purchased this van in FY2015 for $13,500 and the district expense 

for gas, repairs, and insurance is $3,000 each year.  Appropriately licensed special 

education staff transport the students at no additional cost to the district. The exterior 

and the interior of the PAVE van must have state safety inspections 3 times per year.   

Although current repair costs have been minimal, the vehicle should be replaced in 

FY2021 and then again every 10 years.  This is anticipated to be a capital expense in 

FY2021. 

 

In the past, the district had 16 in-house vans, 1 car, and 11 drivers for transport of 

special needs students, both in and out of district.  While this had the potential to save 

costs on paper, the reality was that managing a fleet of this magnitude was daunting.  

Additionally, the district was unable to support the needed vehicle repairs and 

maintenance for the aging fleet.  The decision to out-source was made when several of 

the vehicles needed simultaneous replacement and no funds were available. 

 

     Cost 2021   $70,000 

      

     Total Cost   $70,000 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

 



 5 

Department:   Technology          

 

School:   District Wide 

Project Name: Replacement of Phone System and Network 

Infrastructure 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Ages:   Varied  Estimated Life: N/A   

 

Reason for Need:  

Our telephone system is outdated, obsolete, and vulnerable. A strategic goal is to 
identify a replacement communication system. The current system requires expensive 
service to fix failures and difficult-to-find parts. Current leasing options using VoIP, a 

service that uses the Internet to make and receive calls, offers features and applications 
for no capital investment (aside from telephone headsets) or expensive maintenance 

contracts. Our current infrastructure would need improvements to accommodate the 
new features a VoIP system would offer. When District administrators were asked to 
consider the most important hardware technology need in a September 2015 survey, an 

updated phone system was a top priority.  
 

In several locations, specifically at the High School, improved Internet performance to 
support not only VoIP, but access for students and staff, is not only desirable but, in 
time, will become mandatory.  

 
None of the District’s installed WIFI units and much of the wiring and switches are not 

capable of supporting the demands of a new telephone system and the requirements 
placed on the network by students and staff. A goal of this project is to overcome this 
limitation. In July 2017 the cloud-management license expires for the oldest group of 96 

access points, which all are located at the High School. These devices need to be 
replaced in the FY18 budget. In June 2018 the cloud-management license for the 

remaining 175 access points will expire. The devices need to be replaced in the FY19 
budget. During both years, replacements to wiring and switches will occur.  
 

The upgrade will be broken out in to 2 stages, the first one beginning in FY2018 and the 
second stage in FY2019.  This is an anticipated capital expense in both FY2018 and 

FY2019. 
      Cost 2018   $255,000 

     Cost 2019   $255,000 

      

Total Cost   $510,000 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 



 6 

Program:   Athletics      

 

School:   High School 

Project Name:  Resurfacing of the High School Track  

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:  13 Years  Estimated Life:  9 Years  

 

Reason for Need:  

The track at the high school has outlived its life expectancy.  The district has maintained 

the track but it now must be resurfaced before it turns into a potential safety hazard for 

the users.   The track’s spray coating is wearing unevenly and is showing signs of 

damage in some areas.  In addition, the field events areas need repair where they are 

torn and delaminated.  This is anticipated to be a capital debt expense. 

 

     Cost 2019   $150,000 

 

     Total Cost   $150,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 



 7 

Department:   Facilities Department       

  

School:   High School 

Project Name:  HVAC System  

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

  

Current Age:   14 Years   

 

Estimated Life:  20 Years (new one)  

  

Reason for Need:  

The current AC chiller, installed when the building was constructed, handles multiple 

offices, the library, Black Box Theater, teacher prep rooms and computer rooms.  

Because the unit serves all of these areas, it is inefficient when cooling is needed in 

only part of these areas.  One of the compressors is burnt out and has failed.  The 

chiller as a whole is in poor condition and needs replacement.  

 

The proposed FY2017 general fund budget includes the addition of multiple ductless 

split units.  These will be installed to address offices and smaller areas that are 

frequently used in summer months.  Due to dramatically higher efficiency the purchase 

cost of these units will be recouped in a single year of operational savings.  The life of 

the replacement chiller in the existing unit will be extended as it will see less use.  The 

cost to install the ductless units and to replace the failing chiller is approximately 

$50,000.  It is recommended that this project start no later than FY2018 and is an 

anticipated capital expense. 

    

     Cost 2018   $50,000 

   

     Total Cost   $50,000 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 8 

Department:   Facilities 

         

School:   Middle School North (MSN) and South (MSS) 

Project Name:  Outside Walkways and Tree Removal 

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   1988(MSS) 2004 (MSN)  

 

Estimated Life:  20 Years 

  

Reason for Need:  

Walkways around the South building are beginning to show wear and need to be 

replaced by FY2026.  Around the North building, tree roots are lifting nearby walk areas 

creating safety concerns.  These trees should be removed and the sidewalks then 

replaced to address safety concerns.  It is recommended that the district replace the 

walkways around the North building in FY2020 and the walkways around the South 

building in FY2026.  This will be a capital expense beginning in FY2020.  The capital 

planning committee adjusted costs for inflation in FY2026.  

   

     Cost 2020   $25,000 

Cost 2026   $28,403(i) 

   

     Total Cost   $53,403 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

(i) We used a yearly inflation rate of 2.15% which was the average historical inflation 

rate between 2000 and 2015 according to the current Consumer Price Index which is 

published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 9 

Department:   Facilities 

         

School:   Middle School South 

Project Name:  Repair and Replace Ground Flooring 

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   28 Years  Estimated Life:  20+ Years  

 

Reason for Need:  

The flooring in the Middle School South building is in need of replacement in virtually all 

ground floor spaces.  The maintenance staff receives many complaints about the 

moisture that comes up from below floor and about condensation. Due to this moisture, 

mold has been of concern with the first floor vinyl composition tile (VCT).  MASS EPA 

and environmental companies have tested the premises and indicated that no mold 

exists. They strongly recommend replacing the flooring because of the potential for 

mold if the district does not permanently fix these conditions and install moisture 

barriers underneath the new flooring.  

 

The district has been budgeting approximately $14,000 annually in the general fund for 

flooring needs but this project exceeds the patchwork approach we’ve been doing for so 

many years. This work may require the alteration of doors and thresholds and is 

anticipated to cost approximately $50,000.  It is recommended that this project start no 

later than FY2021 and is an anticipated capital expense. 

 

     Cost 2019   $50,000 

      

     Total Cost   $50,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 10 

Department:   Facilities 

         

School:   Middle School North 

Project Name:  HVAC Controls System 

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: No   

 

Current Age:   12 Years  Estimated Life:  20+ Years   

 

Reason for Need: 

The North building employs three gas powered forced hot water boilers for heat.  The 

units work well and are in good condition.  The heating and AC control system for the 

building is currently functional but requires frequent adjustments to keep rooms 

balanced.  The system is obsolete and no longer supported by the manufacturer.  

Therefore, the full system needs to be replaced in stages beginning in FY2019 and is 

anticipated to be a capital expense.   

      

     Cost 2019   $100,000 

     Cost 2020   $100,000 

     Cost 2021   $100,000 

     Cost 2022   $100,000 

      

Total Cost   $400,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 11 

Department:   Facilities 

         

School:   Boutwell 

Project Name:  HVAC System 

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   28 Years  Estimated Life:  20+ Years  

 

Reason for Need:  

The two existing ‘weather-maker’ rooftop units need to be replaced urgently.  They are 

both 28 years old and have surpassed their anticipated life span.  Both are highly 

inefficient gas fired units that run all year.  Cooling is needed in the summer months as 

the building is utilized for mandated programs to meet student needs.  The anticipated 

operational cost savings will likely pay for these units fairly quickly.  The replacement 

costs for both units is approximately $60,000 and it is recommended that this project 

start no later than FY2018.  This is anticipated to be a capital expense.  

  

     Cost 2018   $60,000 

   

     Total Cost   $60,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 12 

Department:   Facilities 

         

School:   PTYC System 

Project Name:  HVAC 

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   18 Years  Estimated Life:  20+ Years  

 

Reason for Need:  

The Peter Twomey Youth Center is a prefabricated steel building and it is served by 

four heating units that were installed in 1998.  Two of the units feed the gym area and 

the other two feed the main portions of the building.  All four units are in need of 

replacement having required constant repairs in recent years.  Three HVAC companies, 

including the original contractor, concede that the units have reached their maximum 

life.  Summer cooling is provided by two aging and ineffective window AC units. 

 

The intent is to provide two heating only systems for the gym.  The other two systems in 

the main building need to be upgraded to include air conditioning since the building 

houses summer programs.  Each of the combined heating and cooling units will cost 

approximately $140,000.  This project will start in FY2017 and funds will come from the 

Extended Day revolving account.  

 

     Cost 2017   $140,000 

   

     Total Cost   $140,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Extended Day Revolving Account 

 



 13 

Department:   Facilities 

         

School:   Boutwell 

Project Name:  Roof Replacement 

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   21 Years  Estimated Life:  30 Years  

 

Reason for Need:  

The roof was replaced in 1995 and will be coming to an end of its useful life at the end 

of this capital plan. It is recommended that we schedule this roof replacement in 

FY2026. Preschool buildings are not eligible for MSBA reimbursement but this may be a 

project that could be funded by the Community Preservation Committee.  If these funds 

are unavailable, then we anticipate it to be a capital debt expense.   

 

Cost 2026   $300,000 

   

     Total Cost   $300,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 14 

Department:   Food Service  

         

School:   Middle School South 

Project Name:  Kitchen Equipment Upgrade 

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   27 Years  Estimated Life:  20 Years   

 

Reason for Need: 

The kitchen equipment in the Middle School South building is in need of an upgrade 

since much of it dates back to 1988.  The building needs 4 new convection ovens, a 

new dishwasher, and a new standalone refrigerator.  In addition, the district needs to 

replace both serving lines with 8 steam table wells and 2 serving line refrigeration units. 

The cost to replace these items will be $50,000 and is anticipated to be a capital 

expense.  

  

     Cost 2018   $50,000 

   

     Total Cost   $50,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding  

 

 

 

     



 15 

Department:   District Wide  

         

School:   All Schools 

Project Name:  Furniture Upgrade 

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   Varies  Estimated Life:  20 Years   

 
Reason for Need: 

Many years of lean budgets have eliminated routine replacement of furniture throughout 
the district.  As the furniture becomes worn there is increased potential for unsanitary 

conditions and detrimental impacts for students. 
 
The furniture at the Boutwell School receives heavy use – tables for example are used 

for project based learning and eating.   
 

The elementary schools have not had any significant general fund furniture replacement 
in the past 15-20 years.  The lunch tables at Swallow Union are approximately 20 years 
old, and difficult to clean and breakdown.  Furniture needs at Florence Roche have 

been filled with hand-me-downs and generous donations from PTA and grant sources. 
 

If the school does not receive MSBA funding for a core project (furniture would be 
covered if selected), the district will need to replace broken and outdated furniture with 
more developmentally appropriate furniture. 

 
At the Middle School much furniture is nearing the end of life spans.  Science tables, 

bookshelves, and other items are falling apart and hence are removed from the 
classrooms.  Lack of appropriate furniture for storage will expose textbooks and 
materials to additional (an unnecessary) wear and tear. 

 
At this juncture, the high school furniture is thirteen years old and has withstood a 

tremendous amount of use, particularly as the enrollment here has nearly doubled.  
From doors and locks to blinds and tables, the everyday use has rendered many things 
in need of repair or replacement.  In addition, classroom use has evolved requiring 

alternative desks/chair set ups. 
 

The capital planning committee recommends a district wide furniture upgrade in 
FY2021, after the Florence Roche MSBA (if selected) project is done.  The surplus 
furniture from Florence Roche can then be used to supplant many of the older furniture 

in the other schools.  Once this is done, $200,000 will be needed for additional furniture 
throughout the district.  This is anticipated to be a capital expense. 

 



 16 

     Cost 2021   $200,000 

   

     Total Cost   $200,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 17 

Department:   Facilities Department  

         

School:   Middle School South 

Project Name: Second Floor Locker and Floor Replacement  

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   20+ Years  Estimated Life:  20+ Years   

 

The lockers on the second floor need to be replaced.  These lockers, which are narrow 

and very small, were not designed to hold the books bags that many students have 

these days.  Consequently, the bags and other items that do not fit in to the lockers 

flood the floors of the hallways causing a safety hazard.  Costs to replace the lockers 

have been included in preliminary general fund budgets, but have been eliminated due 

to budget restraints.  In addition, the flooring on second floor needs to be replaced, 

which should be done when the existing lockers are removed.  These costs are capital 

expenditures.  

  

     Cost 2018   $75,000 

   

     Total Cost   $75,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Fund  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 18 

Department:   Athletics  

         
School:   High School 

Project Name: Renovation to the Weight/Aerobic Room  

 
New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 
Current Age:   13 Years  Estimated Life:  10 Years   

 
With proper planning and funding, teachers will be able to provide a state of the art 

fitness center that enables us to develop physically literate students who have the 
knowledge, skills, and confidence to perform a wide variety of exercises.   

 
Our fitness center has stood the test of time with most of the equipment that is currently 
in the facility being purchased back in 2003.  We have added a few machines (2 rowers, 

2 bikes, 1 full rack of free weights) over the course of the last few years but the price of 
fitness equipment can be daunting.  We have also repaired and/or replaced broken 

components on some of our Nautilus equipment and Aerobic equipment.  The needs of 
the center are not only in equipment repair and replacement but also new flooring.  
Having outdated and damaged equipment remain in use could be a tremendous liability 

to the district and put students and employees at risk. 
 

PE - High school physical education classes service between 450-500 students a year.   
 
Athletics - Hundreds of student-athletes at GD use the fitness center as part of their 

coaches’ pre-season and in-season conditioning programs.  Many student-athletes 
have to be turned away as their coaches and/or teachers cannot always provide 

supervision before and after school hours so they can use the fitness center.   
 
Community Ed - Over the course of the year there are 4-5 Enrichment Fitness Training 

sessions (3 summer, 2 winter, 1 fall) that are offered.  Last year, these sessions 
serviced around 125 students.  
 
Current Needs:   

 

1. Fix equipment that we value keeping - select equipment pads, pins, seated leg 
press machine, and adjustable benches. 

2. Replace equipment that is broken with new equipment.  Both elliptical machines 
and both treadmills need to be replaced. 

3. Replace current flooring for weight room section.  The current flooring is wearing 

down and has become slippery.  New flooring has to be able to be washed 
regularly.  The current flooring can only be vacuumed.  New flooring is essential. 

4. Purchase new fitness equipment to allow for new fitness opportunities - half 
racks, TRX bands with Anchor points, exercise bikes (Spinners or Fan bikes), 
Pullup bars, Yoga Mats, fitness ropes (Battle Ropes), racks for barbells, new 



 19 

attachments for cable machines (lateral pull down straight bar, V-shaped press 
down bar, rope, double grip seated row), and anchors for barbells.    

5. Explore the options with the fitness center layout.  There are two adjacent spaces 
(storage closet, small classroom) that could be considered when thinking about 

adding square footage to the fitness center.  Right now all the cardio equipment 
is being housed in the Aerobics/Yoga room.  There are 10 pieces of equipment 
that are currently in this room.  This takes the space of at least 10 

students.   This impacts class size for Yoga & Aerobics classes.   Another option 
to be considered is to create a direct entrance into the gym so supervision could 

be offered by 1 teacher who has students in the gym and in the fitness center.   
6. Audio/Visual updates - Currently we do not have a sound system of any type in 

the weight room.  A speaker system is recommended in both the weight room 

and the aerobics room.  In addition, a projector should be installed on the ceiling 
of the aerobics room to show fitness videos. 

MA Health Frameworks: Through the study of Physical Activity and Fitness students 

will: 

1) Demonstrate exercises in strength training, cardiovascular activities, and 
flexibility training. 

2) Identify the components of physical fitness and the factors involved in 
planning and evaluating fitness programs for individuals at different stages of 

the life cycle. 
3) Conduct a personally developed physical activity program. 
4) Meet developmentally appropriate health-related fitness benchmarks. 

5) Understand how activity participation patterns are likely to change throughout 
life and identify strategies to deal with those changes, including a plan for life-

long wellness. 

The capital planning committee recommends $75,000 in FY2021 to upgrade these 
rooms.  These costs are anticipated capital expenditures.  

 

     Cost 2021   $75,000 

   

Total Cost   $75,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 20 

Department:   Facilities Department  

         

School:   Florence Roche 

Project Name: Renovation to School Building  

 

New:    No   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   65 Years  Estimated Life:  N/A   

 

Reason for Need: 

The school needs a full renovation including new electrical, heating, plumbing, windows, 

roof, flooring, and a new kitchen.  In addition, the building may need to buildout for the 

central office if the district decides that is the best place to house it.  Also the school 

needs a full asbestos abatement (currently in contained spots) and needs to remove the 

modular units and add that square footage to the building. This will be an MSBA project 

and the projected cost is $20,000,000.  At this time, the committee anticipates the 

districts share to be $11,000,000 or 55% of the project.  The district will submit an 

MSBA statement of interest application in FY2017 and if accepted, the project would not 

start until FY2019 or FY2020.  If the school is not selected for an MSBA project, the 

items listed above still need to be funded regardless.  Costs for this project is 

anticipated to come from capital debt and MSBA funding. 

 

     Cost 2019   $20,000,000 

      

     Total Cost   $20,000,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding/MSBA Funding  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 21 

Department:   Facilities Department  

         

School:   Swallow Union  

Project Name: Exterior Painting of the Union Building  

 

New:    No   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   N/A   Estimated Life:  N/A    

 

Reason for Need: 

The outside of the Union Building needs to be painted.  It was last painted in FY2010 

and the paint is chipping away.  This project should start no later than FY2018 and an 

application will be submitted to the Dunstable Community Preservation Committee to 

see if the funds are available.  If these funds are not available, this will anticipated to be 

a capital expense.   

 

     Cost 2018   $50,000 

   

     Total Cost   $50,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 22 

Department:   Facilities Department  

         

School:   Swallow Union  

Project Name: Replacement of Main Walkway  

 

New:    No   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   N/A   Estimated Life:  N/A   

 

Reason for Need: 

Walkways around the building need to be repaired because they are cracking and we 

are no longer able to keep up with the general maintenance.  Replacement of these 

walkways is expected to begin in FY2018 in conjunction with the replacement of the 

Union Building boiler and the removal of the two gas tanks at Swallow Union. The 

expected costs are $50,000 and an application will be submitted to the Dunstable 

Community Preservation Committee to see if the funds are available.  If these funds are 

not available, it is anticipated that this will be a capital expense.   

 

     Cost 2018   $50,000 

   

     Total Cost   $50,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

 



 23 

Department:   Facilities Department  

 

School:   Swallow Union  

Project Name: Removal of (2) Oil Tanks and Gas Conversion  

 

New:    No   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   28, 29 Years  Estimated Life:  N/A   

 

A 4,000 gallon tank and a 1,000 gallon oil tank need to be removed at Swallow Union.  

Once removed, the heating system needs to be converted to gas heat.  This must be 

done in conjunction with the repair of the Swallow Union walkway.  This project should 

be started in FY2018 and an application will be submitted to the Dunstable Community 

Preservation Committee to see if the funds are available.  If these funds are not 

available, it is anticipated that this will be a capital expense.   

 

     Cost 2018   $50,000 

      

     Total Cost   $50,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

  



 24 

Department:   Facilities Department  

         

School:   Florence Roche  

Project Name: Replacement of Boiler  

 

New:    No   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   21 Years  Estimated Life:  20 Years   

 

Reason for Need: 

The boiler at Florence Roche was installed in 1995 and is in desperate need of 

replacement.  It is cracked and water is leaking in the fire chamber.  Therefore, it needs 

to be replaced before the winter of 2017.  The expected cost of the boiler and its 

installation is $80,000 and is anticipated to be a capital expense. 

 

     Cost 2017   $80,000 

   

     Total Cost   $80,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 25 

Department:   Athletics 

         

School:   High School and Middle School 

Project Name: Restructuring of High School and Middle School Fields 

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: No   

 

Current Age:   N/A   Estimated Life:  N/A   

 

Reason for Need: 

Due to the growing number of sports at the high school, the district is in need of more 

field space to be able to rest the current fields.  Currently, the only time the fields are not 

in use is during the two summer months and it is too hot for the grass to grow.  Putting 

in additional fields at the High School is our only option.  If a turf field is put in 

(equivalent to 2-3 grass fields), we may be able to rest some of the fields but more 

money will be needed in the General Fund to support field maintenance.  New turf fields 

need to be replaced every 12-15 years.  In addition, the Middle School fields have been 

a lower priority since the high school opened in 2003.  The Middle School fields are still 

being used by Middle School students and community activities and therefore need 

more attention.  At this time, $2,000,000 is the estimated cost of these projects and is 

anticipated to be a capital expense.  This project should begin no later than FY2019. 

 

     Cost 2019   $2,000,000 

   

     Total Cost   $2,000,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 26 

Department:   Facilities 

         

School:   Union Building 

Project Name: Replacement of the Union Building Boiler 

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   30 Years  Estimated Life:  20 Years  

 

Reason for Need: 

The Union Building boiler needs to be replaced.  The cost for this project is $80,000 and 

should be done in conjunction with the main walkway replacement and the removal of 

the 2 gas tanks.  This project should begin no later than FY2018 and an application will 

be submitted to the Dunstable Community Preservation Committee to see if the funds 

are available.  If these funds are not available, it is anticipated that this will be a capital 

expense. 

     Cost 2018   $80,000 

   

     Total Cost   $80,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 27 

Department:   Facilities 

         

School:   Swallow Union (Main Building) 

Project Name:  Roof Replacement 

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   21 Years  Estimated Life:  30 Years  

 

Reason for Need:  

The roof was built in 1991 (core roof) and 1995 (addition) and will be coming to an end 

of its useful life at the end of this capital plan. It is recommended that we schedule this 

roof replacement in FY2026. The school would be eligible for MSBA reimbursement of 

roughly 45%.  We anticipate the cost to be $2,000,000.  $900,000 would come from 

MSBA funding and $1,100,000 is anticipated to be a capital expense. 

 

Cost 2026   $2,000,000 

   

     Total Cost   $2,000,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding/MSBA 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 28 

Department:   Facilities 

         

School:   Swallow Union  

Project Name:  Replacement of the Septic System 

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   21 Years  Estimated Life:  N/A  

 

Reason for Need:  

The septic system is currently pumped and maintained every summer. There is a 2500 

gallon grease trap that is also maintained and pumped at the same time.  Both conform 

to Title V requirements.  Enrollment at Swallow Union is down but if the school system 

redistricts or enrollment increases, septic replacement is something that should be 

planned for in advance.  The system is designed for 400 – 450 students and 50 

staff. This expense is anticipated to be a capital cost.   

 

Cost 2026   $150,000 

   

     Total Cost   $150,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

  



 29 

Department:   Facilities Department       

  

School:   High School 

Project Name:  Black Box Theater Flooring and Lighting Replacement  

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   13 Years  Estimated Life: 10 Years 

 

Reason for Need:  

The flooring for the Black Box Theater is showing its age. This specialized wood floor 

cannot be patched as we hoped. The damage is extensive and repair is not cost 

effective. The entire floor will need to be removed. The base requires a skim coat with a 

concrete floor patch. A new theater flooring can be installed over the base. This will be 

the same as the existing material.  The district received quotes for this replacement and 

anticipate these costs to be $40,000.  In addition, the lighting in the theater needs to be 

upgraded and the estimated cost for this is $55,000.  This project should begin in 

FY2021 and is an anticipated capital expense. 

 

     Cost 2021   $95,000  

      

     Total Cost   $95,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 30 

Department:   Facilities Department   

       

School:   High School and Middle School 

Project Name:  Roadway Repair  

 

New:    Yes   Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Age:   13 Years  Estimated Life: 10 Years 

 

Reason for Need:  

The roadways at the Middle School and High School are beginning to show wear.  

General maintenance is done as needed but a complete resurfacing (repaving, 

repainting, and resealing) of the main entryway roadways needs to happen by FY2023.  

We estimate the costs to $200,000 for each location.  This project is an anticipated 

capital expense. 

   

     Cost 2023   $400,000 

   

     Total Cost   $400,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Funding 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 31 

Department:   Curriculum          

 

School:   High School 

 

Project Name: Foreign Language Lab Replacement 

 

New:    Yes    Replacement: Yes   

 

Current Ages:   13 Years   Estimated Life: N/A   

 

 

Reason for Need: 

  

The foreign language lab is currently 13 years old and the accompanying out-of-date 

technology is not meeting the needs of students and staff.  The space is still utilized but 

not to the extent a current, comprehensive system would be incorporated into the 

curriculum.  The current computer and operating system is old; Windows 7 would be 

more efficient.  A recent software glitch during the AP exam required us to void the 

exam and postpone test taking for weeks.   Cost projections for the new software and 

operating system are estimated to be $7,000.  A complete overhaul of the lab would be 

recommended, we estimate these costs to be $65,000.  It is anticipated that this will be 

a capital expense. 

 

     Cost 2019   $65,000 

   

     Total Cost   $65,000 

 

 

Potential Funding Source: Capital Fund 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 32 

Appendix A: Building Capacity 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B: Current State of Buildings and Grounds 



 33 

District Wide 

Environmental Concerns 

 There are no significant environmental issues that have been identified in the district.  
Some of the buildings have asbestos present in floor tiles and in pipe insulation in 
mechanical areas.  Neither of these pose a health risk unless impacted by construction.  
The current district approach is to remediate these in a phased manner in compliance 
with regulations and funded out of the operating budget.  No change of approach is 
recommended.  Areas of concern will also be remediated as appropriate in conjunction 
with larger projects. 

 A 4,000 gallon tank and a 1,000 gallon oil tank need to be removed at Swallow Union.  
Once removed, the heating system needs to be converted to gas heat. These tanks are 
currently safe and present no environmental risk.  This project will start in FY2018. 

Phone System 

 Our legacy telephone system is outdated, obsolete and vulnerable. A strategic goal is to 

identify a replacement communication system. The current system requires expensive 

service to fix failures and difficult to find spare parts. Current leasing options using VoIP 

offer features and applications for no capital investment or expensive maintenance 

contracts. Our current infrastructure would need improvements to accommodate the new 

features a VoIP system will allow. When District administrators were asked to consider 

the most important hardware technology need in a September 2015 survey, an updated 

phone system was brought forward as a top priority. Funding for a district upgrade to 

VoIP would come out of a district telephone line item, not from a technology line item.  

There are multiple phone systems in use around the district.  In general, they are 

antiquated and unreliable.  Teachers, for example, do not have universal voicemail 

access. The district needs to implement a single new system throughout that provides 

uniform modern functionality.  This project will be broken out in to 2 stages, the first one 
beginning in FY2018 and the second stage in FY2019.   

Interior Painting 

 The current practice district wide is to tackle interior painting projects as needs arise and 
staff is available.  If weather allows for it, general fund remaining balances in the snow 
removal accounts are applied here.  While this approach is working, there may be needs 
in the future for a more comprehensive plan that utilizes outside vendors or additional 
salary for district personnel. 

Flooring 

 In general, flooring in individual rooms and small areas is replaced as needed on a case 
by case basis.  The operating budget generally includes about $10,000 per year 
dedicated to this need.  Similarly to the interior painting, this approach is working, but a 
more significant investment may be needed in the future. 

Furniture Needs 

 Because the district operating budget in recent years has been repeatedly reduced, 
replacement of furniture has been impossible.  Throughout the district staff requested 
the following items as part of the capital planning process.  Typically, these items do not 
rise to the level of a capital request.  In this case, the accumulated needs may be eligible 
if addressed in a district wide fashion.   

 



 34 

Building Identified needs Specific location 

High School Window blinds 
2 Long tables (24 x 60) 
Teacher Chair 
Front Common 
Library 
Teachers' room 

Rooms 210, 215, 229, L23 & LC127 
Room LC127 
Room 220 

Middle 
School 
 

Round cafeteria tables 
Studio stools 
 
Magnetic dry erase 
board 
Bookshelves (7) 
 
Four drawer file cabinet 
95 flat desks 
95 student chairs 
Portable white board 
Long table (24 x 60) 
200 Chair slippers 
Science lab tables (23) 
 
Lockers (to match 
downstairs) 

South cafeteria 
South - 32 stools Art Room (242/243) 
North - 32 stools Art Room 
South room 242/243 (Art) 
North - Rooms 57, 118, 126, 156 
South - Room 250 
North - Room 124 
South - Rooms 217, 214, 83 
South - Rooms 91, 214, 217 
South - Room 214 
South - Room 214 
North - Rooms 204, 57 
North - Rooms 201 (7), 205 (2), 204 (6), 61 (1), 162 (3) 
South - Rooms 212 (1), 224 (3) 
Second floor  (in-house installation) 

Florence 
Roche 

10 Standing Desks  
1 desk chair  
24 stools  
200 student chairs  
Whiteboards 
Cork boards  
10 bookshelves  
50 desks  

 
Main Office 
Room 156 
Classrooms 
Classrooms 
Classrooms & Hallways 
Classroom libraries 
Classrooms 

Swallow 
Union 

15 Stand up Desks 
7 Bookcases 
1 Bed  
5 Teacher Desk Chairs 
24 student desks 
5 round tables 
White board 
13 Bench lunch tables 
250 folding chairs & 
rack 
10’ plastic tables (8) 

Classrooms 
Classrooms 
Nurses’ office 
Classrooms 
Classrooms 
 
Classrooms 
Cafeteria 
 

Central 
Office 

Desk chairs  

 



 35 

High School 

Groton-Dunstable Regional High School was built in 2003 and is owned by the school district. 
As of this writing, the building is 13 years old and has had little work needed during its time.  
This is anticipated to change in the coming decade as systems need additional maintenance 
and equipment reaches the end of anticipated useful life spans. 
 
The high School is located on a 179 acre parcel; 14 acres are occupied by the facility, parking 
and roads. As of the time of construction there were 20 acres of playing fields, 73.5 acres are 
reserved for conservation and 19.4 acres reserved for a new elementary school. The remaining 
land is unsuitable for development.  
 
The building is 165,000 sq. ft. The high School has 42 classrooms and 12 specialty rooms for a 
core capacity of 970 students.   The maximum number of students a classroom can hold 
comfortably is 25 and 30 is the maximum.  This facility is handicapped accessible. 
 
 
Roof 

 The roof is a rubber membrane system dating to original building construction and is in 
good repair. 

Windows & Doors 

 Currently, approximately 64 window have failed and are beyond the warranty period.  
The intent is to purchase replacement units out of operating budget funds and replace 
them with in-house labor. 

Walkways 

 Existing walkway at the high school are in good condition and no needs have been 
identified. 

Parking lots/Driveways 

 A revolving account has been established at the high school and is funded out of student 
parking fees.  The current driveway and parking lots are in adequate condition.  Upkeep 
and patching can likely be funded out of the revolving account.  Ultimately, larger 
replacement (anticipated more than 10 years from now) will need capital funding. 

Fields 

 The fields at the high school are frequently mentioned as a concern of students and 
parents, in addition to district staff.  When the high school was built, and the grounds 
completed, the district did not offer lacrosse or football.  The addition of these options, 
and general increased participation, has yielded an untenable situation.  The fields are 
not allowed to rest due to demand from teams for matches and practice.  There is 
currently no use of the high school fields by youth or community groups as the field 
quality would be further degraded.  The existing over-use of fields creates safety 
concerns for GD students and visiting athletes. 

 The existing track needs to be resurfaced and re-lined.  The cost of this project is 
expected to be about $150,000.  The logistics of this work, in conjunction with possible 
renovation of the field within the center, need to be determined.  The current 
juxtaposition of the center field and track means that they can not be used concurrently.  
Additionally, installations needed for Track and Field events impact use of the field for 
other sports. 

Electrical 



 36 

 Electricity is supplied by Groton Electric Light Department. 

 
HVAC 

 Current AC chiller, installed when the building was constructed, handles multiple offices, 
library, Black Box Theater, teacher prep room and computer rooms.  One of the 
compressors is burnt out and needs to be replaced.  The chiller as a whole is in poor 
condition and needs replacement. Because this unit is sized to handle the areas above 
and runs in all of them at once, it is an inefficient system when cooling is only needed in 
smaller areas. 

 The proposed FY17 budget includes addition of ductless split units.  These will be 
installed to address offices and smaller areas that are frequently used in summer 
months.  In addition to paying for themselves over a single year due to increased 
efficiency, the life of the chiller will be extended as it will see less use.  The cost to install 
the ductless units and to replace the failing chiller is anticipated to be approximately 
$50,000. 

 
Plumbing 

 No known issues have been identified. 

 
Security 

 The current system has more than 50 cameras and provides good coverage of interior 
and exterior areas. 

Water  

 The high school is served by a well on-site and filtration system.  Upon completion of the 

building construction it took several years of effort to make the water safe for 

consumption. The current water filtration system is no longer manufactured and parts 

are nearly impossible to find and must be repaired during the summer of FY2017.  The 

two water softeners and the UV light component need to be replaced currently and the 

cost is expected to be about $20,000 which will come out of the FY2016 general fund 

budget.  The entire system needs to be replaced in the summer of FY2017 and would 

ensure that the water remains viable for use and would make repairs less likely and 

more economical.  The cost to replace the entire system is anticipated to $50,000 and 

will come out of the FY2017 general fund budget.  Additional research is needed to 

understand the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) regulations and impacts 
of replacement. 

Sewer 

 The building is serviced by the Town of Groton municipal system with ultimate disposal 
at the Pepperell wastewater facility.  The allotted capacity exceeds actual current usage, 
but is needed to allow for design flows should future changes be necessary.   

Gas 

 Currently, the HVAC systems and kitchen equipment are gas fired.  A backup generator, 

used with Groton Electric’s SHED program, is also gas powered.  This generator will 

likely need replacement during the coming years – replacement options through the 

Town of Groton should be explored since the HS serves as an emergency facility. 



 37 

Participation in the SHED program helps GELD reduce peak loading and keep rates 
down.   

Weight Room 

 Our fitness center has stood the test of time with most of the equipment that is currently 
in the facility being purchased back in 2003.  We have added a few machines (2 rowers, 
2 bikes, 1 full rack) over the course of the last few years but the price of fitness 
equipment can be daunting.  We have also repaired and/or replaced broken components 
on some of our Nautilus equipment and Aerobic equipment.  The needs of the center are 
not only in equipment repair but the area needs new flooring.   

 PE - High school physical education classes service between 450-500 students a year.   

 Hundreds of student-athletes at GD use the fitness center as part of their coaches’ pre-
season and in-season conditioning programs.  Many student-athletes have to be turned 
away as their coaches and/or teachers cannot always provide supervision before and 
after school hours so they can use the fitness center.   

 Community Ed - Over the course of the year there are 4-5 Enrichment Fitness Training 
sessions (3 summer, 2 winter, 1 fall) that are offered.  Last year, these sessions serviced 
approximately 125 students.  

 GD Staff - The fitness center is used by staff regularly 

Kitchen/Cafeteria 

 The kitchen and cafeteria area are in good condition.  A new hot water booster was 
installed recently. 

Asbestos/Lead/UST Removal  

 There are no known environmental concerns at the high school.  This is largely due to 
the relatively recent construction of the building and development of the grounds.   

 

Middle School 

The current Middle School facility is comprised of two separate, but similar sized structures 
located on approximately 36 acres. The district’s original Middle School is referred to as the 
South building and the renovated, former High School building is referred to as the North 
building. Both buildings contain essential core components that allow each building to be utilized 
in a stand-alone configuration if needed. Together the two buildings currently house grades 5 
through 8 and have a combined core capacity of 1,200 students. 
 
Increasing enrollment over the years necessitated the construction of an 11,000 square foot 
addition in 1999 and the purchase of 2 modular additions in 2000.  Massachusetts School 
Building Authority (MSBA) participation in the 2004 Middle School renovation project prohibits 
use of these modular spaces for regular classroom use. 
 
Walkways 

 A covered area to facilitate student and faculty transit between buildings is desired for 
the building complex. A tunnel structure was originally planned for during the renovation 
of the North building, but was not constructed due to budget constraints. A simple 
canopy type covering has been discussed, but the requirement for keeping the driveway 
between buildings accessible to fire apparatus has challenged the proposed solutions.  
Walkways around the South Building are beginning to show wear.  Replacement should 
be included for the end of the coming 10 year window.  Walkway around the North 



 38 

Building include openings with trees.  The trees are healthy and growing such that their 
roots are lifting the surrounding walk area and creating safety concerns.  In all likelihood, 
these trees should be removed and not replaced. 

 
Parking lots/Driveways 

 The parking areas for the Middle School complex are sufficient for current demand.  
They are in good condition in general.  The area behind the North building, adjacent to 
the backstop area, needs some type of guardrail or fence.  Current concern is that a 
vehicle could easily go over the edge of the steep hill.  This area is used for snow 
removal, so the proposed solution needs to withstand plow contact and allow for snow 
removal over the hill.   

 The driveways at the Middle School complex are also generally in good condition.  The 
one exception to this is the driveway area between the South Building and Florence 
Roche.  In addition to being a driving concern this driveway has heavy pedestrian use 
and safety is of concern. 

Fields 

 The fields at this complex are not heavily used by the schools beyond gym class and 
some sports practices.  While technically behind Florence Roche and owned by the 
Town of Groton, the Middle School Track is in poor condition.  A CPC application is 
anticipated for funding to resurface the track. 

Lighting 

 The exterior lighting at the Middle School is in need of minor improvements.  As 
mentioned under the Peter Twomey Youth Center, additional lights are needed on the 
rear of the North Building for winter illumination.  It has been noted by multiple 
individuals that the lighting isn’t bright at the Middle School.  This is believed to be due to 
older fixtures with hazy (due to age) covers.  The lack of lighting is of concern for 
students and staff during winter months; and the facility sees high volumes of general 
public visiting the PAC.  The exterior lighting fixtures need to be replaced.  The exterior 
lights are also being converted to LED bulbs when the existing bulbs burn out. 

Water/Sewer 

 Both water and sewer are serviced by the Town of Groton municipal systems.  There are 
no known issues at this time.  The South building has approximately half of its area 
covered by sprinklers.  The entire North building is sprinklered.  No upgrades are 
needed at this time in either building. 

Gas 

 Natural Gas is used to fuel the heating systems.  It is provided by National Grid.  The 
kitchens in both buildings are also entirely equipped with gas appliances. 

Middle School South 

The entire South facility contains 92,000 square feet comprised of 31 classrooms, a library, a 
160-student cafeteria, and a 400-student gymnasium. It has a core capacity of 515 students and 
is currently used primarily for grades 5 and 6.  The Performing Arts Center (PAC), is an 800 
seat facility that provides district and community benefit. 
 
Roof 



 39 

 The main rubber membrane system was replaced in 2012; roofs on the addition and 
modular units were installed in 1999-2000.  The possible addition of solar panels was 
explored and found to be impractical.  Installation of the panels was understood to void 
the roofing warranty offered by the manufacturer and installer.  Also, as the Groton 
Electric Light Department is a municipal electricity provider we are not eligible for the 
grant programs that exist to offset installation costs.  The relative low cost of GELD’s 
electricity made the economic payback period unrealistic. 

Windows & Doors 

 Most were replaced in 1988 and are in good condition. 

Flooring 

 The flooring in the Middle School South building is in need of replacement in virtually all 

ground floor spaces.  This need exceeds the capacity of the typical replacement 

approach in district.  There have been numerous complaints of moisture coming up from 

below and condensation is of concern.  There is potential for mold from these conditions.  

It is important that a moisture barrier be installed under the new flooring.  This work may 

require alteration of doors and thresholds and is anticipated to cost approximately 
$50,000. 

Ceiling Tiles 

 In general ceiling tiles are replaced as needed due to failure or water staining.  This 
haphazard replacement has yielded a variety of tiles within rooms and between rooms.  
As the roof is new on the building, the ceiling tiles should be replaced in all rooms for 
consistency. 

Electrical 

 Electricity is provided by the Groton Electric Light Department.  The electrical systems 
have no known issues currently.  Lighting at the Middle School South building was 
converted to take T8 bulbs a few years ago.  As these burn out they are being replaced 
with LED bulbs. 

HVAC 

 There are currently multiple heating systems at the Middle School South building.  The 
two existing boilers are gas fired hot water units and are in good condition.  The 
Performing Arts Center had a new unit installed in 2011 and is in good shape.  Two 
rooftop air conditioning units need to be replaced.  These units cool the music room and 
computer room.  It’s possible that they can be replaced using operating funds. 

Plumbing 

 The plumbing is in great shape and any needed repairs can be funded through the 
operating budget. 

Security 

 Two new cameras are slated to be added this year out of the operating budget. 

Stairwells 

 The railings need to be reviewed and updated for safety.  Additionally, the stairs are 
sometimes slippery.  Replacement of flooring or addition of non-slip treads is needed. 

Bathrooms 

 The bathrooms are generally in good shape and any needed repairs can be funded 
through the operating budget. 



 40 

Science Labs 

 Science lab areas are in good condition. 

Cafeteria 

 New tables are needed as the existing ones are not in good condition.  Preference here 
(and throughout the district) is for the round units with individual seats. 

Kitchen 

 The kitchen equipment in the Middle School South building is in need of an upgrade 

since much of it dates back to 1988.  The building needs 4 new convection ovens, a new 

dishwasher, and a new standalone refrigerator.  In addition, the district needs to replace 
both serving lines with 8 steam table wells and 2 serving line refrigeration units.  

Asbestos/Lead/UST Removal  

 There are no known environmental concerns in the Middle School South building.  

Middle School North 

The Middle School North building, was renovated in 2004 and repurposed as a middle school 
building. The 95,630 square foot building is comprised of 33 classrooms, a library, a 257-
student cafeteria, and a 987-student gymnasium. The North building has a core capacity of 685 
students and is currently used for grades 7 and 8. 
 
Roof 

 A rubber membrane system was installed in 2004 when the building was renovated.  It is 
in good condition, but has a twenty year anticipated life expectancy.  The gym roof dates 
to 1995 and no issues have been identified. 

Windows & Doors 

 These were replaced in 2004 and are in good condition. 

Electrical 

 There are no known concerns with the electrical system.  The building has a single gas 
powered backup generator for emergency use. 

HVAC 

 The North building employs three gas powered forced hot water boilers for heat.  The 
units work well and are in good condition.  The control system for the building is currently 
functional but requires frequent adjustment to keep rooms balanced.  The system is 
obsolete and no longer supported by the manufacturer.  Full replacement is included in 
this capital plan for an estimate cost of $400,000. 

Plumbing 

 The plumbing systems are in good condition and no issues are known. 

Bathrooms 

 Bathrooms were renovated in 2004 and are generally in good condition. 

Science Labs 

 Science lab areas are in good condition and no concerns are known. 

Cafeteria 

 The cafeteria furniture is in good condition.  



 41 

Kitchen 

 The kitchen was renovated in 2004.  Equipment is maintained and replaced (if 
necessary) through the food services revolving account.  No current issues are known. 

Asbestos/Lead/UST Removal  

 There are no known environmental concerns in the Middle School North building.  

Florence Roche 

Florence Roche Elementary School was built in 1951. Increasing enrollment necessitated an 
addition in 1988 and the purchase of seven modular classrooms still in use today.  The building 
has a capacity of 650 students; including 150 students in the modular classrooms.   
 
Construction Timeline: 

1951 -   New Construction  44,868 sf. 
1988 -   Addition   17,600 sf. 
1996 -   1 Modular   1,000 sf. 
1998 –  4 Modular Units  4,000 sf. 
2001 –  2 Modular Units 2,000 sf.   

          
The modular classrooms are constructed on reinforced concrete pier system, with a stained 
wood exterior and 2 x 6 construction.  They were added by POPE Industries based in Atkinson, 
NH. 
 
An overall renovation of Florence Roche is needed to address needs in a variety of areas.  It is 
anticipated that this renovation will be a Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) 
eligible core project, with an estimated district share of 55%.  This core project is expected to 
include new flooring throughout the entire building, new HVAC systems, new windows, roof 
replacement, electrical and plumbing system review and upgrade, paving of driveways and 
walkways, renovation of the kitchen & cafeteria, asbestos abatement, removal of the existing oil 
tank, removal of the modular units, new furniture and replacement of maintenance equipment.  
 
The application process for an MSBA core program project is comprehensive and time 
consuming.  Submission of a completed application in FY2017 would likely yield a construction 
time frame for the 2019/20 or 2020/21 school years.  Given the age and condition of the 
building, it is anticipated to be a strong candidate for approval.  Students will need to be 
temporarily relocated to another location to accommodate a year of construction.  Bonding of 
the district share will require approval of Town Meeting voters.  
 
Roof 

 The primary roof system was replaced in 1995 with a 20 year life expectancy.  The roof 
on the addition area dates to 1988.  The roofs on the modular classrooms were recoated 
in 2013 and are in good condition. Roof replacement will be included in the MSBA core 
program application. 

Windows & Doors 

 These will be will be included in the MSBA core program application. 

Walkways/Parking lots/Driveways 



 42 

 These areas are beginning to show their age and repairs are needed.  The current plan 
is to continue to patch as necessary and include these in the MSBA core program 
application. 

Fields 

 The track and fields at Florence Roche are owned by the Town of Groton. 

Playground 

 The current playground is in good condition and has a capacity of 250 students.  The 
equipment is recent and the area is well maintained by staff and respected by students.  
No current issues have been identified. 

Electrical 

 The electrical system will be included in the MSBA core program application.  The 
lighting has been replaced (interior and exterior) with LED bulbs. 

HVAC  

 There are two separate boilers that provide heat to Florence Roche.  Both were installed 
in 1988.  Each classroom has a thermostat intended to allow control of each room.  
Realistically, the biggest problem with the heating at Florence Roche is balancing the 
system and controlling temperature in different areas. 

 The boiler which provides heat to the back end of the school (i.e. the 1988 addition), is 
forced hot water heat fueled by oil.  This boiler is leaking. 

 The second boiler (downstairs adjacent to the cafeteria) provides steam heat fueled by 
oil (note: this boiler replaced an old one and was installed in 1988).   The oil for this unit 
is stored in a 10,000 gallon underground tank located near the cafeteria adjacent to the 
parking lot.  Removal of this tank is recommended in conjunction with boiler conversion 
to natural gas.  This will likely be part of the major building renovation.  This boiler is 
cracked.  If this suddenly fails we could do a one week turn around to install a new one.  
Estimated cost is $75,000.  This is a push-nipple boiler so can not be disassembled for 
repair.  Some in house work may be possible to reduce cost, but this is challenging 
given the lack of staff and time.   

 Each modular classroom has an individual AC unit to allow for greater temperature 
regulation.  Many of these units are broken or ineffective due to age and condition. 

Plumbing 

 The plumbing system will be included in the MSBA core program application. 

Water/Sewer 

 The water and sewer needs of Florence Roche are provided by the Town of Groton 
Municipal systems.  No issues are known at this time. 

Gas 

 Natural gas is provided by National Grid to both the kitchen and some of the existing 
boilers.  A new line will need to be extended to the boiler location to replace the unit with 
a new gas model.  Ideally this will be done as part of the MSBA core program.  It is 
unlikely that the existing boiler can continue to function until that point.  An exploration of 
possible alternatives is needed.  

Gymnasiums 

 The gymnasium has a capacity of 300 students and is in good condition.  A small 
elevated stage area exists at one end.  The gym is not regulation size for sports, so is 
not heavily used by athletic teams for practices. 



 43 

Library  

 The library at Florence Roche has capacity for two classes at a time.  Many parts of the 
room have been renovated in recent years due to the generosity of the PTA and 
volunteers.   

Bathrooms  

 The bathroom toilets and fixtures are outdated and often out of service in the main office 
hallway.  

Modular Units 

 Like the units at the Middle School, these will be prohibited from classroom application 
following the MSBA core program renovations.  They will likely be removed and a 
permanent building addition made. 

 
Kitchen/Cafeteria 

 The cafeteria has a capacity of 175 students.  Both areas need full renovation and will 
be included in the MSBA core program application. 

Asbestos 

 Florence Roche contains asbestos in two isolated areas.  There is no threat from this 
unless the materials are disturbed.  The existing asbestos will be removed as part of the 
MSBA core renovations.  There is asbestos in the crawl space under the flooring of the 
building, likely in the form of pipe insulation.  Also, the stair tiles from the main foyer to 
the cafeteria contain asbestos.  

UST Removal 

 A single boiler in the building is fueled by oil.  Once the unit is replaced and a new 
natural gas line fed, the existing underground storage tank (UST) will need to be 
removed in compliance with regulations.  

Swallow Union 

The Swallow Union complex is owned by the Town of Dunstable and leased to the district.  The 
lease will be reviewed and re-executed following completion of the regional agreement updates 
currently in progress.  Past lease language has allowed for a twenty-year term at no cost to the 
district.  The district is responsible for all building upkeep and maintenance.  Major renovations 
to building or grounds are the responsibility of the Town of Dunstable.   
 
Roof  

 The current rubber roof on the Swallow building was replaced in 1991 (addition and gym 
in 1995) with an estimated life span of 20 years.  The system was recoated in 2012 and 
will need to be done again at the end of this capital plan.  There is interest in considering 
a solar installation on this roof at that time.  Because Dunstable electricity is provided by 
National Grid there will likely be grant monies and advantageous long term gains.   

 The Union building has the original slate roof from 1895, with repairs made in 2007.  No 
work is needed at this time, and CPC monies might be available for this historic town 
center structure. 

Windows & Doors  

 Windows were replaced in 1995 and are currently in good condition. 

Exterior painting 



 44 

 The outside of the Union building can likely be funded using CPC money. 

Walkways 

 The existing walkways are in poor condition and safety is an increasing concern.  CPC 
money may be available or the walkways may be addressed as part of a district-wide 
project. 

Parking lots/Driveways 

 The parking lots and driveway are generally in fair condition.  Patching will be needed, 
but no major repair is currently required.  There is not enough parking capacity here in 
general, but expansion options are extremely limited. 

Fields 

 The fields around the Swallow Union School are owned by the Town of Dunstable. 

Fencing 

 Minor installations of new fencing are recommended; between the playground area and 

neighbor and between the back hardtop and playground hill.  These can likely be funded 
out of the operating budget.  

Lighting 

 Interior lighting was upgraded in 1995.  Exterior bulbs are being converted to LED as 
they burn out. 

Electrical 

 A lighting upgrade has been done and no current needs have been identified. 

HVAC   

 Two boilers are used to heat the Swallow building.  One is gas fired and one is fueled 
with oil. 

 There is a single oil fired steam boiler in the Union building that was installed in 1976.  
The gas line has been run to the unit.  This boiler needs to be replaced with a gas 
powered unit.  Currently the heat in the Union building is only used for the extended day 
program; so typically runs from 6am to 9am on weekdays.  Upon installation and 
conversion, the underground oil tank will need to be removed in compliance with 
regulations. 

Plumbing 

 There are no known issues with the plumbing system.  Routine maintenance is done out 
of the operating budget. 

Security 

 No issues have been identified with the existing locks or camera system. 

Water 

 Water is provided from the Town of Dunstable municipal system.  This system is in 
extremely poor condition and replacement funding options are being considered.  The 
buildings currently are not sprinklered and no plans exist to alter this. 

Sewer 

 The Swallow building has an existing septic system with no known issues.  The system 
is serviced annually.  The recent downward enrollment numbers lessen the load on the 
system and will prolong its life span. 



 45 

Gas   

 Natural Gas is provided to Swallow Union by National Grid.  The lines have been 
installed to all boilers.  Remaining oil boilers need to be replaced with gas units and the 
underground oil storage tanks removed in compliance with regulations. 

Bathrooms 

 Bathrooms overall are in good shape.  The partitions are in rough condition and should 
be replaced.  This is anticipated to cost approximately $2,500 per bathroom. 

Gymnasium 

 The gym is in generally good condition.  The floors were redone in 2015. 

Science Labs 

 Dedicated science lab areas are in good condition. 

 
Cafeteria 

 New tables are needed for the cafeteria.  In keeping with district preference round tables 
with individual seats are recommended. 

Kitchen 

 The existing kitchen is in good condition.  A new hot water booster was installed in 2016.  
The kitchen appliances are all electric, which does not to be altered. 

Asbestos  

 Asbestos is known to be present in some floor tiles and in pipe insulation in mechanical 
areas.  These are not of concern unless they are impacted by construction.  The current 
plan includes ongoing in-house remediation during summer months paid for out of the 
operating budget. 

UST Removal 

 There remains a single oil fired steam boiler in the Union building that needs to be 
replaced with a gas powered unit.  The underground storage tank (UST) will need to be 
removed in compliance with regulations. 

Boutwell 

The Boutwell School was built in 1914 as an elementary school for the town of Groton.  After 
changing ownership several times, the Boutwell School began housing The Early Childhood 
Center in 1995. This building is in excellent condition considering its age. 
 
The Boutwell School contains 8,208 square feet on the main level with a mechanical basement 
used primarily for storage.  Boutwell’s core capacity is 120 students. Boutwell currently is 
divided into 3 main classrooms, a multipurpose room, three assessment/therapy rooms, a staff 
room and small kitchen, a Director’s office and an open area for library use and the 
administrative assistant. 
As the needs of the District are changing consideration should be given to Central Office and 
ECC needs.  One of these uses should be incorporated into the core renovations pending at 
Florence Roche.  The other use will plan to be at the Boutwell School long-term. 
 
Roof 

 Current roof was replaced in 1994 with an estimated life span of 20 years. 



 46 

 
Parking lots/Driveways 

 Parking areas and driveway are overall in fair to good condition.  No current major work 
is anticipated.  The parking lot does not provide sufficient space for staff and parent 
parking at times.  Parking capacity would be adequate for Central Office type use. 

Playground 

 The playground was replaced a few years ago when ARRA money was available.  It 
currently meets the student needs. 

Lighting 

 Minor exterior lighting upgrades are warranted.  They are anticipated to be covered out 
of revolving or operating budgets. 

Electrical 

 As this report is being drafted an upgrade to LED lighting is planned for coming weeks. 

HVAC 

 The two existing rooftop ‘weather-maker’ rooftop units need to be replaced urgently.  
They are both 28 years old and have surpassed their anticipated life span.  Both are gas 
fired highly inefficient units that run all year.  Cooling is needed in the summer months as 
the building is utilized for mandated programs to meet student needs.  The anticipated 
operational cost savings will likely pay for these units fairly quickly.  Replacement cost 
for both units is approximately $50,000. 

Plumbing 

 The plumbing and bathrooms are in generally good shape.  The building has a sprinkler 
system. 

Water/Sewer 

 The Boutwell facility is served by Town of Groton municipal water and sewer systems.  
No issues have been identified. 

Electricity  

 Electrical service is provided by Groton Electric Light Department.  No issues have been 
identified. 

Gas 

 Natural gas is provided by National Grid and is used for heating and cooling.   

Nurses’ Office 

 This is housed in a retrofitted bathroom.  Given the current needs of the Boutwell student 
population, a renovation and/or expansion may be needed. 

Bathrooms 

 Are generally in good condition and have been modified for student use.  No issues have 
been identified. 

Science Labs/Language Labs/Cafeteria 

 None of these spaces currently exist or are needed for the early childhood programs in 
place. 

Kitchen 

 A small kitchen for staff use is present and in good condition. 



 47 

Asbestos 

 There is some asbestos in the basement of the building; but it is completely contained.  
This basement is reached by exterior entry to a set of stairs in the rear of the building.  
No removal is anticipated. 

Peter Twomey Youth Center 

The Peter Twomey Youth Center (PTYC) is located on the Main Campus of the Groton 
Dunstable Regional Schools, behind the Groton Dunstable Regional Middle School North 
building. It is a prefabricated steel building, originally constructed in 1978 as a stand-alone 
gymnasium to serve as a temporary replacement facility during the renovations of the then High 
School gym.  After use as a gym, the building became a temporary storage facility for reusable 
classroom furniture, lockers, gym equipment, etc.  Maintenance used the other half of the 
structure as a maintenance facility. 
 
In January of 1997, community representatives from many of the local youth athletic leagues, 
school personnel and other interested parties gathered to see what could be done to salvage 
this building and increase area available gym space. Renovations and repairs to the building, 
including painting, carpeting, installing new doors and windows and painting the outside of the 
building were all accomplished through fundraising efforts using a volunteer work force. The 
culmination of these efforts took place during the summer of 2000 with volunteers working every 
Saturday to lay down a hardwood floor in the gym. When the last piece of wood was in place, 
the project that began 3 years earlier was completed. 
 
A revolving account is setup that supplies much of the funding for upkeep of the Peter Twomey 
Youth Center.  This account receives revenue from student participating fees tied to after school 
programming K-8 and pre and post school-day care.  In addition to supporting upkeep, this 
revolving fund pays for the building rental from the district, which then is a revenue source for 
the district operating budget.   
 
Roof 

 The main roof at the PTYC was replaced in 2007.  This was paid for through a capital 
debt exclusion and funded through the revolving account for the building.  The 
gymnasium roof dates from 1975, but is in good repair. 

Windows & Doors 

 There are no known issues here. 

Painting 

 This is generally funded from the revolving account and all areas (exterior and interior) 
are in good condition. 

Walkway 

 Currently the walkway directly in front of the entrance has drainage issues.  Following a 
rain of any magnitude a puddle forms making entry difficult for students, staff and 
parents.   

Parking lots/Driveway 

 The parking area for the PTYC is generally in good condition.  The speed bumps will be 
replaced in spring of 2016.  The parking is inadequate for building use, but no expansion 
options are readily available. 



 48 

Playgrounds 

 The playground is a popular resource for students using the PTYC.  The area is in 
generally good condition, in part thanks to the hard work of a local eagle scout who took 
this on in 2015. 

Lighting 

 The general exterior lighting is in good condition.  It is insufficient to fully illuminate the 
entry area.  This is a safety concern in the winter months; as student pickup and 
basketball practice drop-off often overlap.  Additional lighting should be installed on the 
rear of the Middle School North building in this area. 

Electrical 

 There are no known issues here.  The current system provides capacity beyond what is 
typically needed. 

 
HVAC 

 The Peter Twomey Youth Center is a prefab steel building and its current HVAC system 

is currently served by four units that were installed in 1998.  Two of the units feed the 

gym area for heating only and the other two feed the main portions of the building.  All 

four units are in need of replacement due to the constant repairs made over the years.  

Three HVAC companies, including the original contractor, concede that the units have 

reached their maximum life. The intent is to provide two heating only systems for the 

gym.  The other two systems need to be upgraded to include air conditioning since the 

building houses summer programs.  This would allow removal of the aging and 

ineffective window ACs currently used during the summer months which are not energy 

efficient.  Each of the combined heating and cooling units will cost approximately 

$35,000.  This project will start in FY2017 and funds will come from the Extended Day 
revolving account.  

Plumbing 

 The plumbing was recently redone and no issues have been identified. 

Security 

 The security system is fairly new and no issues have been identified. 

Phones 

 The phone systems throughout the district are in urgent need of replacement.  There are 
currently multiple systems that do not integrate.  Many teachers do not have voicemail 
and some of the phone systems fail to work intermittently. 

Sprinklers  

 The building has no sprinkler system. 

Water & Sewer 

 Water and sewer service are provided by the Town of Groton municipal systems.  No 
issues are reported. 

Gas 

 Natural gas is provided to the building and is used for heating equipment.  

Gymnasium 



 49 

 The gym floor is planned for resurfacing during summer of 2016.  This is anticipated to 
cost about $3,000 and will be funded from the PTYC revolving account.  There is interest 
in adding a space that could do double duty as an activity room and half-court basketball 
area.  Seating in the gym for spectators is also needed.  Both of these require structural 
changes and expansion of the existing building. 

Bathrooms 

 No issues have been identified in this area. 

Central Office 

The Central Office Administration has been located in the Prescott School since relocating from 

The Tarbell School in 2010.  The Prescott School is owned by the Town of Groton and leased to 

the district at no cost.  The Town of Groton Municipal Building Committee for Prescott School 

has been working for several years on a plan to renovate the building and turn it into a long-term 

Town owned community asset.  Pending a fiscally sustainable solution that allows for long term 

stability the district has indicated an interest in remaining in a renovated Prescott School.   

The current lack of an approved long-term plan prevents the district from planning more than a 

year in advance for Central Office, which is not sustainable.  The current building is viable for 

the small staff that is there on a daily basis.  The building is not up to code and the electrical 

system is insufficient for significant expansion of use.  The ventilation for the building is of 

concern as this was part of the decision to discontinue the building for student use.  The 

potential impact of phased renovations over several years is also of concern.  Lastly, there are 

hurdles involved in sharing a building with non-district uses.  Shared parking and privacy 

concerns for confidential conversations would need to be carefully considered to share space in 

the long-term. 

 

At this point the Building Committee has not yet made final recommendations and the viability is 

likely to be dependent on voter willingness to allocate tax dollars to the building.  In order to 

ensure the long term stability that the district needs for Central Office Administration other 

options should be considered.   

 

The central location in our community and the ability to house the district administration in a 

single location are the largest benefits offered by Prescott.  These goals could be met in two 

different ways as part of the Florence Roche MSBA core renovation program, pending 

confirmation of eligibility for the options.  Expansion of the Florence Roche building, already 

likely necessary, could be increased to allow for relocation of either the Central Office 

Administration or the programs currently in Boutwell, with anticipated relocation of Central Office 

to the Boutwell School.  Both of these options retain a single location for the administrative team 

and maintain the community central location. 

 

Relocation of Central Office to Boutwell, after relocating the Early Childhood Center (ECC) 

programs to Florence Roche is preferred for a number of reasons at this point.  This action 

would eliminate the parking difficulties felt by parents and staff at the ECC that create potential 

safety issues as students and parents routinely cross the street to park at Legion Hall.  This 

action would allow for expanded ability to co-program between the ECC and elementary school.  



 50 

These programs currently share nursing staff and many specialists.  A shared single location, 

perhaps with different entries, would allow for more efficient delivery of services by these staff.   

 

 

 



100 LITTLETON ROAD
WESTFORD, MA 01886

PROUDLY SUPPORTING
THE COMMUNITIES OF

978.692.4711
WWW.NASHOBATECH.NET

BUDGET
FY 2023—2024

Dr. Denise P. Pigeon, Superintendent
Nashoba Valley Technical High School

Michelle Shepard, Business Manager

Approved on March 7, 2023
By the NVTHS School Committee

AYER • CHELMSFORD • GROTON • LITTLETON
PEPPERELL • SHIRLEY • TOWNSEND • WESTFORD







NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget

Table of Contents

School Committee Membership ...............................................................................1
Executive Summary ............................................................................................... 2 - 6
About the Nashoba Valley Technical School District ..............................................7
District Town Membership .........................................................................................8
Mission Statement .......................................................................................................9
School Philosophy .................................................................................................... 10
Course and Program Offerings ............................................................................... 11
Enrollment Change by District Town ..................................................................... 12
District Enrollment by Town Percentage ............................................................... 12
Historical Enrollment Trends - 10 Year Review ..................................................... 13
Comparison of District and Total Enrollment ....................................................... 13
School and District Accountability Information .................................................... 14
Recent Student Achievements .........................................................................15 - 17
School to Career Program ....................................................................................... 18
Career and Technical Institute (CTI) ....................................................................... 19
2022-2023 Business Advisory Board Members ............................................20 - 21 
Nashoba Valley Technical High School Public Services ...............................22 - 23
Capital Bulding and Grounds Plan ......................................................................... 24
Workforce Skills Capital Grant Projects ................................................................. 25
FY24 Estimated Allocation Grant Summary ......................................................... 26
Elementary and Secondary Education Emergency Relief (ESSER III) ................ 26
Other Post-Employment Benefits Fund (OPEB) ................................................... 27
Stabilization Fund ..................................................................................................... 28
Budget Development Schedule ............................................................................. 29
Appendices ........................................................................................................30 - 35
      FY2024 Proposed Budget by State Function Code ....................................... 31
      FY2024 Proposed Budget by Detailed Function Code ................................. 32
      FY2024 Estimated Revenue Plan ...................................................................... 33
      FY2023/FY2024 Revenue Difference .............................................................. 34
      FY2024 Assessments by Town .......................................................................... 35



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 1

School Committee Membership
2022—2023

Karen Chapman, Vice-Chairman 
TOWNSEND

Chris Prehl 
AYER

Cory Prehl, Alternate 
AYER

Lawrence MacDonald 
CHELMSFORD

Samuel Poulten 
CHELMSFORD

Clare Jeannotte 
CHELMSFORD

Pat Wojtas, Alternate 
CHELMSFORD

Robert Flynn 
GROTON 

John Ellenberger, Alternate 
GROTON

Ed Mullen, Alternate  
LITTLETON

Robert Goes 
PEPPERELL 
TBD 
PEPPERELL

TBD 
PEPPERELL

TBD, Alternate 
PEPPERELL

Brian Fulmer 
SHIRLEY

TBD, Alternate 
SHIRLEY

Sheldon Chapman 
TOWNSEND

TBD, Alternate 
TOWNSEND

Ronald Deschenes 
WESTFORD  
Alicia Mallon, Alternate 
WESTFORD

Student Representatives to the School Committee

Brianna Hall
Electrical 

Technology
LUNENBURG

Harrison Mayotte
Programming & 

Web Development
CHELMSFORD

Kaitlyn Landers
Cosmetology 

WESTFORD

Dylan Schenck
Television & Media/ 

Theatre Arts
CHELMSFORD

Mitchell Tierney
Electrical 

Technology
CHELMSFORD

Charlie Ellis, Chairman 
LITTLETON



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 2

For over 50 years, Nashoba Valley Technical High School (NVTHS) has remained steadfast 
in its mission, philosophy, and goals to provide a quality academic and technical program 
for each student, develop positive attitudes in students, develop the full potential of each 
student, motivate students to achieve academic and technical excellence, and motivate 
students to become productive members of society.  In addition, NVTHS recently adopted 
a Portrait of an NVTHS Graduate focused on the following attributes - Respectful, Respon-
sible, Resilient, Resourceful, and Ready for their future.

The NVTHS District proudly offers twenty cost effective high quality Chapter 74 technical 
education programs to its member district towns of Ayer, Chelmsford, Groton, Littleton, 
Pepperell, Shirley, Townsend, and Westford. In addition, when program capacity allows, we 
provide educational opportunities for non-resident and school choice students.  

District enrollment at NVTHS continues to be strong, and for the fourth year in a row dis-
trict enrollment has increased, with this trend anticipated to continue into the 2023-2024 
school year. District enrollment during the 2022-2023 school year increased by 27 district 
students from the previous school year for a total district enrollment of 715 students.

The  Fiscal Year 2024 (FY24) Budget reflects an ongoing focus on NVTHS’s mission, goals, 
and Portrait of a Graduate as we navigate educating students in these unprecedented 
times. The FY24 budget looks ahead into the 2023-2024 school year and the future needs 
of our students as we move forward with pandemic recovery and workforce development 
to meet local labor market trends. The FY24 Budget represents general fund and school 
choice fund spending for the District of $17,631,504, an increase of $992,352, or a 5.96% 
increase in spending from the FY23 voted budget of $16,639,152.

Executive Summary of FY2024 Budget

TECHNICAL PROGRAM ENROLLMENT

Cluster Programs % of  
Students

Construction &  
Transportation

Automotive Collision Repair, Automotive Technology,  
Carpentry, Electrical Technology, Plumbing Technology 41%

Health & 
Services

Cosmetology, Culinary Arts, Hospitality Management, 
Marketing, Early Childhood Education, Health Assisting, 

Dental Assisting, Veterinary Assisting
31%

Arts & 
Technology

Advanced Manufacturing, Biotechnology, Design & Visual 
Communications, Engineering Technology, Programming & Web 

Development, Robotics, TV & Media Production/Theatre Arts
28%



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 3

Executive Summary of FY2024 Budget

In addition to anticipated annual increases, proposed staffing changes from the FY23 to 
the FY24 Budget include the addition of a one carpentry teacher and one academic/mod-
erate disabilities teacher due to student enrollment demands. 

Proposed capital expenditures in the FY24 Budget have been increased by approximately 
$25,000 from FY23 for our ongoing and increasing capital needs reflective of our aging 
building/facility. Specific capital projects to be funded by the FY24 capital budget include 
an elevator modernization and replacement of a portion of the second floor fire suppres-
sion system. The district recently completed a full facility assessment to inform five and ten 
year capital planning. Major future projects will include a multi-year phased approach to 
fire suppression system replacement and HVAC upgrades. As debt payments decrease, 
the district anticipates increasing capital expenses. In addition, the District is research-

GENERAL FUND 
EXPENSES FY24 Change 

$
Change 

% Notes

1000
Administration 822,523 38,410 4.9% Contractual increases, software

2000 
Instruction 8,734,491 546,069 6.67% Step/lane changes, +2 staff, tech program supplies

3000
Pupil Services 2,011,310 106,128 5.57% Transportation & other contractual increases

4000
Operations & Maintenance 1,716,199 188,825 12.36% Contractual, utility & supply cost increases

5000 
Benefits & Fixed Charges 3,022,993 86,417 2.94% Required increases

7000 
Acq., Improve & Replace Assets 375,000 25,000 7.14% Increased capital need

8000 
Debt Retirement and Service 602,000 -24,075 -3.85% Decreasing debt

9000 
Programs with Other Schools 14,400 8,236 134% Estimated school choice out

Total General Fund Budget 17,298,916 975,010 5.97%

Costs funded by School Choice Fund 332,588 17,342 5.50%

Totals 17,631,504 992,352 5.96%



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 4

Executive Summary of FY2024 Budget

ing the potential of a Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) repair project and/
or bonding the anticipated $15 to $20 million in capital needs anticipated in the next ten 
years. We are pleased to share that over the past six years we have been working diligently to 
upgrade our twenty technical programs selecting one or two programs per year for upgrade. 
The district has been most fortunate to receive an unprecedented amount of state compet-
itive Workforce Skills Capital Grants to support this effort. This includes the recent $500,000 
Workforce Skills Capital Grant awards in Cosmetology, $2,500,000 for Veterinary Science and 
Electrical, and most recently $3,750,000 to expand Engineering, Programming, and Robotics.

The FY24 Budget allocates $200,000 to the District’s Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) 
Fund. The purpose of this fund is for the future health insurance liability of the District’s em-
ployees to cover the cost of retiree health insurance benefits. As part of our annual audit pro-
cess, an actuarial study is conducted and an estimated OPEB liability is calculated. The Dis-
trict’s liability as of June 30, 2022 is approximated at $10,081,776. The balance of the OPEB 
trust is $1,742,939 as of December 31, 2022.  In response to OPEB liabilities, the NVTHS 
School Committee has committed to allocating monies to the OPEB Fund annually.

Revenue sources to support the FY24 Budget include estimated direct Massachusetts Chap-
ter 70 School Aid and Chapter 71 Regional Transportation Reimbursement, member town 
assessments, and other non-assessment revenue sources. Nashoba Valley Technical School 

FY 24 Expenditures by Category



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 5

Executive Summary of FY2024 Budget

District’s estimated Chapter 70 School Aid for FY24 is $4,701,934. This reflects a State-Aid 
increase of $801,157, a  20.54% increase from FY24. Chapter 71 Regional Transportation Re-
imbursement is estimated at $618,617, an increase of $99,159 or 19.09%. The total member 
town assessment revenue from FY23 to FY24 has increased by $415,904, a  3.74% increase. 
The total member town assessment increase is primarily noted in the assessment category of 
Minimum Contribution due to increases in both the district enrollment and calculation chang-
es in the Massachusetts educational funding formula.

Nashoba Valley Tech’s FY24 Revenue Plan reflects the use of other non-state aid and 
non-member assessment revenue. This includes the use of a portion of Certified Excess and 
Deficiency certified as of July 1, 2022 in the amount of $438,816. This reflects a decrease of 
$341,210, a 43.74% decrease in the usage of funds compared to FY23. The FY24 Revenue 
Plan reflects the use of approximately 63% of the certified available Excess and Deficiency, 
although we are not required to utilize these funds as the certified amount is <5% of the bud-
get under MGL Ch. 71, §16B½. In addition, the FY24 expenditure plan reflects the continued 
use of the School Choice revolving fund in the amount of  $332,588 to support instructional 
staffing needs. 

FY 24 Revenue Plan



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 6

Budget Subcommittee Membership:

Karen Chapman, Subcommittee Chair 
TOWNSEND

Lawrence MacDonald 
CHELMSFORD

Charlie Ellis 
LITTLETON

Brian Fulmer 
SHIRLEY

Clare Jeannotte 
CHELMSFORD

Chris Prehl 
AYER

In closing, the FY24 Budget and 
Revenue plan is a balanced plan 
focused on meeting the needs of 
students and local workforce de-
velopment needs during the time 
of recovery from an unprecedent-
ed global pandemic while remain-
ing cognizant of the challenging 
fiscal times faced by our member 
towns. We hope you find the infor-
mation provided in NVTHS’s Bud-
get Book helpful and informative.

Respectfully offered,

Dr. Denise Pigeon
Superintendent

Executive Summary of FY2024 Budget

REVENUE - MEMBER TOWN ASSESSMENT CHANGE FY22/FY23

 # of Students Minimum 
Contribution

Transportation/ 
Capital Equip.

Additional 
Assessment Debt Service Total

Assessment

FY23 688 9,138,788 783,782 575,000 626,075 11,123,645

FY24 715 9,846,166 791,383 300,000 602,000 11,539,549

Change 27 707,378 7,601 -275,000  -24,075 415,904

REVENUE DIFFERENCE FY23/FY24

FY23 FY24 Increase
(Decrease) %

Assessments 11,123,645 11,539,549 415,904 3.74%

Chapter 70 Aid 3,900,777 4,701,934 801,157 20.54%

Regional 
Transportation 

Reimbursement
519,458 618,617 99,159 19.09%

Certified 
Excess & 

Deficiency
780,026 438,816 -341,210 -43.74%

Total Revenue 16,323,906 17,298,916 975,010 5.97%



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 7

Nashoba Valley Technical High School is a four-year public regional technical high school 
that opened in 1969 with nine technical program areas to serve both the technical and 
academic needs of high school-aged young men and women. Nashoba Valley Techni-
cal High School was founded in 1965 by the towns of Chelmsford, Groton, Littleton and 
Westford to provide career and technical education to students of this area. By 1979, the 
Nashoba Valley Technical High School District expanded to incorporate the three addi-
tional towns of Shirley, Pepperell, and Townsend. In 2012, the District grew once more with 
the addition of Ayer. In the early 2000’s, Nashoba Valley Technical High School underwent 
a major two-year expansion and modernization project. An expansive overhaul of the 
athletic facilities was completed in 2013 including the installation of a track and turf field.  
Nashoba Valley Technical High School now offers twenty technical programs in a state-of-
the-art facility. Students also take rigorous academic courses required for a high school 
diploma and entrance into post-secondary education. Finally, post graduate technical 
certificate programs are available for all recent district High School graduates.

During the freshman year, students explore all technical program areas. In late winter, 
one area in which to major will be chosen. This exploratory program enables students to 
make realistic and informed decisions that reflect their needs, interests, and abilities. For 
students entering Nashoba Valley Technical High School in the sophomore year, a mini-ex-
ploratory is also available. Daytime classes operate Monday through Friday from 7:50 a.m. 
to 2:30 p.m.  The school year is 180 days long. Instruction is divided between the technical 
and academic areas over a two-week rotating schedule. Academic areas for all students 
consist of English Language Arts, Social Studies, Mathematics, Science, World Languages, 
the Arts and Physical Education. All academic courses are rigorous and the curriculum 
is designed to prepare students for college and career readiness. Students are encour-
aged to apply for Honors level courses offered at every grade level. Advanced placement 
classes are available in all core subjects.  In addition, we offer early college opportunities 
including concurrent college enrollment courses on campus at all grade levels and a col-
lege dual enrollment program for juniors and seniors seeking to earn college credits at a 
college campus while enrolled in high school.

Athletics play a large part of the overall high school program. Extracurricular athletics 
include soccer, cross-country, football, hockey, track & field, basketball, baseball, softball, 
volleyball, cheerleading, lacrosse, tennis, wrestling and golf. Varsity and junior varsity 
sports are available for student participation. No user fees are charged; however, athletes 
are expected to participate in required fundraising activities. In addition, other extracur-
ricular activities may be experienced through clubs such as National Honor Society and 
National Technical Honor Society, Student Council, Drama Club, FIRST Robotics, Yearbook, 
Students Against Destructive Decisions, and SkillsUSA. A variety of additional clubs may 
be available each year based on student interest.

About the Nashoba Valley Technical 
School District



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 8

 

District Town Membership  

 
Nashoba Valley Technical High School was founded in 1965 by the towns of 
Chelmsford, Groton, Littleton and Westford to provide career and technical 
education to students of this area. By 1979, the Nashoba Valley Technical High 
School District expanded to incorporate the three additional towns of Shirley, 
Pepperell, and Townsend. In 2012, the District grew once more with the addition of 
Ayer.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Use map from last year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 

GROTON

TOWNSEND

WESTFORD

PEPPERELL

SHIRLEY
AYER

CHELMSFORD

LITTLETON

ACTON

HARVARD

DRACUT

CONCORD

ASHBY

STERLING

LEOMINSTER

LANCASTER

LUNENBURG

STOW

FITCHBURG

BILLERICA

BOLTON

LOWELL

CARLISLE

DUNSTABLE

BEDFORD

TYNGSBOROUGH

LINCOLN

BOXBOROUGH

TEWKSBURY

MAYNARD
CLINTON

LEXINGTON
PRINCETON

METHUEN

SUDBURYHOLDEN

ANDOVER

WESTMINSTER

WALTHAM

Nashoba Valley Technical High School was founded in 1965 by the towns of Chelms-
ford, Groton, Littleton and Westford to provide career and technical education to 
students of this area. By 1979, the Nashoba Valley Technical High School District 
expanded to incorporate the three additional towns of Shirley, Pepperell, and 
Townsend. In 2012, the District grew once more with the addition of Ayer.

District Town Membership



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 9

The Mission of Nashoba Valley Technical High School is 
to provide the highest quality academic and technical 
education possible to prepare our students for college 
and career paths leading to success in an ever-changing 
technological world. The school strives to promote citizen-
ship through a safe and inclusive atmosphere encouraging 
a diverse population of students to become positive and 
productive members of the community.

Mission Statement

During the 2022 - 2023 School Year, the 
Nashoba Valley Technical High School com-
munity developed and adopted a map of 
core qualities that the school would actively 
strive to cultivate and recognize in its stu-
dents. Over the course of the year, Nashoba 
Tech’s administration and staff engaged in a 
series of workshops, brainstorming sessions, 
and team meetings designed to identify the 
essential attributes a graduate of the school 
should posess in order to be an engaged, 
responsible, and productive members of 
their professions and communities.

This resulting “Portrait of a Graduate” is 
an aspirational idea intended to serve as 
a guidepost for both students and staff, to 
help stay oriented toward the goal of ensur-
ing that every student who graduates from 
Nashoba Valley Technical High School is 
prepared to head into the world, and their 
future, and be successful at whatever they 
choose to do. It seves to remind us that we 
want every student that recieves a Nashoba 
Tech diploma to be Resilient, Respectful, 
Resourceful, Responsible, and most of all 
Ready for whatever lies ahead.

PORTRAIT OF A GRADUATE



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 10

The philosophy of Nashoba Valley Technical High School is to provide a safe, nondiscrim-
inatory educational environment for students who are residents of our district, school 
choice participants, and tuition pupils.  We are committed to an educational process 
in which students are treated with dignity and respect at all times.  All students receive 
occupational training, academic education, and cultural enrichment which assist them in 
developing their potential and contribute to their becoming responsible and productive 
members of society.

Our basic objective is to provide an education for all students, ensuring that they gradu-
ate with the training that will allow them to achieve gainful employment if they so choose.  
We also provide the academic skills necessary to successfully pursue post-secondary and 
higher education and to recognize the importance of education as a continuous process.  
We encourage all students to become lifelong learners, continuing to combine their 
employment and educational options in order to achieve their full potential.  It is the aim 
of this school that students become self-reliant, responsible citizens, have pride in their 
vocations, develop a positive attitude, show respect, toleration, and concern for others, 
and have an awareness of the diverse world in which they live. 

Our curriculum emphasizes the knowledge and thinking skills that students require to 
become contributing citizens in a democratic society.  We acknowledge that students 
have different levels of ability and motivation, rates of learning, types of intelligence, and 
interests.  We are committed to providing diversified programs and state-of-the-art tech-
nical instruction that will enable our students to become skilled workers and technicians 
and responsible citizens. Our philosophy also seeks to provide educational opportunities 
for area adults seeking to change their vocations, to upgrade capabilities in their current 
fields, to develop new technical skills, or to pursue recreational activities.

Nashoba Valley Technical High School is committed to providing innovative programs that 
meet the educational needs of citizens within all our participating communities.  Our ad-
ministrators and staff  partner with residents, representatives from business, industry and 
affiliated colleges and universities, and students to identify new challenges and to ensure 
that we are responsive to changing industrial, technological, professional, and academic 
requirements that could impact our students.

Our school encourages open communication among parents, teachers, students, town 
and school officials, school committee members, school councils, and the broader com-
munity to support the needs of our students.  We participate in forums and actively reach 
out to the community for feedback to ensure that we are fulfilling our unique mission and 
meeting our responsibility to provide quality, cost-effective educational opportunities for 
all students and citizens in our district.

School Philosophy



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 11

English, Math, Science, Social Studies, World Language, Music, Art, and other Electives

ACADEMIC COURSES

Art Club
Band, Chorus & Tri-M
Culinary Club
DECA
Digital Media Club
Drama Club
FIRST Robotics
GSA Club

Horticulture Club
Mock Trial
National Honor Society
National Technical Honor 
     Society 
Outdoor Club
Robotics Club
Skills USA

Student Council/Government
Students Against Destructive 
     Decisions (SADD)
Tri-M Music Honor Society
Viking Mentor Program
Viking Theatre Company
Viking Voice
Yearbook Club

CLUBS/ACTIVITIES

Nashoba Valley Technical High School
Offers the Following to All Enrolled Students:

Advanced Manufacturing 
Automotive Collision Repair & Refinishing
Automotive Technology
Biotechnology
Carpentry
Cosmetology
Culinary Arts
Dental Assisting
Design & Visual Communications
Early Childhood Education

Electrical Technology
Engineering Technology
Health Assisting
Hospitality Management
Marketing
Plumbing & Heating
Programming & Web Development
Robotics & Automation
TV & Media Production/Theatre Arts
Veterinary Science

CHAPTER 74 STATE-APPROVED TECHNICAL PROGRAMS

Baseball
Basketball
Cheerleading
Cross Country
Football

Golf
Ice Hockey
Lacrosse
Soccer
Softball

Swim
Tennis
Track and Field
Volleyball
Wrestling

ATHLETICS

Early College (at the Enrolled College)
Early College (at Nashoba Tech Campus)

EARLY COLLEGE OPPORTUNITIES & SPECIAL PROGRAMS
Advanced Placement
Cooperative Placement – Work Based Learning



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 12

Nashoba Valley Technical High School
Foundation Enrollment Change by District Town

District Enrollment by Town Percentage

Nashoba Valley Technical High School Foundation Enrollment Change by District Town

Town FY23 FY24 Change

Ayer 61 69 +8

Chelmsford 207 212 +5

Groton 45 41 -4

Littleton 41 44 +3

Pepperell 122 132 +10

Shirley 49 44 -5

Townsend 90 94 +4

Westford 73 79 +6

Total District 688 715 +27



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 13

Town Oct. 
’13

Oct. 
’14

Oct. 
’15

Oct. 
’16

Oct. 
’17

Oct. 
’18

Oct. 
’19

Oct. 
’20

Oct. 
’21

Oct. 
’22

Ayer 49 57 56 48 48 51 55 59 61 69

Chelmsford 173 185 184 191 198 186 200 212 207 212

Groton 39 39 36 39 35 43 39 46 45 41

Littleton 38 33 34 30 34 29 35 37 41 44

Pepperell 140 159 152 153 136 129 128 109 122 132

Shirley 69 85 72 58 54 51 53 54 49 44

Townsend 104 94 103 107 95 86 80 79 90 94

Westford 55 52 49 49 56 64 64 71 73 79

Total District 667 704 686 675 656 639 654 667 688 715

School Choice & Non-resident 68 63 65 69 67 65 68 68 55 39

Total 735 767 751 744 723 704 722 735 743 754

Historical Enrollment Trends - 10 Year Review

Comparison of District and Total Enrollment



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 14

How did Nashoba Tech compare to the state in meeting their  
target goals in each area of accountability measure?

BY SELECTED POPULATION Nashoba Valley Technical High School State Average

First Language not English 2.8% 25%

English Language Learner 0.1% 12.1%

Students with Disabilities 32.5% 19.4%

High Needs 53.2% 55.1%

Economically Disadvantaged 31.2% 42.3%

GRADUATE FOLLOW UP STUDY RESULTS Percent Positively Placed

2021 Graduates of Nashoba Valley Technical High School 91.2%

2020 Graduates of Nashoba Valley Technical High School 98.8%

2018 Graduates of Nashoba Valley Technical High School 98.8%

2017 Graduates of Nashoba Valley Technical High School 99.4%

2016 Graduates of Nashoba Valley Technical High School 99.3%

2015 Graduates of Nashoba Valley Technical High School 97.5%

2014 Graduates of Nashoba Valley Technical High School 97.4%

ACCOUNTABILITY MEASURE* Nashoba Valley Technical High School State Average

2022 Attendance Rate 95.7% 91.5%

2021 4-Year Graduation Rates 95.5% 89.8%

2021 Annual Dropout Rate 0.7% 1.5%

2022 MassCore - Completing  
a Rigorous Course of Study 100% 83.8%

How do our student population subgroups compare to state averages?

*Information taken from the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education website at www.doe.mass.edu

Please note: Perkins positive placement includes participation one year after graduation in employment, postsecondary 
education, or the military. Data not available for 2019 with federal changes from Perkins IV to Perkins V.

How is our school doing on other school accountability measures?

How is our school doing on vocational technical accountability measures?



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 15

Recent Student Achievements

STUDENT(S) Achievement Program

Lillian Burgess
Ariana Christmas
Richard Collins
Febronia Girgis

Jaden Greenslade
Xexilya Herrera

Shayla Kirk 
Sarah Recchia
Willa Roberts
Alora Rodgers
Alyssa Rosato
Rachel Vincent

Alzheimer’s Care Certification Health Assisting

Julia Chamberlain
Lilliana Estevao

Zoe Holston
Chelsea Lyle
Hailey Mann

Jennifer Monteiro
Elizabeth Paff
Skyla Ricciardi

Certified Nursing Assistant Certificate Health Assisting

Sarah Recchia
Willa Roberts
Lilian Burgess

HeartSaver CPR Health Assisting

Jenna Despres International Nanny Exam Certification Early Childhood 
Education

Eric Caulfield, Nathaniel  
Dunn, Diara Fernand, Moss 

Halloran, Megan Hussey,  
Lauren Mazgelis, Alex  
Petraglia, Johnathan  

Picolotto, Michael Prideaux, 
Noah Silva, Gwendolyn  
Stenquist with Erin Bean  

and Yabdiel Cruz

Mural Project - Pheasant Lane Mall

Design & Visual 
Communications

Alex Petraglia

Winner  - Massachusetts Partners for Youth  
PSA Poster Design Contest

Design & Visual 
Communications



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 16

Recent Student Achievements

2022 SkillsUSA Competition Medalists

Nashoba Tech Nominees for US Presidential Scholars  
Program for CTE (Career and Technical Education)

Annually, the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education selects 
five students to compete at the national level for demonstrating outstanding scholarship and 
excellence as a member of the school community, leadership, and school and community 
involvement. Congratulations to this year’s nominees from Nashoba Tech!

Kaitlyn Landers
Cosmetology
WESTFORD

Harrison Mayotte
Early College/ 
Programming & 
Web Development
CHELMSFORD

STUDENT Place Competition Program

DISTRICT PLACEMENTS

Carolyn Dorman, Townsend Gold
Advertising Design

Design & Visual Communications

Caiden Mills, Chelmsford Silver Design & Visual Communications

Aurora Condor, Chelmsford 
Connor McCall, Pepperell Gold

Audio/Radio Production

TV & Media Production/ 
Theatre Arts

Nyk Fischer, Townsend 
Dylan Schenck, Chelmsford Silver TV & Media Production/ 

Theatre Arts

Nathan Blaisdell, Pepperell Gold Automotive Science Technology Automotive Technology

Charlie Graney, Chelmsford Bronze CNC Milling Specialist

Michael Whiting, Chelmsford Gold

CNC Technician

Advanced Manufacturing

Nicholas Moore, Chelmsford Silver Advanced Manufacturing

Andrew LeLievre, Littleton Bronze Advanced Manufacturing

John Duggan, Chelmsford Bronze CNC Turning Specialist Advanced Manufacturing

Kaitlyn Landers, Westford Silver Cosmetology (Over 500 Hours) Cosmetology



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 17

SkillsUSA Competition Medalists (Continued)

STUDENT Place Competition Program

DISTRICT PLACEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Peter Zaferacopoulos, Littleton Gold Cosmetology (Under 500 Hours) Cosmetology

Mikayla Barrett, Boxborough 
Wendy Barrett, Boxborough Silver

Digital Cinema Production

TV & Media Production/ 
Theatre Arts

Meghan Chamberlain, Shirley 
Elsa Vig, Billerica Bronze TV & Media Production/ 

Theatre Arts

Matthew Lynch, Westford Gold
Industrial Motor Control

Electrical Technology

Nickolas Cambridge, Ayer Silver Electrical Technology

Maxwell Mazgelis, Westford Gold
Photography

Design & Visual  
Communications

James Hirt, Chelmsford Bronze Design & Visual  
Communications

Shaun Driscoll, Westford Silver Plumbing Plumbing

Trey Diekan, Townsend Bronze Restaurant Service Culinary Arts

Phenix Flockhart, Littleton Gold

Telecommunications Cabling

Electrical Technology

Brianna Hall, Lunenburg Silver Electrical Technology

Gaetano Wallace, Townsend Bronze Electrical Technology

STATE PLACEMENTS
Aurora Condor, Chelmsford 
Connor McCall, Pepperell Gold

Audio/Radio Production

TV & Media Production/ 
Theatre Arts

Nyk Fischer, Townsend 
Dylan Schenck, Chelmsford Silver TV & Media Production/ 

Theatre Arts

Dominic Carbone, Townsend 
Frank Horn, Townsend 

Emily MacNeil, Dunstable
Gold Career Pathways Showcase: 

Arts & Communication
Design & Visual 

Communications

Michael Whiting, Chelmsford Bronze CNC Technician Advanced Manufacturing

Kaitlyn Landers, Westford Gold Cosmetology (Over 500 Hours) Cosmetology

Peter Zaferacopoulos, Littleton Silver Cosmetology (Under 500 Hours) Cosmetology

Matthew Lynch, Westford Gold Industrial Motor Control Electrical Technology

Phenix Flockhart, Littleton Silver Telecommunications Cabling Electrical Technology

NATIONAL PLACEMENTS
Aurora Condor, Chelmsford 
Connor McCall, Pepperell Silver Audio/Radio Production TV & Media Production/ 

Theatre Arts

Kaitlyn Landers, Westford Silver Cosmetology (Over 500 Hours) Cosmetology

Matthew Lynch, Westford Silver Industrial Motor Control Electrical Technology

Dominic Carbone, Townsend 
Frank Horn, Townsend 

Emily MacNeil, Dunstable
5th Career Pathways Showcase: 

Arts & Communication
Design & Visual 

Communications



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 18

School to Career Program

Through a partnership with local businesses and industries and full approval of the Depart-
ment of Elementary and Secondary Education, Nashoba Valley Technical High School is able 
to provide a School to Career Program for eligible juniors and seniors who meet established 
high standards of achievement, attendance, work readiness and interest. These students will 
spend their technical training week in a real world career setting in their chosen field as an 
extension of their learning experience.

Acton Ford
Acton Medical
Angell @ Nashoba
As You Like It Salon 
Atlantic Auto Body Carstar Collision
Benchmark Sr. Living - Atrium at Drum Hill
Benchmark Sr. Living - Chelmsford Crossing
Boch Honda West
The Boxboro Regency
Burkart-Phelan, Inc.
Chewie’s Playland
Country Kids Child Center
Countryside
Crumbl Cookies
Cut to the Chase Salon & Spa
East Corp. Electric
Enwright Plumbing & Heating
Eric C. Foster Plumbing & Heating
Family Tree Childcare Center
Four Paws Only, Inc.
FW Webb
G. Smith Development
Gray Company
The Groton Inn/Forge & Vine
Harvard Family Medicine
Interstate Electric
Johnson’s Dairy Bar

Keystone Precision
Lannan Chevrolet
Ledgeview Graphics & Printing
Lifecare Center of Nashoba Valley
Little Sprouts - Lowell
Littleton Animal Hospital
Low Places Ranch
McNabb Pharmacy
Merrimack Valley Oral Surgeons
Moppet Preschool
Norman E. Day Electrical
Northern Acoustical Ceilings, Inc.
Nypromold, Inc.
Papalia Home Services
Pelletier Electric
Philip Ciampa - Lexington
Plumbing Supply Co.
The Portland Group
Powderly & Sons
Precision Machine, LLC
Prime Electrical Services
Residence of Freeman Lake
Rex Lumber
SpringBoard Schools - Chelmsford
TF - Electric
Theide Plumbing

2022 - 2023 Cooperative Placement Employers



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 19

Career Training Code/Tier Classes: Classroom hours required to obtain MA Journeyman 
licenses (Electrical board requires 600 code hours/Plumbing board requires 5 Tiers/ 550-hrs) 

Journeyman Electrical Code - Fall and Winter sessions (75-hrs each/150-hrs per year)
Journeyman Plumbing Tiers - Annual session (110-hrs)

Grant Funded Career Training Initiative (CTI) Programs: Career training programs, funded by 
Governor Baker and Commonwealth Corporation, are geared for unemployed or underem-
ployed adults seeking employment in high priority/critical industries.  The training program 
provides industry-specific theoretical and hands-on learning, OSHA safety training,  indus-
try-recognized credentials, and leads to employment opportunities in the chosen field. 

Details at https://www.nashobatech.net/page/adults-nashoba-at-night

AUTOMOTIVE - Resumes March 2023
• Curriculum includes: Inspection, brakes, alignment, electrical, transmissions,  

engines, and more
• Industry Credentials include:  Automotive Service Excellence (ASE), Valvoline,  

EPA 609, OSHA 10 General Industry, and Automotive Lift Institute 

CNC/MACHINE OPERATOR - Starts March 2023
• Curriculum includes: Manual mill & lathe operations, Haas CNC mill & lathes,  

blueprint reading, bandsaws, micrometers, height gauges, Prototrak mill,  
optical comparators, and more

• Industry Credentials include: MACWIC Levels 1 & 2 and OSHA 10 General Industry 

ELECTRICAL - Starts July 2023
• Curriculum includes: Hand & power tools, electrical code, wiring methods (lights, 

plugs, switches), measuring, sizing, cutting, bending, installation, and more
• Industry Credentials include: HotWorks, Ramset training, Scissor Lift training  

and OSHA 10 Construction Safety 

PLUMBING - Resumes March 2023
• Curriculum includes: Soldering, pipe connecting tools, threading machines  

(Wirsbo pex, Propress, Tracpipe, Watts pex, Shark Bites), and more
• Industry Credentials include: Plumbing Tier 1 (110 hours), Viega  

PP/MP/MPS, TracPipe, and OSHA 10 Construction Safety 

Additional programs under consideration for Spring 2023 grant applications

Career and Technical Initiative (CTI) 

Evening/Adult Programs



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget

2022-2023 Business Advisory Board Members

A+ Auto Body
Absolute Manufacturing
Absolute Pawfection Grooming 
Acton Toyota
Angell Animal Medical Center
Art Institute of Boston - Marketing Depart-
ment
Avaio
Ayer Kiddie Depot
Basnett Plumbing/Heating
Bedford Children’s Center
Better Built Plumbing
Blue Lotus Salon
Boch Honda
BOSE
Boxborough Regency
Bridges by Epoch
Bridgewater State College
Brooks Precision Machining
Burkart-Phelan, Inc.
C & C Plumbing
C&C Machine
Cain, Bouvvert, Jarry & Vaillancourt, P.C.
Carstar Auto Body
Chelmsford Crossing & GLT LPN program
Chipotle
Cisco

Cority Software
Cornerstone Visual Communications
Dana-Farber Cancer Institute
Danaher Corp.
Debra’s Natural Gourmet
Dog Officer Town of Westford
Dr. Scott Goldberg, DMD
Drs. Schofield & Martin, DMD
Duval Sign Company
DWW Motorsports
Enterprise Bank
Family Tree Child Care
Fishbones Restaurant
Fitchburg State University
Fred’s Truck Repair/UPS
Freeline Therapeutics
Future of Dentistry
FW Webb
Greater Visions Child Care Center
Green International
Griffin Electric
Groton Collison Center
Groton Inn
Groton Public Television
Gurukul Child Care Center
Habitat for Humanity
Hair Lines Distributer

Providing forward looking guidance and current insight into the workplace, these groups 
keep us updated on industry demands. Composed of industry experts, business owners, 
post-secondary advisors, parents and students, the Advisory Committee ensures that our pro-
grams remain relevant to our students and all stakeholders. The committee members meet at 
least three times a year, to review workspaces, curriculum, and provide feedback. 

Many of the businesses are also active with NVTHS co-operative placements and internships, 
providing experiential learning through field trips, donated equipment, and support for a 
variety of school initiatives. We are always happy to welcome new advisory members.

The following businesses and organizations are active participants in our Advisory Commit-
tees which serve a vital role in our technical programs.

20



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 21

2022-2023 Business Advisory Board Members

Harvard Machinery
Henry Shein Dental Supplies
Holiday Inn Marlborough
Howse Corp
I-Car
I.A.T.S.E.
IBEW
Indigo Salon & Day Spa
JES Advertising / Middlesex CC
Keystone Precision Eng. Inc.
Kriod Construction
KTR Auto Sports
L3T Technologies
Lady With A Hammer
Laer Realty
Laird Plastics
Lavelle Machine
Ledgeview Printing
Lowell 5
Lowell Educational Television
Lowell Five Cent Savings Bank
Marshalls Auto Body
Massbay Community College
MEC Electrical Contractors, Inc
Merit Machine
Middlesex Community College
Middlesex Savings Bank
Motion Graphics Artist
Mount Wachusett Community College
MSC Industrial Supply Inc.
Nashoba Valley Auto Body
Nashoba Valley Chamber of Commerce
New England Carpenters Training Fund
New England Institute of Tech
NH1
Nobis Engineering Inc.
North Shore Community College
Northeastern Univ. Nursing School & LPN
Oconner Studios

Packard Machinery Company
Parallel Wireless, Inc.
Physical Sciences, Inc.
Polar Controls, Inc
Provost Plumbing/Dedham Inspector
Quinsigamond College
Raytheon Corporation
Red Hat
Red Mill Graphics
RiverCourt Residences
Roudenbush Community Center
Rudy’s Fuel & Auto Service Inc.
Sathorn Corporation
School Street Light Truck Parts
Scientific Solutions, Inc
Southwestern Industries, Inc.
Spencer Technologies 
Stansfield Tire
Stay Safe Inc.
Stealth Biotherapeutics
The Goddard School
The Valley Collaborative
Townsend Dental Group DMD
Transformations
Triangle Service Center
University of Massachusetts Lowell
University of Hartford
Wagner Mercedes
Waltham High School
Watermark Environmental
Wentworth Institute of Technology
Westford CAT
Westford Regency Inn
Westford Senior Center
Whole Pet Grooming Academy 
Woodward Plumbing & Heating
WXLO 104.5 FM



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 22

Angell (Animal Medical Center) at Nashoba
   
978-577-5992
Angell at Nashoba, offers care to animals Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 4:00 pm, and is 
open year-round. We are excited about the opportunity to not only help animals in this com-
munity but also help to instill in students a lifelong love and passion for the field of veterinary 
medicine. We offer a full range of services from wellness care and spay/neuter services to 
more advanced surgeries such as orthopedic and intestinal procedures. In addition, we have 
a program for people who qualify as low income where they can receive veterinary care for 
their pet at a reduced cost. 

Automotive Technology Services
   
978-692-4711 extension 13111
Nashoba’s Automotive Technology program students perform repairs under the supervision 
of experienced ASE certified and experienced instructors. District residents and our mem-
ber town municipalities can utilize school services in automotive technology services such as 
check engine light diagnosis and repair, automatic transmission fluid service, tire mounting 
and balancing, computerized 4-wheel alignment, engine tune-up, fuel injection service, drive-
line, transaxle, and clutch service, AC recharge, and repairing and rotating tires. 

Auto Collision Repair and Refinishing Services
   
978-692-4711 extension 16128
Nashoba’s Auto collision Repair and Refinishing program students perform repairs under the 
supervision of experienced instructors. District residents and our member town municipalities 
can utilize school services in collision repair, detailing, plastic repair, metalworking and weld-
ing, refinishing, and structural and non-structural repair. 

Cosmo Cuts Salon
   
(978) 692-4711 extension 16142
Nashoba’s Cosmetology program offers an in-school hair and nail salon. The salon is open to 
the public during the school year. Please call the salon to reserve an appointment. 

Public Services Available at Nashoba Tech



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 23

Programming and Web Design

Nashoba’s Programming and Web Development program offers basic programming and web 
development services to municipal offices and non-profits in our district communities during 
the school year. Proposed jobs are reviewed by program instructors and accepted on a case 
by case basis. Please contact the department by emailing cegan@nashobatech.net.

Viking Village Mall
   
978-692-4711 extension 16168
Nashoba’s Viking Village Mall is located alongside our Elegant Chef restaurant and is open to 
the public Monday through Friday from 11:30 am to 1:00 pm.

Design and Visual Communications

Nashoba’s Design and Visual Communications program offers basic design and printing ser-
vices to municipal offices and non-profits in our district communities during the school year. 
Proposed jobs are reviewed by program instructors and accepted on a case by case basis. 
Please contact the department by emailing nmeharg@nashobatech.net. 

Early Learning Center
   
978-692-6036
Nashoba’s Early Childhood Program is pleased to offer half and full day preschool and pre-k 
programs for children ages 3 through 5 years old, and a morning or full day toddler explora-
tion program for children ages 12 months through 3 years old.

Elegant Chef Restaurant and Bistro
   
978-692-9958
Nashoba’s Culinary Arts and Hotel Restaurant Management programs operate the Elegant 
Chef Restaurant.  The in-school restaurant is open for business during the school year Tues-
day through Friday from 11:30 am to 1:00 pm. Reservations are recommended.

Public Services Available at Nashoba Tech



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 24

Capital Building and Grounds Plan

Nashoba Valley Technical School District has coordinated with our on-call architects, Mount 
Vernon Group, to conduct a review and prepare an update to the District’s facility assessment. 
The facility assessment is designed to assist the district with coordinating a multi-year capital 
planning for updating our buildings and grounds. The FY24 plan will be funded through the 
general fund, revolving funds, and Workforce Skills Capital Grants.

Numerous capital projects are currently considered high priority and are in the feasibility stage 
for potential funding in FY25 and beyond. 

Fire Suppression System Phased Project: This project will include bid specs and the replacement or 
repair of the fire suppression system in a five or six phase approach.
Parking Lots and Curbing Repairs: This project will include a study of existing conditions of the 
parking lot, curbing, curb cuts at HC access and walkways, and provide upgrade recommendations; 
followed by a schematic design, bid specs, and the actual project.
HVAC System Updates: This project will consist of a review of existing HVAC systems and Architec-
tural Impacts and provide upgrade recommendations; followed by schematic design, bid specs, 
and the actual project. The District is researching a potential MSBA repair project and/or use of 
bonds for this project.

FY24 Proposed Capital Plan*

Project Capital  
Budget

Revolving 
Funds

Workforce 
Skills Grants

Elevator Modernization $50,000 $350,000

Fire Suppression System Replacement - Phase I $150,000 $320,000

Bid specifications for phase II of fire  
suppression system repairs and other projects $105,000

Ongoing flooring and painting upgrades $50,000

Replace body on plow truck $20,000

Expansion of Vet Tech/Electrical $2,500,000

Expansion of Engineering, Robotics, Programming $3,750,000

Total $375,000 $670,000 $6,250,000

*Plan is subject to revisions based on results of Facility Assessment updates.



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 25

Workforce Skills Capital Grant Projects

Created by Governor Baker in 2015,  the goals of the Skills Capital Grants Program has been 
to help high schools, colleges and other educational institutions invest in the most up-to-

date training equipment to give 
students an advantage when they 
continue in their chosen field.  
Since 2015, Nashoba Valley Tech-
nical High School has been the 
proud recipient of $8,575,000 
in grant funds from the Work-
force Skills Program, including 
$6,250,000 for FY24.  This has 
allowed us to continue to provide 
the most advanced technical ed-
ucation possible to our students, 
meeting the standards set by 
industry partners.

FY Program Amount Plan

2016 Advanced Manufacturing $500,000 Program Renovation and Equipment Update

2017 Engineering/Robotics $500,000 Program Renovation and Equipment Update

2019 Health/Dental $500,000 Program Renovation and Equipment Update

2020 Culinary/Hospitality $125,000 Equipment Replacement

2022 Plumbing $250,000 Program Renovation and Equipment Update

2023 Cosmetology $500,000 Salon Renovation and Equipment Update

2024 Electrical/ 
Veterinary Science $2,500,000

Program Renovation and Equipment Update 
- will also allow us to expand both programs 
physical space within the building to address 

student enrollment trends

2024/ 
2025

Engineering/Robotics/ 
Programming and Web/ 

Advanced Manufacturing
$3,750,000

Building Addition and Equipment Update - will 
allow us to create a “Manufacturing Production 
Center” addressing the growing needs of the 
manufacturing industry, a primary employer in 

our area.



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget

FY24 Estimated Allocation Grant Summary

GRANT TITLE

REVENUE

FY23 Approved FY24 Proposed 
(Estimate)

140 Title II, Part A: Supporting Effective Instruction $17,892 $17,892

240 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA)  
Federal Special Education Entitlement Grant $242,175 $242,175

305 Title I, Part A: Improving  
Basic Programs $96,885 $96,885

309 Title IV, Part A:  Student Support  
and Academic Enrichment $10,000 $10,000

400 Perkins Occupational Skills $162,702 $162,702

460 Early College Expansion  
Planning Grant $50,000 $50,000

ESSER III Plan FY23/FY24

Student Support Center & Student Support Staffing  Training $220,090

HVAC Controls Building-wide Upgrade $225,000

High Quality Instructional Materials and Instructional Technology $178,000

Total $623,090*

ESSER III (Grant 119) provides resources to school districts for the safe reopening and opera-
tion of schools.  Consultation with key stakeholders was conducted in the fall of 2021 through 
a targeted needs assessment survey.  The survey identified strategic areas used to develop 
our implementation plan, including academic support, the development of a transition pro-
gram, and facilities improvements to create healthy and safe school environments.

*Funds available for use throught September 24, 2024 and are subject to grant revision based on need.

Elementary and Secondary Education Emergency Relief (ESSER III)

26



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 27

The Nashoba Valley Technical School District Committee at its August 9, 2011 meeting voted, 
in accordance to Massachusetts General Law Chapter 479 An Act Providing for the Establish-
ment of Other Post-Employment Benefits Liability Trust Funds in Municipalities and Certain 
Other Governmental Units, to establish an Other Post Employment Benefit Fund (OPEB) fund. 
The purpose of the fund is for the future health insurance liability of the District’s employees 
to cover the cost of retiree health insurance benefits. As part of our annual audit process, an 
actuarial study is conducted and an estimated OPEB liability is calculated. Our current calcu-
lation for our future OPEB liability is approximately $10,081,776. 

The Other Post Employment Benefit Trust is managed by five trustees appointed by the 
Nashoba Valley Technical High School District School Committee. They meet a minimum of 
twice per year to review and manage the trust portfolio. Our current trustees include:

Paul Cohen, Chelmsford Town Manager
Charlie Ellis, NVTHS School Committee
Tim Harrison, NVTHS District Treasurer
Andrew MacLean, Pepperell Town Administrator
Michelle Shepard, NVTHS Business Manager

Please note: Dr. Denise Pigeon, NVTHS Superintendent serves as an ex officio member.

Below is an overview of the contribution history and balance through December 31, 2022.

Other Post-Employment Benefits Fund (OPEB)

CONTRIBUTION DATE AMOUNT

Contribution 1/29/2015      50,000.00

Contribution 9/28/2015       51,418.00

Contribution 8/3/2016     100,000.00

Contribution 9/13/2017     300,000.00

Contribution 8/6/2018     200,000.00

Contribution 6/30/2020       90,000.00

Contribution 10/5/2020     183,476.00

Contribution 6/30/2021      116,524.00

Contribution 8/25/2021 200,000.00

Contribution 9/7/2022 200,000.00

Cumulative Interest Earnings  & Change in Value 251,521.19

Balance as of December 31, 2022 $1,742,939.19



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 28

The Nashoba Valley Technical School District Committee at its December 14, 2010 meeting, 
in accordance with Massachusetts General Law Chapter 71 Section 16G 1/2, by a majority of 
all the members of the regional district school committee, voted to establish a Stabilization 
Fund. Chapter 71 Section 16G 1/2 also requires the approval of a majority of the local appro-
priating authorities. We presented the Warrant Article to our member towns during the spring 
2011 Annual Town Meetings for approval. 

As a fiscally responsible regional school district, the primary purpose of a stabilization fund 
is to give the Nashoba Valley Technical School District a method to have funds available for 
unexpected capital expenses that may occur. 

Below is an overview of the contribution history and balance through December 31, 2022.

Stabilization Fund

CONTRIBUTION DATE AMOUNT

Contribution 8/17/2011 250,000.00

Contribution 11/16/2012 200,000.00

Contribution 6/30/2014 200,000.00

Contribution 4/29/2015 200,000.00

Contribution 9/28/2015 300,000.00

Contribution 8/8/2016 200,000.00

Contribution 8/6/2018 100,000.00

Interest Earnings   170,380.02 

Balance as of December 31, 2022 $1,620,380.02



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 29

Budget Development Schedule

Last Week  
of October

Budget Message/Timeline and workbooks distributed to Staff  
by Superintendent and Business Manager

First Week  
of November Training for staff on completion of budget workbooks

Second Week  
of November All budget workbooks to be completed by November 19th

Third Week  
of November

First administrative review of budget proposals with Superintendent
Internal Budget Review by Superintendent and Business Manager

Fourth Week  
of November

Supervisors provide feedback to departments (as needed)
Second administrative review of budget proposals with Superintendent

First Week  
of December

First draft budget presented to Budget/Finance Subcommittee
Feedback to supervisors/departments for revisions (as needed)

Second Week  
of December

Final Review with Superintendent/Administration
Second Draft Budget Presented to Budget/Finance Subcommittee

Third Week  
of December

Finalization of the budget and presentation preparation to  
Budget/Finance Subcommittee

January Budget/Finance Committee Work Session Final Review

First Week of 
February Town Officials Breakfast, Presentation on the Budget

First Week of 
February

School Committee Public Hearing on the Budget  
(must be held at least 45 days before the first town meeting)

March First town meeting held (Westford)

April - June Town Meetings held in remaining district towns



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 30

APPENDICES
• FY2024 PROPOSED BUDGET BY 

STATE FUNCTION CODE

• FY2024 PROPOSED BUDGET BY 
DETAILED FUNCTION CODE

• FY2024 ESTIMATED REVENUE PLAN

• FY23/FY24 REVENUE DIFFERENCE

• FY2024 ASSESSMENTS BY TOWN



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 31

Account 
Code

Account 
Description

FY21 
Voted 

Budget

FY22 
Voted 

Budget

FY23 
Voted 

Budget

FY24 
Voted  

Budget

Increase 
(Decrease) 

Amount

Increase 
(Decrease)

%

1000 Administration  740,140  764,821  784,113 822,523  38,410 

2000* Instructional 
Services  7,650,939  7,692,161  8,188,422 8,734,491 546,069

3000 Pupil Services  1,644,581  1,821,562  1,905,182  2,011,310 106,128

4000 Operation & 
Maintenance  1,413,263  1,462,692  1,527,374 1,716,199 188,825

5000 Benefits & 
Fixed Charges  2,715,526  2,799,535  2,936,576 3,022,993 86,417

7000
Asset 

Acquisition & 
Improvement

 225,000  225,000  350,000 375,000 25,000

8000 Debt Service  592,178  650,300  626,075  602,000 -24,075

9000 School Choice  10,000  17,723  6,164 14,400 8,236

Total General  
Fund Budget  14,991,627  15,433,794  16,323,906 17,298,916 975,010 5.97%

School Choice Used  
as a Revenue Source 632,166 567,956 315,246 332,588 17,342

Total Budget 
(Including School Choice Fund) 15,623,793 16,001,750 16,639,152 17,631,504 992,352 5.96%

FY2024 Proposed Budget by State Function Code

*FY21 through FY23 voted have been restated in Account Code 2000 Instructional Services to not include instructional costs funded by School Choice Fund  
consistent with current year presentation.    



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 32

 Account  
Number

Account 
Description 

FY21 
Voted 

Budget 

FY22 
Voted 

Budget

FY23 
Voted 

Budget

FY24 
Voted 

Budget

Increase 
(Decrease) 

Amount

Increase 
(Decrease) 

%
1400 Central Office, Finance and Legal 740,140 764,821 784,113 822,523 38,410

2110 School Curriculum, Dept. Heads * 597,238 617,313 665,860 620,341 -45,519

2210 Principal 299,768 297,946 314,681 316,423 1,742

2250 Building Technology 223,877 233,795 249,977 255,534 5,557

2300 Teachers, Classroom ** 4,953,046 5,113,083 5,510,256 5,993,421 483,165

2320 Medical, Therapeutic Services 60,000 68,000 67,067 85,894 18,827

2325 Substitute Teachers 25,000 30,000 35,000 35,000 0

2340 Library and Media 90,791 90,791 93,069 95,396 2,327

2345 Distance Learning 0 24,000 9,500 14,750 5,250

2350 Professional Development 60,282 59,123 62,463 58,000 -4,463

2400 Textbooks, Instruct/Technical Equip. 667,790 424,595 479,432 531,478 52,046

2700 Guidance Services 673,147 733,515 701,117 728,255 27,138

3100 Attendance Services 92,734 95,739 95,651 102,812 7,161

3200 Health Services 91,578 144,581 135,690 128,966 -6,724

3300 Transportation Services 805,920 905,480 953,240 1,034,080 80,840

3400 Food Services 21,639 28,257 30,412 31,987 1,575

3510 Athletic Services 307,949 315,498 332,409 348,926 16,517

3520 Student Activities 119,172 121,768 132,244 137,597 5,353

3600 Student Security 205,589 210,239 225,536 226,942 1,406

4110 Custodial Services 221,593 219,225 242,327 252,718 10,391

4120 Heating of Buildings 130,000 130,000 170,000 190,000 20,000

4130 Utility Services 368,220 371,900 378,164 466,607 88,443

4210 Ground Maintenance 143,260 144,092 150,721 163,304 12,583

4220 Building Maintenance and Security 319,052 364,847 374,662 387,400 12,738

4230 Maintenance- Equipment 206,610 208,100 204,000 251,170 47,170

4450 Building Technology 24,528 24,528 7,500 5,000 -2,500

5100 Employer Retirement Contributions 350,010 358,933 380,721 425,158 44,437

5200 Insurance for Active Employees 1,800,601 1,832,050 1,940,899 1,959,979 19,080

5250 Insurance for Retired Employees 264,884 278,152 284,556 302,156 17,600

5255 Other Post Employment Benefits 183,476 200,000 200,000 200,000 0

5600 Other Non Employee Insurance 116,555 130,400 130,400 135,700 5,300

7000 Assets Acquisition and Improvements 225,000 225,000 350,000 375,000 25,000

8100 Debt Service -Prinicipal 500,500 520,000 515,000 510,000 -5,000

8200 Debt Service-Interest 91,678 130,300 111,075 92,000 -19,075

9110 School Choice 10,000 17,723 6,164 14,400 8,236

Total General Fund Budget 14,991,627 15,433,794 16,323,906 17,298,916 975,010 5.97%
Instructional Costs funded by School Choice 632,166 567,956 315,246 332,588 17,342

Total Budget (including School Choice Fund) 15,623,793 16,001,750 16,639,152 17,631,504 992,352 5.96%

FY2024 Proposed Budget by Detailed Function Code

* Account number was 2220 in previous years **FY21 through FY23 voted have been restated in account number 2300 Teachers, Classroom to not 
     include instructional costs funded by School Choice Fund consistent with current year presentation.



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 33

FY23  
Voted  

Budget

FY24  
Voted  

Budget
Difference % change

Operating Budget 15,347,831 16,321,916  974,085 6.35%

Capital 350,000 375,000  25,000 7.14%

Debt Service 626,075 602,000 -24,075 -3.85%

Total Operating & Capital Budget 16,323,906 17,298,916  975,010 5.97%

Non-Assessment Revenue:

Chapter 70 School Aid 3,900,777 4,701,934  801,157 20.54%

Chapter 71 Regional  
Transportation Reimbursement 519,458 618,617  99,159 19.09%

Certified Excess & Deficiency 780,026 438,816 -341,210 -43.74%

Total Non-Assessment Revenue 5,200,261 5,759,367 559,106 10.75%

Required Town Assessments 11,123,645 11,539,549  415,904 3.74%

Total Budget Funding 16,323,906 17,298,916  975,010 5.97%

Assessment Allocation by Category:

Minimum Contribution 9,138,788 9,846,166  707,348 7.74%

Transportation/Capital Equipment 783,782 791,383  7,601 0.97%

Additional (Offset)/Assessment 575,000 300,000 -275,000 -47.83%

Subtotal Non-Debt Assessments 10,497,570 10,937,549  439,979 4.19%

Debt (Expansion/Renovation) 626,075 602,000 -24,075 -3.85%

Total Member Assessment 11,123,645 11,539,549  415,904 3.74%

FY2024 Estimated Revenue Plan



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 34

FY2023/FY2024 Assessments by Town

REVENUE 
SOURCE

FY2023 
Voted

Budget

FY2024 
Proposed

Budget

Increase 
(Decrease) 

Amount

Assessments  11,123,645  11,539,549  415,904 

Chapter 70 Aid  3,900,777  4,701,934  801,157 

Regional Transportation 
Reimbursement  519,458  618,617  99,159 

Certified Excess & 
Deficiency Appropriation  780,026  438,816 (341,210)

TOTAL  16,323,906  17,298,916  975,010 



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: FY 2023 - 2024 Budget 35

FY2023/FY2024 Revenue Difference

TOWN
10/1/2022 

# of 
District 

Students*

Students  
per Town 

Percentage* 

Town's 
Minimum 

Contribution* 

 Transportation 
Capital  

Equipment

Additional 
Assessment

Sub-total 
Assessment 

Debt  
Service

Assessment 
2023-2024

Ayer 69 9.65%  973,253  76,371  28,951  1,078,575  58,095  1,136,670 

Chelmsford 212 29.65%  3,357,610  234,648  88,951  3,681,209  178,495  3,859,704 

Groton 41 5.73%  665,553  45,380  17,203  728,136  34,520  762,656 

Littleton 44 6.15%  678,828  48,700  18,462  745,990  37,046  783,036 

Pepperell 132 18.46%  1,509,393  146,101  55,385  1,710,879  111,138  1,822,018 

Shirley 44 6.15%  512,192  48,700  18,462  579,354  37,046  616,400 

Townsend 94 13.15%  940,349  104,042  39,441  1,083,832  79,144  1,162,976 

Westford 79 11.05%  1,208,988  87,440  33,147  1,329,574  66,515  1,396,089 

TOTAL 715 100%  9,846,166  791,383  300,000  10,937,549  602,000  11,539,549 



NASHOBA VALLEY TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
100 Littleton Road • Westford, MA 01886

978.692.4711
nashobatech.net



Sudbury Public Schools

School Committee Meeting

Date: October 7, 2024

Agenda Item: 4a

FY26 Capital Recommendations

Recommendation:

Background

Information:

Attachments:

From the September 24, 2024 SC Meeting

FY26 Capital Project Submission Form - CIP_FY26_SPS_1 Carpet Replacement.xlsx - CIP Submission

Form

FY26 Capital Project Submission Form - CIP_FY26_SPS_2 VCT Flooring Replacement.xlsx - CIP

Submission Form (1)

FY26 Capital Project Submission Form - CIP_FY26_SPS_3 Bathroom Partitions and Replacements.xlsx -

CIP Submission Form

FY26 Capital Project Submission Form - CIP_FY26_SPS 4 Painting.xlsx - CIP Submission Form

FY26 Capital Project Submission Form - CIP_FY26_SPS 5 Ceiling Tile Replacement.xlsx - CIP Submission

Form

FY26 CIP Small Cap Presentation to School Committee 9.20.2024.pptx



For the October 7, 2024 SC Meeting

Sudbury Public Schools Capital Request Presentation October 7.2024 with Brad Edits 10.4.2024.pptx (1)

FY26 Capital Project Submission Form - CIP_FY26_SPS 6 Haynes Roof Schematic Design Fees.xlsx - CIP

Submission Form

REVISED 10.7.2024 FY26 Capital Project Submission Form - CIP_FY26_SPS 7 Haynes Roof Replacement

and Construction Oversight Fees.xlsx - CIP Submis

FY26 Capital Project Submission Form - CIP_FY26_SPS 8 Nixon Roof Replacement and Construction

Oversight Fees

FY26 Capital Project Submission Form - CIP_FY26_SPS 9 Curtis Exterior Camera Replacements.xlsx - CIP

Submission Form

FY26 Capital Project Submission Form - CIP_FY26_SPS 10 HVAC Capital Improvements Design Fees.xlsx -

CIP Submission Form

FY26 Capital Project Submission Form - CIP_FY26_SPS 11 Fire Alarm and Emergency Lighting Systems

Design Fees Curtis_Haynes_Loring

FY26 Capital Project Submission Form - CIP_FY26_SPS 12 Entrance Mat Retrofit.xlsx - CIP Submission

Form

Action: XX Report: Discussion: XX



FY2026 Capital Project Submission Form

Project Number:  CIP_FY26_SPS-1 Example:  CIP_FY26_FAC-1 (includes Dept priority on the end, budget-level)

Project Title: Carpet Replacement Justification Code: 
Category:  Urgency of Maintnence Needs
Department / Committee: Contact: Sandra R. Duran, Combined Facility Director A-Essential 

Project Type is: New [   ]      Resubmission [  ] Recurring [   ] X B-Asset Maintenance
     Rehabilitation [X ]

C-Enhancement
Year of Initial Request:   

Legal compliance _______________ [   ] Supports Community Plan _______________ [   ]
Description & Justification / Need: Safety compliance ______________ [   ] Other  _Deferred Maintenance__ [X  ]

Anticipated Staffing Changes:  

Benefits of Project and Impact if Not Completed:

Alternatives Considered and Reasons for Non-selection: Typical Replacement Lifecycle / Service Life:   

 Discuss Operating Budget Impact:

Recommended Financing

Funding Source(s)

Funding Category Five-Year Total 
(formulas present)

Estimated Project Costs by Fiscal Year For Finance Use Only

FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Tax Levy

Study/Design $0 Dedicated Revenue Source

Land Acquisition $0 Enterprise Retained Earnings

Construction $77,000 $77,000 Capital Stabilization

Equipment/Furnishings $0 Free Cash

Contingency $0 Revolving Fund

Other (legal fees) $0 Debt In-levy

TOTAL $77,000 $77,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 Debt, Capital Exclusion
Dedicated Stab/New Growth

Amounts Approved or Received CPA

Grant Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Grant(s) _______________

CPA Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Other _________________

Net of CPA and Grants $77,000 $77,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 CPA Purpose(s)

Check all that apply

Operating Budget Impact Include additional personnel costs, if applicable. Open Space
During Project $0 Recreation
Post-Project Annual $0 Historical
Post-Project One-time $0 Housing

Estimated Total Project Cost:  Estimated Future Savings: Estimated Incremental Cost:

Other Pertinent Background Information (e.g., Quotes, Studies, Evaluations, Reports, Pictures, etc.):



FY2026 Capital Project Submission Form

Project Number:  CIP_FY26_SPS-2 Example:  CIP_FY26_FAC-1 (includes Dept priority on the end, budget-level)

Project Title: VCT Replacement Justification Code: 
Category:  Urgency of Maintnence Needs
Department / Committee: Contact:  Sandra R. Duran, Combined Facility Director A-Essential 

Project Type is: New [   ]      Resubmission [  ] Recurring [   ] X B-Asset Maintenance
     Rehabilitation [X ]

C-Enhancement
Year of Initial Request:   

Legal compliance _______________ [   ] Supports Community Plan _______________ [   ]
Description & Justification / Need: Safety compliance ______________ [   ] Other  _Deferred Maintenance_ [X ]

Anticipated Staffing Changes:  

Benefits of Project and Impact if Not Completed:

Alternatives Considered and Reasons for Non-selection: Typical Replacement Lifecycle / Service Life:   

 Discuss Operating Budget Impact:

Recommended Financing

Funding Source(s)

Funding Category Five-Year Total 
(formulas present)

Estimated Project Costs by Fiscal Year For Finance Use Only

FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Tax Levy

Study/Design $0 Dedicated Revenue Source

Land Acquisition $0 Enterprise Retained Earnings

Construction $75,000 $75,000 Capital Stabilization

Equipment/Furnishings $0 Free Cash

Contingency $0 Revolving Fund

Other (legal fees) $0 Debt In-levy

TOTAL $75,000 $75,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 Debt, Capital Exclusion
Dedicated Stab/New Growth

Amounts Approved or Received CPA

Grant Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Grant(s) _______________

CPA Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Other _________________

Net of CPA and Grants $75,000 $75,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 CPA Purpose(s)

Check all that apply

Operating Budget Impact Include additional personnel costs, if applicable. Open Space
During Project $0 Recreation
Post-Project Annual $0 Historical
Post-Project One-time $0 Housing

Estimated Total Project Cost:  Estimated Future Savings: Estimated Incremental Cost:

Other Pertinent Background Information (e.g., Quotes, Studies, Evaluations, Reports, Pictures, etc.):



FY2026 Capital Project Submission Form

Project Number:  CIP_FY26_SPS-3 Example:  CIP_FY26_FAC-1 (includes Dept priority on the end, budget-level)

Project Title: Bathroom Partitions and Replacements Justification Code: 
Category:  Urgency of Maintnence Needs
Department / Committee: Contact: Sandra R. Duran, Combined Facility Director A-Essential 

Project Type is: New [   ]      Resubmission [  ] Recurring [   ] X B-Asset Maintenance
     Rehabilitation [X ]

C-Enhancement
Year of Initial Request:   

Legal compliance _______________ [   ] Supports Community Plan _______________ [   ]
Description & Justification / Need: Safety compliance ______________ [   ] Other  _Deferred Maintenance_ [X ]

Anticipated Staffing Changes:  

Benefits of Project and Impact if Not Completed:

Alternatives Considered and Reasons for Non-selection: Typical Replacement Lifecycle / Service Life:   

 Discuss Operating Budget Impact:

Recommended Financing

Funding Source(s)

Funding Category Five-Year Total 
(formulas present)

Estimated Project Costs by Fiscal Year For Finance Use Only

FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Tax Levy

Study/Design $0 Dedicated Revenue Source

Land Acquisition $0 Enterprise Retained Earnings

Construction $58,000 $58,000 Capital Stabilization

Equipment/Furnishings $0 Free Cash

Contingency $0 Revolving Fund

Other (legal fees) $0 Debt In-levy

TOTAL $58,000 $58,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 Debt, Capital Exclusion
Dedicated Stab/New Growth

Amounts Approved or Received CPA

Grant Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Grant(s) _______________

CPA Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Other _________________

Net of CPA and Grants $58,000 $58,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 CPA Purpose(s)

Check all that apply

Operating Budget Impact Include additional personnel costs, if applicable. Open Space
During Project $0 Recreation
Post-Project Annual $0 Historical
Post-Project One-time $0 Housing

Estimated Total Project Cost:  Estimated Future Savings: Estimated Incremental Cost:

Other Pertinent Background Information (e.g., Quotes, Studies, Evaluations, Reports, Pictures, etc.):



FY2026 Capital Project Submission Form

Project Number:  CIP_FY26_SPS-4 Example:  CIP_FY26_FAC-1 (includes Dept priority on the end, budget-level)

Project Title: Painting Justification Code: 
Category:  Urgency of Maintnence Needs
Department / Committee: Contact: Sandra R. Duran, Combined Facility Director A-Essential 

Project Type is: New [   ]      Resubmission [  ] Recurring [   ] X B-Asset Maintenance
     Rehabilitation [X ]

C-Enhancement
Year of Initial Request:   

Legal compliance _______________ [   ] Supports Community Plan _______________ [   ]
Description & Justification / Need: Safety compliance ______________ [   ] Other  __Deferred Maintenance [X]

Anticipated Staffing Changes:  

Benefits of Project and Impact if Not Completed:

Alternatives Considered and Reasons for Non-selection: Typical Replacement Lifecycle / Service Life:   

 Discuss Operating Budget Impact:

Recommended Financing

Funding Source(s)

Funding Category Five-Year Total 
(formulas present)

Estimated Project Costs by Fiscal Year For Finance Use Only

FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Tax Levy

Study/Design $0 Dedicated Revenue Source

Land Acquisition $0 Enterprise Retained Earnings

Construction $50,000 $50,000 Capital Stabilization

Equipment/Furnishings $0 Free Cash

Contingency $0 Revolving Fund

Other (legal fees) $0 Debt In-levy

TOTAL $50,000 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 Debt, Capital Exclusion
Dedicated Stab/New Growth

Amounts Approved or Received CPA

Grant Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Grant(s) _______________

CPA Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Other _________________

Net of CPA and Grants $50,000 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 CPA Purpose(s)

Check all that apply

Operating Budget Impact Include additional personnel costs, if applicable. Open Space
During Project $0 Recreation
Post-Project Annual $0 Historical
Post-Project One-time $0 Housing

Estimated Total Project Cost:  Estimated Future Savings: Estimated Incremental Cost:

Other Pertinent Background Information (e.g., Quotes, Studies, Evaluations, Reports, Pictures, etc.):



FY2026 Capital Project Submission Form

Project Number:  CIP_FY26_SPS-5 Example:  CIP_FY26_FAC-1 (includes Dept priority on the end, budget-level)

Project Title: Ceiling Tile Replacement Justification Code: 
Category:  Urgency of Maintnence Needs
Department / Committee: Contact: Sandra R. Duran, Combined Facility Director A-Essential 

Project Type is: New [   ]      Resubmission [  ] Recurring [   ] X B-Asset Maintenance
     Rehabilitation [X ]

C-Enhancement
Year of Initial Request:   

Legal compliance _______________ [   ] Supports Community Plan _______________ [   ]
Description & Justification / Need: Safety compliance ______________ [   ] Other  _Deferred Maintenance [X]

Anticipated Staffing Changes:  

Benefits of Project and Impact if Not Completed:

Alternatives Considered and Reasons for Non-selection: Typical Replacement Lifecycle / Service Life:   

 Discuss Operating Budget Impact:

Recommended Financing

Funding Source(s)

Funding Category Five-Year Total 
(formulas present)

Estimated Project Costs by Fiscal Year For Finance Use Only

FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Tax Levy

Study/Design $0 Dedicated Revenue Source

Land Acquisition $0 Enterprise Retained Earnings

Construction $25,000 $25,000 Capital Stabilization

Equipment/Furnishings $0 Free Cash

Contingency $0 Revolving Fund

Other (legal fees) $0 Debt In-levy

TOTAL $25,000 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 Debt, Capital Exclusion
Dedicated Stab/New Growth

Amounts Approved or Received CPA

Grant Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Grant(s) _______________

CPA Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Other _________________

Net of CPA and Grants $25,000 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 CPA Purpose(s)

Check all that apply

Operating Budget Impact Include additional personnel costs, if applicable. Open Space
During Project $0 Recreation
Post-Project Annual $0 Historical
Post-Project One-time $0 Housing

Estimated Total Project Cost:  Estimated Future Savings: Estimated Incremental Cost:

Other Pertinent Background Information (e.g., Quotes, Studies, Evaluations, Reports, Pictures, etc.):



Sudbury Public Schools
School Committee Meeting

FY26 Town Manager Small Capital Items
Presentation by 

Sandra R. Duran, Combined Facility Director
September 23, 2024



2



SPS CIP Town Manager Small Cap Submission Summary

3



4

 

CIP-FY26-SPS-1  Carpet Replacement  $77,000.00

This is an ongoing project to replace carpet with carpet squares specifically targeting 
Haynes and Loring. This includes materials, labor, moving furniture. The work is to be 
completed when the schools are unoccupied.



5

 

     CIP-FY26-SPS-2      VCT Replacement          $75,000.00

This is an ongoing project to replace VCT flooring throughout the district with a focus on 
carpet replacements at the Curtis Middle School, Nixon Cafeteria and Haynes Kindergarten 
Room. This includes materials, labor, moving furniture. The work is to  be completed when 
the schools are unoccupied.



6

 

CIP-FY26-SPS-3  Bathroom Partitions & Replacements  $58,000.00

Repair and/or replace bathroom partitions in various buildings, specifically 
targeting Nixon Elementary.



7

 

CIP-FY26-SPS-4  Painting  $50,000.00

This is an ongoing project to paint interior and exterior surfaces.



8

 

CIP-FY26-SPS-5           Ceiling Tile Replacements        $25,000.00

This is an ongoing project to replace ceiling tiles in various schools.



9

Questions?



Sudbury Public Schools
School Committee Meeting

FY26 Town Manager Capital Items
Presentation by 

Sandra R. Duran, Combined Facility Director
October 7, 2024

1



FY26 Capital Improvement Project Submissions (CIPS)

2



FY26 CIP-FY26-SPS 6 Haynes Roof Schematic Design Fees - 
$100,000.00

3

August 20, 2024 MSBA Site Visit



FY26 CIP-FY26-SPS 7 Haynes Roof Replacement - 
$3,335,000.00

4



FY26 CIP-FY26-SPS 8 Nixon Roof Replacement -  
$2,600,000.00

5



June 2013
Roof area (white) replaced with new 
PVC single-ply roof system

July 2015
Front entrance shingle area 
removed and replaced with new 
shingles

October 2023
TMWA 11 Request to replace 
remaining EPDM Roof areas

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



FY26 CIP-FY26-SPS 9 Curtis Exterior Surveillance Camera Replacements - $45,000.00

13

● Decommissioning and replacement of existing exterior cameras, 
switches and required licensing.

● Optimize camera view field to help provide safety of the buildings 
and for students and staff.



FY26 CIP-FY26-SPS 10 HVAC Capital Improvement Engineering Study - $152,000.00 

14



FY26 CIP-FY26-SPS 10 HVAC Capital Improvement Engineering Study - $152,000.00 

15



FY26 CIP-FY26-SPS 11  Fire Alarm, Emergency Lighting Design Fees - TBD

16



FY26 CIP-FY26-SPS 11  Fire Alarm, Emergency Lighting Design Fees

• Documentation of the existing fire alarm systems currently installed throughout the middle
     and elementary schools.
• Design of the proposed voice activated addressable fire alarm system throughout the existing schools.
• Complete Fire Alarm system design throughout the buildings to meet the requirements of NFPA 72 – 

2013, IBC-2015 International Building Code, 527CMR Massachusetts State Building Code, Life Safety 
101.

• Preparation of Schematic Design Documents consisting of Fire Alarm Drawings and related specification 
for the proposed systems to allow for contractor bidding and related installation.

• Stamped drawings, Construction Control Affidavit and Fire Alarm Narrative.
• Coordination during design and construction with the Owner, to design and implement the necessary 

support of the above referenced systems.
• Coordination during design with the Town of Sudbury Fire Department to ensure that their requirements 

are met prior to contractor pricing.
• Construction support services consisting of contractor question resolution during the pricing
     stage.

17



FY26 CIP-FY26-SPS 12  Entrance Mat Retrofit – Existing Conditions

18



FY26 CIP-FY26-SPS 12  All Schools Entrance Mat Retrofit - $80,000.00

19



Thank you for your attention.

Questions?

20



FY2026 Capital Project Submission Form

Project Number:  CIP_FY26_SPS-6 Example:  CIP_FY26_FAC-1 (includes Dept priority on the end, budget-level)

Project Title: Haynes Roof Schematic Design Fees Justification Code: 
Category:  Urgency of Maintnence Needs
Department / Committee: Contact: Sandra R. Duran, Combined Facility Director A-Essential 

Project Type is: New [   ]      Resubmission [  ] Recurring [   ] X B-Asset Maintenance
     Rehabilitation [X ]

C-Enhancement
Year of Initial Request:   

Legal compliance _______________ [   ] Supports Community Plan _______________ [   ]
Description & Justification / Need: Safety compliance ______________ [   ] Other  _Deferred Maintenance [X]

Anticipated Staffing Changes:  

Benefits of Project and Impact if Not Completed:

Alternatives Considered and Reasons for Non-selection: Typical Replacement Lifecycle / Service Life:   10

 Discuss Operating Budget Impact:

Recommended Financing

Funding Source(s)

Funding Category Five-Year Total 
(formulas present)

Estimated Project Costs by Fiscal Year For Finance Use Only

FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Tax Levy

Study/Design $0 Dedicated Revenue Source

Land Acquisition $0 Enterprise Retained Earnings

Construction $0 $0 Capital Stabilization

Equipment/Furnishings $0 Free Cash

Contingency $0 Revolving Fund

Other (legal fees) $0 Debt In-levy

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Debt, Capital Exclusion
Dedicated Stab/New Growth

Amounts Approved or Received CPA

Grant Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Grant(s) _______________

CPA Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Other _________________

Net of CPA and Grants $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 CPA Purpose(s)

Check all that apply

Operating Budget Impact Include additional personnel costs, if applicable. Open Space
During Project $0 Recreation
Post-Project Annual $0 Historical
Post-Project One-time $0 Housing

Estimated Total Project Cost:  Estimated Future Savings: Estimated Incremental Cost:

Other Pertinent Background Information (e.g., Quotes, Studies, Evaluations, Reports, Pictures, etc.):



FY2026 Capital Project Submission Form

Project Number:  CIP_FY26_SPS-7 Example:  CIP_FY26_FAC-1 (includes Dept priority on the end, budget-level)

Project Title: Josiah Haynes Elementary Roof Replacement and Construction Oversight Fees Justification Code: 
Category:  Urgency of Maintnence Needs
Department / Committee: Contact: Sandra R. Duran, Combined Facility Director A-Essential 

Project Type is: New [   ]      Resubmission [  ] Recurring [   ] X B-Asset Maintenance
     Rehabilitation [X ]

C-Enhancement
Year of Initial Request:   

Legal compliance _______________ [   ] Supports Community Plan _______________ [   ]
Description & Justification / Need: Safety compliance ______________ [   ] Other  _Deferred Maintenance [X]

Anticipated Staffing Changes:  

Benefits of Project and Impact if Not Completed:

Alternatives Considered and Reasons for Non-selection: Typical Replacement Lifecycle / Service Life:   25

 Discuss Operating Budget Impact:

Recommended Financing

Funding Source(s)

Funding Category Five-Year Total 
(formulas present)

Estimated Project Costs by Fiscal Year For Finance Use Only

FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Tax Levy

Study/Design $0 Dedicated Revenue Source

Land Acquisition $0 Enterprise Retained Earnings

Construction $3,335,000 $3,335,000 Capital Stabilization

Equipment/Furnishings $0 Free Cash

Contingency $0 Revolving Fund

Other (legal fees) $0 Debt In-levy

TOTAL $3,335,000 $3,335,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 Debt, Capital Exclusion
Dedicated Stab/New Growth

Amounts Approved or Received CPA

Grant Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Grant(s) _______________

CPA Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Other _________________

Net of CPA and Grants $3,335,000 $3,335,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 CPA Purpose(s)

Check all that apply

Operating Budget Impact Include additional personnel costs, if applicable. Open Space
During Project $0 Recreation
Post-Project Annual $0 Historical
Post-Project One-time $0 Housing

Estimated Total Project Cost:  $3,424,702 Estimated Future Savings: Estimated Incremental Cost:

Other Pertinent Background Information (e.g., Quotes, Studies, Evaluations, Reports, Pictures, etc.):



FY2026 Capital Project Submission Form

Project Number:  CIP_FY26_SPS-8 Example:  CIP_FY26_FAC-1 (includes Dept priority on the end, budget-level)

Project Title: General John Nixon Elementary Roof Replacement and Construction Oversight Fees Justification Code: 
Category:  Urgency of Maintnence Needs
Department / Committee: Contact: Sandra R. Duran, Combined Facility Director A-Essential 

Project Type is: New [   ]      Resubmission [  ] Recurring [   ] X B-Asset Maintenance
     Rehabilitation [X ]

C-Enhancement
Year of Initial Request:   

Legal compliance _______________ [   ] Supports Community Plan _______________ [   ]
Description & Justification / Need: Safety compliance ______________ [   ] Other  _Deferred Maintenance [X]

Anticipated Staffing Changes:  

Benefits of Project and Impact if Not Completed:

Alternatives Considered and Reasons for Non-selection: Typical Replacement Lifecycle / Service Life:   25

 Discuss Operating Budget Impact:

Recommended Financing

Funding Source(s)

Funding Category Five-Year Total 
(formulas present)

Estimated Project Costs by Fiscal Year For Finance Use Only

FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Tax Levy

Study/Design $0 Dedicated Revenue Source

Land Acquisition $0 Enterprise Retained Earnings

Construction $2,722,500 $2,722,500 Capital Stabilization

Equipment/Furnishings $0 Free Cash

Contingency $0 Revolving Fund

Other (legal fees) $0 Debt In-levy

TOTAL $2,722,500 $2,722,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 Debt, Capital Exclusion
Dedicated Stab/New Growth

Amounts Approved or Received CPA

Grant Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Grant(s) _______________

CPA Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Other _________________

Net of CPA and Grants $2,722,500 $2,722,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 CPA Purpose(s)

Check all that apply

Operating Budget Impact Include additional personnel costs, if applicable. Open Space
During Project $0 Recreation
Post-Project Annual $0 Historical
Post-Project One-time $0 Housing

Estimated Total Project Cost:  $2,929,530 Estimated Future Savings: Estimated Incremental Cost:

Other Pertinent Background Information (e.g., Quotes, Studies, Evaluations, Reports, Pictures, etc.):



FY2026 Capital Project Submission Form

Project Number:  CIP_FY26_SPS-9 Example:  CIP_FY26_FAC-1 (includes Dept priority on the end, budget-level)

Project Title: Curtis Exterior Surveliance Camera Replacement Justification Code: 
Category:  Urgency of Maintnence Needs
Department / Committee: Contact: Sandra R. Duran, Combined Facility Director A-Essential 

Project Type is: New [   ]      Resubmission [  ] Recurring [   ] X B-Asset Maintenance
     Rehabilitation [X ]

C-Enhancement
Year of Initial Request:   

Legal compliance _______________ [   ] Supports Community Plan _______________ [   ]
Description & Justification / Need: Safety compliance ______________ [   ] Other  _Deferred Maintenance [X]

Anticipated Staffing Changes:  

Benefits of Project and Impact if Not Completed:

Alternatives Considered and Reasons for Non-selection: Typical Replacement Lifecycle / Service Life:   10

 Discuss Operating Budget Impact:

Recommended Financing

Funding Source(s)

Funding Category Five-Year Total 
(formulas present)

Estimated Project Costs by Fiscal Year For Finance Use Only

FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Tax Levy

Study/Design $0 Dedicated Revenue Source

Land Acquisition $0 Enterprise Retained Earnings

Construction $45,000 $45,000 Capital Stabilization

Equipment/Furnishings $0 Free Cash

Contingency $0 Revolving Fund

Other (legal fees) $0 Debt In-levy

TOTAL $45,000 $45,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 Debt, Capital Exclusion
Dedicated Stab/New Growth

Amounts Approved or Received CPA

Grant Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Grant(s) _______________

CPA Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Other _________________

Net of CPA and Grants $45,000 $45,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 CPA Purpose(s)

Check all that apply

Operating Budget Impact Include additional personnel costs, if applicable. Open Space
During Project $0 Recreation
Post-Project Annual $0 Historical
Post-Project One-time $0 Housing

Estimated Total Project Cost:  Estimated Future Savings: Estimated Incremental Cost:

Other Pertinent Background Information (e.g., Quotes, Studies, Evaluations, Reports, Pictures, etc.):



FY2026 Capital Project Submission Form

Project Number:  CIP_FY26_SPS-10 Example:  CIP_FY26_FAC-1 (includes Dept priority on the end, budget-level)

Project Title:  HVAC Capital Improvmenet Engineering Study Justification Code: 
Category:  Urgency of Maintnence Needs
Department / Committee: Contact: Sandra R. Duran, Combined Facility Director A-Essential 

Project Type is: New [   ]      Resubmission [  ] Recurring [   ] X B-Asset Maintenance
     Rehabilitation [X ]

C-Enhancement
Year of Initial Request:   

Legal compliance _______________ [   ] Supports Community Plan _______________ [   ]
Description & Justification / Need: Safety compliance ______________ [   ] Other  _Deferred Maintenance [X]

Anticipated Staffing Changes:  

Benefits of Project and Impact if Not Completed:

Alternatives Considered and Reasons for Non-selection: Typical Replacement Lifecycle / Service Life:   10

 Discuss Operating Budget Impact:

Recommended Financing

Funding Source(s)

Funding Category Five-Year Total 
(formulas present)

Estimated Project Costs by Fiscal Year For Finance Use Only

FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Tax Levy

Study/Design $152,000 $152,000 Dedicated Revenue Source

Land Acquisition $0 Enterprise Retained Earnings

Construction $0 $0 Capital Stabilization

Equipment/Furnishings $0 Free Cash

Contingency $0 Revolving Fund

Other (legal fees) $0 Debt In-levy

TOTAL $152,000 $152,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 Debt, Capital Exclusion
Dedicated Stab/New Growth

Amounts Approved or Received CPA

Grant Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Grant(s) _______________

CPA Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Other _________________

Net of CPA and Grants $152,000 $152,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 CPA Purpose(s)

Check all that apply

Operating Budget Impact Include additional personnel costs, if applicable. Open Space
During Project $0 Recreation
Post-Project Annual $0 Historical
Post-Project One-time $0 Housing

Estimated Total Project Cost:  $152,000 Estimated Future Savings: Estimated Incremental Cost:

Other Pertinent Background Information (e.g., Quotes, Studies, Evaluations, Reports, Pictures, etc.):



FY2026 Capital Project Submission Form

Project Number:  CIP_FY26_SPS-11 Example:  CIP_FY26_FAC-1 (includes Dept priority on the end, budget-level)

Project Title: Fire Alarm, Emergency Lighting and BDA Systems Design Fees Justification Code: 
Category:  Urgency of Maintnence Needs
Department / Committee: Contact: Sandra R. Duran, Combined Facility Director A-Essential 

Project Type is: New [   ]      Resubmission [  ] Recurring [   ] X B-Asset Maintenance
     Rehabilitation [X ]

C-Enhancement
Year of Initial Request:   

Legal compliance _______________ [   ] Supports Community Plan _______________ [   ]
Description & Justification / Need: Safety compliance ______________ [   ] Other  _Deferred Maintenance [X]

Anticipated Staffing Changes:  

Benefits of Project and Impact if Not Completed:

Alternatives Considered and Reasons for Non-selection: Typical Replacement Lifecycle / Service Life:   10

 Discuss Operating Budget Impact:

Recommended Financing

Funding Source(s)

Funding Category Five-Year Total 
(formulas present)

Estimated Project Costs by Fiscal Year For Finance Use Only

FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Tax Levy

Study/Design $0 Dedicated Revenue Source

Land Acquisition $0 Enterprise Retained Earnings

Construction $0 $0 Capital Stabilization

Equipment/Furnishings $0 Free Cash

Contingency $0 Revolving Fund

Other (legal fees) $0 Debt In-levy

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Debt, Capital Exclusion
Dedicated Stab/New Growth

Amounts Approved or Received CPA

Grant Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Grant(s) _______________

CPA Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Other _________________

Net of CPA and Grants $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 CPA Purpose(s)

Check all that apply

Operating Budget Impact Include additional personnel costs, if applicable. Open Space
During Project $0 Recreation
Post-Project Annual $0 Historical
Post-Project One-time $0 Housing

Estimated Total Project Cost:  Estimated Future Savings: Estimated Incremental Cost:

Other Pertinent Background Information (e.g., Quotes, Studies, Evaluations, Reports, Pictures, etc.):



FY2026 Capital Project Submission Form

Project Number:  CIP_FY26_SPS-12 Example:  CIP_FY26_FAC-1 (includes Dept priority on the end, budget-level)

Project Title: Entrance Mat Retrofit - Curtis, Haynes, Loring and Noyes Justification Code: 
Category:  Urgency of Maintnence Needs
Department / Committee: Contact: Sandra R. Duran, Combined Facility Director A-Essential 

Project Type is: New [   ]      Resubmission [  ] Recurring [   ] X B-Asset Maintenance
     Rehabilitation [X ]

C-Enhancement
Year of Initial Request:   

Legal compliance _______________ [   ] Supports Community Plan _______________ [   ]
Description & Justification / Need: Safety compliance ______________ [   ] Other  _Deferred Maintenance [X]

Anticipated Staffing Changes:  

Benefits of Project and Impact if Not Completed:

Alternatives Considered and Reasons for Non-selection: Typical Replacement Lifecycle / Service Life:   10

 Discuss Operating Budget Impact:

Recommended Financing

Funding Source(s)

Funding Category Five-Year Total 
(formulas present)

Estimated Project Costs by Fiscal Year For Finance Use Only

FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 Tax Levy

Study/Design $0 Dedicated Revenue Source

Land Acquisition $0 Enterprise Retained Earnings

Construction $0 $0 Capital Stabilization

Equipment/Furnishings $0 Free Cash

Contingency $0 Revolving Fund

Other (legal fees) $0 Debt In-levy

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Debt, Capital Exclusion
Dedicated Stab/New Growth

Amounts Approved or Received CPA

Grant Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Grant(s) _______________

CPA Amount Approved/Rvc'd $0 Other _________________

Net of CPA and Grants $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 CPA Purpose(s)

Check all that apply

Operating Budget Impact Include additional personnel costs, if applicable. Open Space
During Project $0 Recreation
Post-Project Annual $0 Historical
Post-Project One-time $0 Housing

Estimated Total Project Cost:  Estimated Future Savings: Estimated Incremental Cost:

Other Pertinent Background Information (e.g., Quotes, Studies, Evaluations, Reports, Pictures, etc.):



Sudbury Public Schools

School Committee Meeting

Date: October 7, 2024

Agenda Item: 4b

Fee Approval for Unified Games

Recommendation:

Add a Unified Games fee of $65 to the School Committee fee list.

Background

Information:

Last school year, we ran a pilot Unified Games for basketball. The pilot

was very successful with 18 students participating. In order to continue

to participate in the program and move to a more sustainable model, a

$65 participation fee is recommended. The $65 fee is based on the

District’s current fee structure and prorated for the length of the

program.

Attachments:

Action: XX Report: Discussion: XX



Sudbury Public Schools

School Committee Meeting

Date: October 7, 2024

Agenda Item: 4c

Approval of Grant for Grading for Equity Facilitation

Recommendation:

Move to approve a grant for the project Facilitation and Consultation

Support for Grading for Equity for Ephraim Curtis Middle School in the

amount of $5,000.00 awarded to Sudbury Public Schools by the Sudbury

Foundation.

Background

Information:

Attachments:

Sudbury Foundation Grant Award Status

Action: XX Report: Discussion: XX



Julie Williams <julie_williams@sudbury.k12.ma.us>

[cabinet] Fwd: Sudbury Foundation Grant Award Status
Leslie Smart <leslie_smart@sudbury.k12.ma.us> Thu, Sep 26, 2024 at 2:00 PM
To: Julie Williams <julie_williams@sudbury.k12.ma.us>

Hi Julie,

We were awarded the grant that I was able to submit during the summer with your help!  Brad told me to send this info to
you, so we can get it on the School Committee agenda to accept.  Thank you so much.

Leslie

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: The Sudbury Foundation <administrator@grantinterface.com>
Date: Mon, Sep 23, 2024 at 12:57 PM
Subject: Sudbury Foundation Grant Award Status
To: <leslie_smart@sudbury.k12.ma.us>
Cc: <brunner@sudburyfoundation.org>

 
Dear Leslie,

Congratulations! I am delighted to inform you that the Sudbury Foundation has awarded Sudbury
Public Schools a $5,000.00  grant for the project Facilitation and Consultation Support for
Grading for Equity for Ephraim Curtis Middle School. 

Please log in to Sudbury Foundation's online grant system to review and complete the
agreement as part of your grant requirements.

Follow these steps to complete the contract:

1. Logon with your username (leslie_smart@sudbury.k12.ma.us) and password.
2. Once logged in, you will be on the Applicant Dashboard.
3. Below your application, you will see that it reads Acknowledgement Form. Click on the Start

button to the right of the form. Please complete and submit the form as soon as possible.

The check will be mailed directly from the Bank of America in a few weeks. Once you receive the check,
please logon to our system and complete the Grant Check Receipt form found on your dashboard.

While we will not be asking for a formal grant report, we hope you will share the results of your efforts
by completing the JEDI Grant Update which can be found on your dashboard.

Please contact us if you have any questions.

My best,

Sonia Shah
Executive Director
Sudbury Foundation
shah@sudburyfoundation.org
978-443-0849

mailto:administrator@grantinterface.com
mailto:administrator@grantinterface.com
mailto:leslie_smart@sudbury.k12.ma.us
mailto:leslie_smart@sudbury.k12.ma.us
mailto:brunner@sudburyfoundation.org
https://sandbox.grantinterface.com/Email/%7B%7BUrl.Logon%7D%7D
https://www.grantinterface.com/Home/Logon?urlkey=sudburymagrants
mailto:leslie_smart@sudbury.k12.ma.us
mailto:leslie_smart@sudbury.k12.ma.us
mailto:shah@sudburyfoundation.org


 Sudbury Public Schools 
 School Committee Meeting 

 Date:  October 7, 2024 

 Agenda Item:  4d 

 Food Service and SED Contracts 

 Recommendation: 

 Approve the two one-year extensions for both vendor contracts. 

 Background 
 Information: 

 Each vendor contract has two one-year options to extend the agreement. 
 Without exercising an extension, both agreements would end June 30, 
 2025. 

 Attachments: 

 Sudbury-Whitsons FSMC Agreement SY 2022-23 

 SED Signed Contract_021422 

 Action:  XX  Report:  Discussion:  XX 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 1 

FOOD SERVICE AGREEMENT 

THIS FOOD SERVICE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made as of August 29, 2022 , by 

and between the SUDBURY PUBLIC SCHOOLS (the “School Food Authority” or “SFA”), having 

a principal place of operations at 40 Fairbank Road, Sudbury, MA 01776-5606, and WHITSONS 

NUTRITION, LLC having a principal place of business at 1800 Motor Parkway, Islandia, New York 

(“Whitsons” or “FSMC”).  The SFA and Whitsons are each referred to herein as a “Party” and, 

collectively, as the “Parties”. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the SFA has advertised for and has solicited proposals pursuant to a Request for 

Proposal (“RFP”) for the purpose of managing and operating the SFA’s food service program for the 

SFA’s students, employees, visitors and guests at its premises located at all of the campuses within the 

jurisdiction of the SFA (each and collectively, the “Facility”); and 

WHEREAS, Whitsons submitted a proposal (the “Proposal”) and was selected as the 

successful vendor in the RFP process; and  

WHEREAS, the Parties agree that the terms and conditions under which Whitsons will provide 

such services shall be incorporated into this written Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements set forth below and other good 

and valuable consideration, acknowledged by each of the parties to be satisfactory and adequate, 

Whitsons and the SFA agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. PURPOSE OF THE CONTRACT 

1.1 Appointment of Whitsons. The SFA hereby retains Whitsons and grants to Whitsons the 

exclusive right to provide and manage the SFA’s Food Service Program, all as more fully described in 

Section 5 below. 

 

1.2 General Purpose. Whitsons will be responsible for all of the SFA’s Food Service 

Program and will act in good faith and according to industry standards to prepare and serve wholesome 

and nutritious meals to the reasonable satisfaction of the SFA in accordance with the RFP and this 

Agreement. Whitsons shall comply with the applicable provisions of the National School Lunch Act as 

amended, the School Breakfast Program and the Department of Agriculture regulations and any 

requirements imposed by any applicable state agency. 

 

1.3 Independent Contractor. Whitsons shall be an independent contractor and shall retain 

control over its employees and agents. No employee, agent or representative of Whitsons shall be 

entitled to receive any benefits of employment with the SFA, including, without limitation, salary, 

overtime, vacation pay, holiday pay, sick leave, health insurance, life insurance, pension or deferred 

compensation. Whitsons shall be free to perform services for any other SFA, company or organization 

during the term of this Agreement; nothing herein, however, shall relieve Whitsons of its contractual 

obligations under the remainder of this Agreement. 

 

1.4 Regulation and Access.  The SFA may supervise and regulate Whitsons’ daily operation 

of the Food Service Program with respect to all matters (including working conditions for the Food 

Service Program employees and safety, sanitation, and maintenance of the Food Service Program 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 2 

facilities).  The SFA may make reasonable regulations with regard to all such matters, and shall give 

Whitsons written notice thereof. 

 

 1.5  Contract Documents.  Whitsons shall perform the services and/or shall deliver the 

goods as set forth in the specifications in the solicitation documents. The provisions of the solicitation 

documents, including, without limitation, the RFP (including Instructions, Form for Proposal, General 

Conditions and Specifications, as applicable) and the Proposal, are incorporated herein by reference.  

In the event of a conflict between a provision of any of those documents and a provision of this 

Agreement, the following order of interpretation preference shall govern: (i) this Agreement, (ii) the 

RFP, (iii) the Proposal. To the extent any provision of this Agreement required by law is inconsistent 

with other, non-statutory sections in this Agreement, any statutorily-mandated provisions contained 

herein shall control. 

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS 

In addition to other capitalized terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, the following terms 

shall be defined as set forth below: 

 

2.1 Accounting Period: All accounting periods shall be based on actual calendar month. 

 

2.2 Cash Equivalents:  An amount equal to the Operating Expenses attributable to those 

special functions of SFA for which there are no cash receipts. 

 

2.3 Charge: A fee established by Whitsons for goods or services provided by Whitsons. 

 

2.4 Deficit: The excess of the total of Operating Expenses and Management & 

Administrative Fees over Net Sales. 

 

2.5 Equivalency Factor:  The amount of $4.0575 used to determine the number of Meal 

Equivalents served by Whitsons. If this Agreement is renewed after the Initial Term and if the Equivalency 

Factor changes in any Renewal Term, Whitsons will receive an automatic adjustment to its Administrative 

Fee to equitably compensate Whitsons for the loss of Administrative Fee due to the change in the 

Equivalency Factor.   

 

2.6 Food Service Program: The preparation, service and sale of food, beverages, and other 

related items at the Facility, and general operation of the food services at the Facility.  

 

2.7 General Support Services Allowance: Allowance for overhead services provided by 

Whitsons for (i) the supervision of Whitsons employees by executives not assigned to the Food Service 

Program; and (ii) General support provided by Whitsons’ accounting, tax, marketing, training, human 

resource, law and internal audit departments.  The General Support Services Allowance is also referred 

to in this Agreement as the Administrative Fee. 

 

2.8 Gross Hourly Wages:  The total wages earned by an hourly employee (including 

overtime) without deducting taxes or other items. 

 

2.9 Gross Management Salary:  The total salary earned by a salaried employee, including 

bonuses, if any, without deducting taxes or any other items. 

 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 3 

2.10 Gross Salaries and Wages:  The total of Gross Management Salary and Gross Hourly 

Wages. 

 

2.11 Gross Sales:  All sales of food, beverages, and other related items in the Food Service 

Program, plus sales and use taxes and federal and state reimbursements. 

 

2.12 Meal Equivalent:  A meal provided by Whitsons determined by dividing the total of cash 

receipts, other than from sales of National School Lunch and Breakfast Program meals or Cash 

Equivalents, by the Equivalency Factor. 

 

2.13 Net Sales:  Gross Sales, less sales and use taxes. 

 

2.14 Opening Expenses:  All costs, charges and expenses relating to the opening of the Food 

Service Program including, but not limited to, pre-opening labor expenses, supervisory and training 

expenses including travel, meals, lodging expenses, charges for finance and operating manuals, 

advertising, forms, opening promotions and opening office supplies. 

 

2.15 Operating Budget: The budget prepared by the FSMC and approved by the SFA for the 

operation of the Food Service Program during the applicable school year, which includes the Operating 

Expenses, the Management Fee and the Administrative Fee. 

 

2.16 Operating Expenses:  All costs, charges and expenses incurred in connection with the 

Food Service Program including, but not limited to, the following:  (i) Goods, including food, 

beverages, merchandise and supplies, and the distribution of such goods;  (ii) Labor, including Gross 

Salaries and Wages, taxes (e.g. FUTA, FICA, SUI, disability, worker’s compensation, etc.), benefits, 

retirement plans and the cost of administering such plans and services; (iii) Other costs, charges and 

expenses related to the Food Service Program, including, but not limited to, Opening Expenses, 

medical benefits charges for workers’ compensation, fingerprinting and background check expenses for 

employees assigned to the Facility, business insurance (e.g. comprehensive liability, property, 

umbrella, etc.) and other insurance (including performance bond) maintained pursuant to the 

Agreement; sales and use taxes; and costs of licenses, permits, overnight delivery, if necessary, 

Smallwares, minor equipment, repair and maintenance of equipment and other services related to the 

Food Service Program.   

 

2.17 Pattern Meal:  A meal eligible for government reimbursement. 

 

2.18 Smallwares:  Dishware, glassware, flatware, utensils and similar items used in 

connection with the Food Service Program. 

 

2.19 Surplus: The excess of Net Sales over the total of Operating Expenses and Management 

& Administrative Fees. 

 

SECTION 3. COMMENCEMENT & TERMINATION  

3.1 Commencement and Term. The term of this Agreement shall be for one (1) year 

beginning on July 1, 2022 and continuing until June 30, 2023 (the “Initial Term”) unless terminated 

by either Party as hereinafter provided. The Parties may by mutual agreement renew this Agreement 

for up to four (4) successive one (1) year renewal periods (each a “Renewal Term and, collectively 

with the Initial Term, the “Term”).  [7 CFR 210.16(d)] SFA will endeavor to give FSMC written 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 4 

notice at least sixty (60) days prior to expiration of the Term of its intent to renew or not renew this 

Agreement for a Renewal Term.  Any extension or renewal of this Agreement shall be contingent upon 

the fulfillment of all provisions relating to USDA donated foods in accordance with this Agreement. 

      3.2 Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement with or without Cause by 

giving sixty (60) days’ notice in writing to the other party of its intention to do so.   [7 CFR 210.16(d); 

OMB Circular No. A-102, 7 CFR Part 3016.36(i)] 
 

3.3 Cause; Force Majeure. If either Party breaches any provision hereof (“Cause”), the non-

breaching Party shall give the other Party written notice of such Cause and of its intention to terminate 

the Agreement as contemplated in section 3.2. If the Cause is remedied within sixty (60) days of 

receipt of notice, the notice shall be considered satisfied and withdrawn. If such Cause is not remedied 

within such 60-days’ notice period, the Party giving notice shall have the right to terminate the 

Agreement at the expiration of such 60-day notice period. However, neither Party shall be responsible 

to the other for any losses or failure to perform its respective obligations under the Agreement (except 

for a payment obligation) when such failure is caused by conditions beyond the Party’s reasonable 

control or other force majeure event, such as fire, explosion, water, act of God, civil disorder or 

disturbances, labor disputes, vandalism, war, riot, sabotage, weather and energy related closings, 

governmental rules, and regulations or like causes beyond the reasonable control of such party or the 

damage or destruction of real or personal property of such causes.  

 

3.4 Penalty Provision for Breach. If a Party has breached the terms of this Agreement, and 

the breaching Party has not cured the breach as set forth in Section 3.3, the Party affected by such 

breach may elect to pursue any and all available administrative, contract or legal remedy, or the 

following sanctions: (i) for a first violation, a written reprimand; (ii) for a second violation, a $25.00 

penalty; or (iii) for a third violation, a $50.00 penalty. For the purposes of the foregoing, a single 

violation means an event of the same or similar kind, no matter the duration or numbers of personnel, 

equipment, students or meals involved. In the event the SFA is the breaching party, the aforesaid 

sanctions shall not be paid out of the non-profit food service account. [7 CFR 210.16(b)b); 7 CFR 

Part 3016] 

 

SECTION 4.   MANAGEMENT SERVICES & SPECIAL FUNCTIONS 

4.1 Management Services. Whitsons will provide all management, administrative and 

dietetic services required for the efficient supervision and operation of SFA’s Food Service Program at 

all SFA locations set forth in the RFP. The resident food service director’s salary (including bonus, if 

any) and fringe benefits will be a direct reimbursable cost of operation. 

 

4.2 Special Functions. Whitsons will provide food services for administration and student 

related functions as reasonably requested by the SFA. Such requests must be received at least ten (10) 

days prior to the date of the function. All food and labor costs for these functions will be billed directly 

to the school organization involved, unless otherwise specified by the SFA, and shall not be supported 

by the nonprofit foodservice account funds. Labor costs billed for these special functions shall not be 

double billed to the Food Service Program.  Any special arrangements regarding other costs which 

might be incurred at these functions may be negotiated between Whitsons and the organization. The 

Parties understand and agree that the Charges for these special functions shall be separate and apart 

from the Management Fee, Administrative Fee and other costs of operating the Food Service Program.  

 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 5 

SECTION 5.   FOOD SERVICE; FSMC RESPONSIBILITIES  

5.1 Meal Program.  Whitsons shall provide nutritional breakfasts (if applicable), lunches, 

milk service (if applicable) and à la carte items at all SFA locations set forth in the RFP in accordance 

with the following terms and conditions:  (i) Food shall be prepared in the SFA’s food service facilities 

for service at the Premises; (ii) Prices to be charged for meals during the Term shall be approved by the 

SFA; (iii) Prices for à la carte items, faculty and staff meals, snack foods and beverages shall be 

approved by the SFA; (iv) All free and reduced price lunches and all ticketed lunches shall be 

administered by Whitsons on behalf of the SFA.  In order to offer à la carte food service, Whitsons 

shall also offer free, reduced price and paid reimbursable meals to all eligible children. [7 CFR § 

210.16(a)] The SFA shall be responsible for establishing and notifying parents and guardians of 

program criteria for providing free and reduced price meals for eligible students.  It shall be the joint 

responsibility of SFA and Whitsons to protect the anonymity of children receiving free or reduced price 

meals and to establish methods for insuring such anonymity. Nothing herein, however, shall allow 

either the SFA or Whitsons to violate any provision of the Commonwealth’s Public Records law, 

M.G.L. c. 66, §10 and M.G.L. c. 4, §7, the Federal Education Privacy Rights Act (FERPA), or any 

other federal or state law. The SFA and the FSMC may agree in writing to add other locations to the 

extent such addition does not constitute a material change to this Agreement. 

 

5.2 Special Diets.  Whitsons shall supply any special diets for students required for medical 

reasons when prescribed and approved in writing by a licensed medical authority for students with a 

disability in accordance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and attendant regulations.  

A medical statement shall be signed by the licensed medical authority and shall include include (x) 

information about the child’s physical or mental impairment that is sufficient to allow the SFA to 

understand how it restricts the child’s diet; (y) an explanation of what must be done to accommodate 

the child’s disability; and (z) if appropriate, the food or foods to be omitted and recommended 

alternatives.  The SFA shall then communicate the information to Whitsons as may be strictly 

necessary and sufficient to allow Whitsons to prepare any requested medically necessary special diets.  

Any additional cost incurred to provide substitutions shall be considered allowable costs of the food 

service program, and the SFA shall reimburse Whitsons therefor. 

 

5.3 Food Committee and Advisory Board.  Whitsons shall participate in Food Committee 

meetings at dates and times agreed upon by Whitsons and the Food Committee members.  Whitsons 

shall cooperate with the SFA in the establishment of an advisory board (“Advisory Board”) composed 

of such members as the SFA shall designate, including parents, teachers, students and a Whitsons’ 

representative, to assist in planning menus. [7 CFR 210.16(a)(8)] 

 

5.4 Menus. Whitsons shall consult with the Advisory Board regarding the overall operation 

of the SFA’s Food Service Program, including menus. Whitsons will submit and adhere to a 21-day 

cycle menu developed in accordance with the meal pattern requirements specified in 7 CFR Part 210, 

for approval to the SFA. Any menu changes may only be made with the approval of the SFA. Seasonal 

changes, special school programs, or shifts in student preferences shall be taken into consideration in 

menu preparation. All menus will be nutritionally acceptable to the SFA and in accordance with 

applicable regulations.    

  

5.5 Nutrition Education. Whitsons shall promote the nutritional education aspects of the 

SFA’s Food Service Program and cooperate in the efforts of the SFA to coordinate these aspects with 

classroom instruction. 

 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 6 

5.6 Resource Management (Compliance with Revenue from non-program foods):  For all 

contracts, including fixed price per meal contracts, awarded on a per meal basis and with revenues 

from non-program foods sales converted into meal equivalents to which the fixed price cost is applied, 

the FSMC will annually provide information on food costs and revenues, including the food costs for 

reimbursable meals, food cost for non-program foods, revenue from non-program foods, and total 

revenue. [7CFR §210.14] 

 

SECTION 6. EMPLOYEES 

 

6.1 Personnel Obligations. Whitsons shall be responsible for its employees on its payroll 

including, but not limited to, responsibility for recruitment, employment, promotion, payment of 

wages, pension benefits, layoffs and termination, and shall comply with all applicable laws and 

regulations related thereto. Whitsons’ employees and agents shall comply with and observe all 

applicable rules and regulations concerning conduct on the premises which the SFA imposes upon its 

employees and agents. Whitsons shall prepare and process the payroll for its employees and shall 

withhold and pay all applicable federal and state employment taxes and payroll insurance relating to its 

employees including, but not limited to, income, social security and unemployment taxes and worker’s 

compensation costs and charges. The SFA has no authority to resolve disputes between Whitsons and 

its employees.  

 

6.2 Equal Opportunity Employer; Civil Rights. (a)  Neither Party shall discriminate because 

of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, creed, disability, or status as a Vietnam veteran, sexual 

orientation (provided that the object of such orientation is not a minor), genetic status, gender identity 

or other protected class, all as defined and prohibited by applicable law, in the recruitment, selection, 

training, utilization, promotion, termination or other employment related activities concerning Food 

Service employees.  Whitsons shall conform with all civil rights requirements applicable to SFA in the 

conduct of the Food Service Program.  In addition, Whitsons affirms that it is an equal opportunity and 

affirmative action employer and shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and 

regulations including, but not limited to, Executive Order 11246 as amended by 11375 and 12086; 

12138; 11625; 11758; 12073; the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; the Vietnam Era Veterans 

Readjustment Assistance Act of 1975; Civil Rights Act of 1964; Equal Pay Act of 1963; Age 

Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967; Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986; Public Law 

95-507; the Americans with Disabilities Act; M.G.L. c. 151B, and any additions or amendments 

thereto. [7 CFR 3016.36(i)] 

 

 (b) Both the SFA and FSMC agree to the following requirements as outlined in the USDA 

Nondiscrimination Statement below:  

 

  (i) In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture 

(USDA) civil rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and 

institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from discriminating based 

on race, color, national origin, sex, religious creed, disability, age, political beliefs, or reprisal or 

retaliation for prior civil rights activity in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA.  

 

  (ii) Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for 

program information (e.g. Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.), should 

contact the Agency (State or local) where they applied for benefits. Individuals who are deaf, hard of 

hearing or have speech disabilities may contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-

8339. Additionally, program information may be made available in languages other than English.  



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 7 

 

  (iii) To file a program complaint of discrimination, complete the USDA Program 

Discrimination Complaint Form, (AD-3027) found online at: 

http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html, and at any USDA office, or write a letter 

addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form. To request a 

copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by:  

 

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture  

Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights  

1400 Independence Avenue, SW Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;  

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or  

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.  

 

This institution is an equal opportunity provider. 
 

6.3 Work Hours. Whitsons is expected to recommend the number of work hours and 

number of positions at each school location. Whitsons and the SFA shall comply with Sections 103 and 

107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act as supplemented by Department of Labor 

regulations. [7 CFR 3016.36(i)]  The SFA shall use its best efforts to notify Whitsons in advance of 

any anticipated closing due to inclement weather or other emergency.  If advance notice is not given 

and/or a decision is made by the SFA to delay opening or close the Facility after Whitsons’ employees 

have already reported to work, any labor costs incurred by Whitsons as a result of such closing, 

delayed opening or early dismissal (including as a result of requirements contained in a collective 

bargaining agreement) shall be charged to the SFA as an Operating Expense of the Food Service 

Program. 

 

6.4 SFA employees. Whitsons shall direct and supervise any SFA employees assigned to the 

Food Service Program, provided that SFA shall be responsible for obligations described in Section 6.1 

with respect to such SFA employees. 

 

6.5 Background Checks. Whitsons shall adhere to applicable state and federal regulations, 

including the CORI statute codified at M.G.L. c. 71, §38R, in screening prospective employees. 

Whitsons shall comply with criminal background checks and fingerprint regulations required by law 

for all new hires, the cost of which shall be an Operating Expense of the Food Service Program.  It is 

understood and agreed that background checks and fingerprinting for all existing employees have 

already been completed, and, except as and to the extent required by law, new background checks and 

fingerprinting shall not be required for such employees. 

 

6.6 Regulations. Whitsons shall instruct its employees to abide by the policies, rules and 

regulations with respect to its use of SFA premises as established by the SFA from time to time and 

which are furnished in writing to Whitsons. 

 

    6.7 Removal of Employee. The SFA may provide Whitsons with written notice that it 

requires the removal of an employee of Whitsons, if, after due investigation, it is reasonably 

demonstrated that such employee violated health requirements or conducted himself/herself in a 

manner detrimental to the physical, mental or moral well-being of students, staff or faculty, as long as 

such removal is non-discriminatory and not in violation of any Federal, State or local laws. In the event 

of the removal of any such employee, Whitsons shall promptly restructure its staff to avoid any 

disruption in service. If FSMC incurs any costs, including legal fees, retroactive wages and damages, 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 8 

as a direct result of any personnel action requested by the SFA, such costs shall be considered direct 

costs of the Food Service Program and FSMC shall charge the SFA for such costs as Operating 

Expenses. 

 

6.8 Emergency Devices. All Food Service Program personnel assigned to each school 

Facility shall be instructed on the use of all emergency switches, fire and safety devices in the kitchen 

and cafeteria areas. 

 

6.9 Student Workers. The use of student workers or students enrolled in the SFA is 

prohibited without prior SFA approval.  

 

6.10 Senior Management; Non-Solicitation. Whitsons shall inform the SFA prior to hiring 

senior management positions for the direct operation of the SFA’s Food Service Program. All persons 

to be hired as Food Service Directors must be presented for the SFA’s evaluation and approval, such 

approval or rejection to be in writing and approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed. If 

approval has not be granted or withheld in writing within ten (10) days after a candidate has been 

presented to the SFA, approval shall be deemed to have been granted. FSMC shall provide qualified 

management/professional employees to manage the Food Service Program and supervise all 

employees employed therein.  During the term of this Agreement and for one (1) year thereafter, SFA 

shall not solicit Whitsons management, supervisory or professional employees (including without 

limitation any Vice President, Director, Manager, Chef, Dietician or Nutritionist) providing services 

under this Agreement to work in a similar food service capacity whether at the SFA food service 

Facility or elsewhere, nor will SFA permit the employment of said individuals by others in any 

operation providing food service throughout the SFA district.  SFA further covenants and agrees not to 

hire, nor allow to be hired by others to perform work on behalf of SFA or on SFA premises, any 

Whitsons management/supervisory/professional employees providing services under this Agreement 

for a period of one (1) year following the employee's termination of employment with Whitsons.  If at 

any time during the term of this Agreement or upon the expiration or termination of this agreement, 

SFA nevertheless hires, or causes to be hired, a Whitsons management/supervisory/professional 

employee in contravention of this paragraph, then SFA in recognition of Whitsons' considerable 

investment in attracting and training such employee agrees to pay a fee to Whitsons equal to the annual 

salary of said employee as liquidated damages.  Said fee shall be due and payable upon the hiring of 

said employee by SFA or SFA’s affiliate, agent or contractor.  

 

SECTION 7. EQUIPMENT, FACILITIES & UTILITIES  

 

7.1     Facilities and Equipment. The SFA shall make available without any cost or charge to 

Whitsons, the facilities and equipment necessary for Whitsons to provide food service hereunder, 

including, but not limited to, area(s) of the Facility agreeable to both parties in which Whitsons shall 

render its services, kitchen equipment, Smallwares, suitably furnished office space and facilities for the 

safekeeping of funds. The SFA shall provide all equipment necessary for the efficient and safe 

operation of the Food Service Program. All equipment used in connection with the operation of the 

Food Service Program shall be maintained by the SFA  

 

7.2     Condition of Facilities and Equipment. The facilities and equipment provided by each 

Party for use in the Food Service Program shall be in good condition and maintained to ensure 

compliance with applicable laws concerning building conditions, sanitation, safety and health. 

Whitsons will take proper care of all furniture, fixtures, equipment and facilities provided by the SFA 

and shall timely notify the SFA of any known deficiencies. Whitsons shall not be held accountable for 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 9 

pre-existing conditions or normal wear and tear. At the expiration of this Agreement, Whitsons will 

return to the SFA the cafeteria premises and all furniture, fixtures and equipment furnished by the SFA 

in the condition in which received, except for ordinary wear and tear and damage by the elements, and 

except to the extent that such premises or equipment may have been lost or damaged by vandalism, 

fire, flood or other acts of God, or theft by persons other than employees of Whitsons (except through 

the negligence of Whitsons or its employees), or for any other reason beyond the control of Whitsons. 

 

7.3     Utilities. The SFA shall furnish at its expense, light, power, hot and cold water, telephone 

service, high speed internet connection and other utilities as are necessary for the operation of the Food 

Service Program hereunder. 

 

7.4     School’s Use of the Facilities. The SFA is encouraged to utilize Whitsons for catering 

and other food service needs in addition to the School Lunch and/or Breakfast and/or Special Milk 

Programs. However, the SFA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to sell or dispense any food or 

beverage before or after the SFA’s regularly scheduled meal periods, provided such sales or 

dispensation do not interfere with the operation of the School Lunch and/or Breakfast and/or Special 

Milk Programs and is otherwise in compliance with all Federal, State and local laws, including those 

governing the sale of competitive foods. 

 

7.5    Extracurricular Activities. If the SFA utilizes the Food Service Program facilities for 

extracurricular activities before or after the SFA’s regularly scheduled lunch or breakfast period, the 

SFA shall return facilities and equipment to Whitsons in the same condition as received, normal wear 

and tear excepted. 

 

7.6     Rental Facilities For Community Use. The SFA retains the right to rent or donate food 

service facilities during non-school hours or weekends, provided that such activity does not interfere 

with the normal Food Service Program operation. When such functions take place, the SFA may 

require that a member(s) of the food service staff be on duty to maintain the safe use of SFA owned 

equipment and/or to provide access to the facilities. Whitsons shall be reimbursed for the cost of its 

own staff to be utilized at said functions.  Said cost shall not be considered an expense of the school 

lunch program.  The SFA shall return the facilities and equipment to Whitsons in the same condition as 

received, normal wear and tear excepted.   

 

SECTION 8. MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS & SANITATION 

8.1     Maintenance. The SFA shall furnish all building maintenance and all repairs to the Food 

Service areas without cost to FSMC and shall replace, repair and maintain its equipment, except when 

damage results from the negligence of FSMC or its employees.  The SFA shall keep such equipment 

and Facilities maintained in a safe operating condition such that no FSMC employee is exposed to or 

subjected to any unsafe situation which would violate the Occupational Safety and Health Act 

including, but not limited to, the general duty and the specific duty clauses thereof or any other similar 

federal, state or local law or regulation. However, if equipment provided by the SFA becomes 

inoperative, hazardous or inefficient to operate, FSMC shall have the right to undertake repairs or 

replacements at the expense of the SFA if the SFA fails to do so after having been given a reasonable 

amount of time to correct the equipment deficiency. The SFA shall at its expense, provide maintenance 

personnel and outside maintenance services, parts and supplies for properly maintaining the Facilities 

and its equipment.  

 

8.2         Cleaning. The SFA will be responsible for the cleaning and maintenance of floors, 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 10 

windows, walls, light fixtures, ceilings, hoods, ducts, grease traps and the general care of the dining, 

service and kitchen areas, and for painting within the dining areas.  Whitsons will be responsible for 

the routine cleaning of the kitchen, serving areas, dish rooms and storerooms, including the ordinary 

and routine cleaning of counters and operating equipment used in connection with the operation of the 

Food Service Program. The foregoing notwithstanding, the FSMC will only be responsible: (a) with 

respect to walls, for cleaning walls to a height of six (6) feet, (b) with respect to vents and ducts, for 

cleaning same below ceiling level, and (c) with respect to hoods, for cleaning the exterior of hoods 

only. 

 

8.3     Sanitation; Trash Removal; Recycling. The SFA shall have designated areas for the 

deposit and removal of all garbage and trash. Whitsons shall bring refuse to designated refuse 

collection areas at the Facility, and will cooperate with and participate in all SFA mandated recycling 

programs, provided that the SFA shall provide, at its expense, all necessary waste receptacles, 

including those required for the proper recycling of all waste materials (including without limitation 

food waste, plastic and paper) as required by Federal, State and/or local law.  The SFA shall provide, at 

its expense, for the daily removal of waste (including recyclable waste such food waste, plastic and 

paper) and garbage and for regular extermination services.  

  

SECTION 9. INVENTORY 

9.1     Inventory. Whitsons shall purchase, on the SFA’s behalf, all food and other supplies 

required under this Agreement. Such food and supplies shall be kept separate and apart and title thereto 

shall remain with the SFA at all times. Whitsons and SFA shall jointly take inventory of all purchased 

food and supplies at both the beginning and the end of this Agreement. The SFA shall have access to 

the purchase records of the food purchased for review and audit as deemed necessary in the judgment 

of the SFA.  

9.1.1 Whitsons and the SFA shall inventory the equipment and commodities owned by 

the SFA at the beginning of the contract year including, but not limited to, flatware, trays, 

chinaware, glassware, kitchen utensils and food both purchased and government-donated 

commodities. Whitsons shall be responsible for reimbursing the SFA for all loss beyond normal 

usage noted at the year-end inventory of the equipment. 

9.2     Purchasing. Whitsons will purchase all food for the SFA at the lowest prices possible, 

which prices shall be reasonable and necessary, consistent with maintaining the quality standards 

prescribed by the SFA, including taking advantage of all local trade discounts. All procurement 

transactions must meet procurement standards set by the United States Department of Agriculture. 

Transactions shall be conducted in a manner so as to provide maximum open and free competition, as 

provided by law.  In the event that Whitsons , either directly or indirectly or through one of its affiliates 

furnishes products or services necessary for the efficient operation of SFA’s Food Service Program, the 

charge to SFA shall be competitive with the cost of obtaining such products or services from an 

independent source in the open market; 

 

9.2.1 Whitsons will request, receive and inspect food delivered by vendors and 

forward a list of bills when billing the SFA in accordance with regulations. 

9.2.2 Whitsons shall maintain adequate storage practices, inventory and control of 

federally donated foods in conformance with the SFA’s agreement with the applicable state 

agency, if any. 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 11 

9.2.3 In accordance with the Buy American Provisions of 7 CFR 250 and 7 CFR 

250.23, in connection with Meals served as part of the Food Service Program hereunder, the 

Company will purchase, to the maximum extent practicable, domestic agricultural commodities 

or products that are either produced in the United States or processed in the United States 

substantially using agricultural commodities that are produced in the United States.  

“Substantially” means that over 51 percent of the final processed products consist of 

agricultural commodities that were grown domestically. These provisions apply to all funds in 

the food service account, and not just federal reimbursements. Exceptions to the Buy American 

provisions should be used as a last resort; however, an alternative or exception may be 

approved upon request. 

To be considered for the alternative or exception, the request must be submitted by the 

FSMC in writing to a designated official of the SFA, a minimum of two (2) business day(s) in 

advance of delivery. The request must include the: 

a) Alternative substitute(s) that are domestic and meet the required 

specifications: 

i) Price of the domestic food alternative substitute(s); and 

ii) Availability of the domestic alternative substitute(s) in relation to 

the quantity ordered. 

b) Reason for exception: limited/lack of availability or price (include price): 

i) Price of the domestic food product; and 

ii)  Price of the non-domestic product that meets the required 

specification of the domestic product.  

 

9.2.4  Any silence, absence or omission from the contract document specifications 

concerning any point shall be regarded as meaning that only the best commercial practices shall 

prevail, and that only materials (food, supplies, etc.) and workmanship of a quality that would 

normally be specified by the SFA shall be used. 

9.3     Rebates. All payment discounts (except prompt payment discounts), rebates and 

allowances obtained from vendors must go to the SFA’s food services account. Whitsons shall credit 

the SFA with any discounts obtained from vendors, suppliers or distributors for goods procured for the 

SFA’s account. In accordance with USDA Regulations, SFA is not entitled to a credit for prompt 

payment discounts unless SFA pays the relevant third party suppliers directly or provides an advance 

payment to Whitsons for such costs. 

 

SECTION 10.  ACCOUNTING, RECORDS & AUDITS 

 

10.1 Consolidation of Account. Whitsons shall maintain accounting and records for each of 

the SFA’s divisions as well as for the consolidated whole covered by this Agreement.  

 

10.2 Records. Whitsons shall maintain such records as the SFA will need to support its Claim 

of Reimbursement and shall report thereon to the SFA promptly at the end of each calendar month, at a 

minimum. Such records shall be available for a period of three (3) years from the date of final payment 

under the Agreement for inspection and audit by representatives of the applicable state’s Departments 

of Education and Agriculture, United States Department of Agriculture and the United States General 

Accounting Office at any reasonable time and place; except that, if audit findings have not been 

resolved, the records shall be retained beyond the three (3)-year period as long as required for the 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 12 

resolution of the issues raised by the audit. All FSMC records pertaining to the SFA shall be 

maintained at the SFA while this Agreement is in effect.  If the laws of the Commonwealth so require, 

such records shall be retained as prescribed therein. Such records include, but are not limited to, Daily 

Cash Reports, Edit Check Worksheets, Milk Rosters and Summary of Meal/Milk counts. A SFA official 

will review, in accordance with regulation, records maintained by Whitsons for the purpose of 

preparing monthly reimbursement vouchers. Whitsons shall observe all federal, state, and local law 

related to accounts. Whitsons accepts liability caused by Whitsons’ negligence for claims assessed as a 

result of Federal or State audits/reviews corresponding with the SFA’s period of liability under 

applicable regulations.   [7 CFR 210.16c(1) and 7 CFR 210.23c] 

 

10.3 Availability of Records. The SFA, the applicable state’s Departments of Education and 

Agriculture, United States Department of Agriculture, or Comptroller General of the United States or 

any of their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any books, documents, papers and 

records of Whitsons which are directly pertinent to this Agreement, for the purpose of making audit, 

examination, excerpts and transcriptions. [7 CFR Part 3016] 

 

10.3.1 Reimbursement Records. Whitsons must retain records to support the SFA’s Claim of 

Reimbursement of the daily number of meals served, by type. These meal counts must be reported 

daily. [7 CFR 210.16(c)(1)] 

 

10.4 Revenue Records. Whitsons shall retain revenue records broken down by source, type 

and category of meal or food service (e.g., à la carte sales, reduced price and full price National School 

Lunch Program, School Breakfast Program meals (if applicable) and vending machine sales, etc.). 

 

10.5 Invoice Statement. All invoices submitted by Whitsons must represent that articles have 

been furnished or services rendered before payment can be made to Whitsons from the SFA’s food 

service account. 

 

10.6 Detailed Description. All invoices submitted by Whitsons must include a detailed 

description of the goods, supplies, services or other items being submitted for reimbursement. 

 

10.7 Taxes and Assessments. Whitsons will pay when due all federal, state, local and other 

governmental taxes or assessments in connection with the services rendered hereunder. With regard to 

sales tax, the Parties will determine by mutual agreement and in accordance with relevant law if any of 

the services rendered or items furnished hereunder are subject to sales tax. Even if SFA is tax exempt, 

SFA may be liable for the collection and remittance of sales tax to the applicable state department of 

revenue for some of the services or items. If any of the services or items are subject to sales tax, 

Whitsons is responsible for the appropriate collection of sales tax and the reporting of such to the SFA. 

The SFA is responsible for remitting the sales tax to the appropriate state department of revenue. If the 

Parties are unable to resolve any dispute or controversy regarding the taxability of any of the services 

or items, such dispute or controversy shall be settled by a relevant ruling by the applicable state 

department of revenue. 

 

10.7.1 The SFA shall pay when due all federal, state, local and other governmental use and 

property taxes or assessments arising in connection with the Facility, equipment, offices and 

utilities. Whitsons shall pay when due all license and permit fees in connection with services 

rendered hereunder. The SFA shall reimburse Whitsons for all license and permit fees paid in 

connection with the Food Service Program. 

 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 13 

SECTION 11.  FINANCIAL, PURCHASING & MEAL PAYMENT 

11.1 General Provisions. All Food Service Program fees shall be specifically stated in this 

Agreement. Such fees may be calculated on a “cents per meal” or “flat fee” basis. Whitsons will 

operate, administer, and manage the Food Service Program for SFA in accordance with the financial 

arrangements as set forth in this Agreement. This Agreement is not permitted to and does not contain a 

“cost-plus-a-percentage-of-cost” or a “cost-plus-a percentage-of-income” provision. [7 CFR 

210.16(c)] SFA represents and warrants that all financial and operating information it has provided to 

Whitsons is true, complete and correct and presents fairly and accurately all items of revenue and expense 

of the Food Service Program to be managed by Whitsons herein in conformity with generally accepted 

accounting principles consistent with that of the preceding years and applied in accordance with past 

practice. 

 

11.2 Operating Expenses. Whitsons will charge and invoice the SFA monthly a sum not to 

exceed the amount necessary and reasonable to cover Whitsons’ Operating Expenses (as defined in 

Section 2 above) incurred in connection with the Food Service Program. In furtherance, but not in 

limitation of the foregoing, payroll-related taxes (e.g. FUTA, FICA, SUI, disability, worker’s 

compensation, etc.) and business insurance expenses (e.g. comprehensive liability, property, umbrella, 

etc.) will be invoiced at the fixed rate set forth in Whitsons’ Proposal and/or current school year’s 

Operating Budget.  Approval of the Operating Budget shall constitute approval of these Operating 

Expenses.  Whitsons will provide a reconciled monthly statement with costs listed in the following 

categories: (i) Operating Expenses, and (ii)  Management Fee and Administrative Fee. Whitsons shall 

either (i) separately identify for each cost submitted for payment to the SFA the amount of that cost 

that is allowable (that which can be paid from the non-profit food service account) and the amount, if 

any, that is not allowable (must be paid from General Funds account and not from the food service 

account), or (ii) exclude all unallowable cost from its billing documents and certify that only allowable 

costs are submitted for payment, and records have been established that maintain the visibility of 

unallowable costs, including directly associated costs in a manner suitable for contract cost 

determination and verification.  Unallowable costs shall only be paid from the SFA’s General Funds.  

The determination of the allowable costs will be made in compliance with applicable USDA 

regulations and National School Lunch Program and Commodity School Program regulations as well 

as Office of Management and Budget circulars. [7 CFR 210.21(i); 210.21(f)(ii)(A) & B; 210.21(f)(iii)] 

 

11.3  Rebates.  All costs charged to the SFA in management fee and cost-reimbursable contracts 

shall be net of all trade discounts and rebates received by Whitsons. Whitsons shall identify the amount 

of each discount, rebate or applicable credit on each bill or invoice and whether the amount is a 

discount, rebate, or in the case of some other form of applicable credit, the nature of that credit. If 

approved by the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education, the SFA may 

permit Whitsons to report this information on a less frequent basis than monthly, but no less than 

annually.  

 

11.3.1  FSMC must identify the method by which it will report discounts, rebates and 

other applicable credits allocable to the contract that are not reported prior to the conclusion of 

the contract and shall maintain documentation of costs and discounts, rebates and other 

applicable credits and must furnish such documentation upon request to the District, the 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education and the USDA. [7 CFR 

210.21(v)& (vi)].  Whitsons’ method is as follows: For four successive quarters after the 

conclusion of the contract, FSMC shall conduct quarterly audits to determine if there are any 

applicable credits, discounts or rebates that are applicable to SFA.  If any such credits, 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 14 

discounts or rebates are identified, FSMC will provide a report of such to SFA along with a 

credit on any amount owed to FSMC or payment in the form of a check if there is no 

outstanding balance due to FSMC from SFA. 

  11.4 Administrative and Management Fee; Invoicing. During the Initial Term, Whitsons shall 

charge SFA, and SFA shall pay Whitsons, an annual administrative fee of $59,350.00 (the 

"Administrative Fee") and an annual management fee of $16,000.00 (the "Management Fee" and, 

together with the Administrative Fee, the “Food Service Program Fee"). The Food Service Program 

Fee shall be invoiced on a monthly basis, and shall be payable in ten (10) equal monthly installments, 

together with the invoiced Operating Expenses. Invoices submitted to the SFA by the FSMC will be 

paid according to the SFA’s “Accounts Payable Cut-Off Schedule,” attached as Appendix A. If 

invoices are received in the SFA’s Accounting Department by the cut-off date, and they pass audit, 

payment will be made on the release date listed on the schedule, which in any event shall not be later 

than 30 days after receipt. The SFA shall promptly notify Whitsons of any disputed amounts that does 

not pass audit and the specific reason for such dispute.  The SFA and Whitsons agree to cooperate with 

each other in good faith and diligently to resolve all such disputes.  In any event, the SFA shall pay that 

portion of any invoice that is undisputed.  Some of the food products purchased on behalf of SFA in 

connection with the Food Service Program may be “Perishable Agricultural Commodities” within the 

meaning of the Perishable Agricultural Commodities Act, 1930 (7 U.S.C. 499e(c)) (“PACA”).  Where 

applicable, (a) such food products are sold subject to the statutory trust authorized by section 5(c) of 

PACA and (b) Whitsons retains a trust claim over these commodities and all inventories of food or 

other products derived from these commodities until full payment from SFA is received.  In the event 

that FSMC incurs legal expense in enforcing its right to receive timely payment of invoices hereunder, 

SFA agrees to pay FSMC’s reasonable attorney's fees and other costs, provided that such fees and 

costs shall not be paid from the non-profit food service account. For any Renewal Term, the Food 

Service Program Fee shall be adjusted annually, upward or downward, based on any percentage 

increase or decrease in the Consumer Price Index (CPI), Boston-Cambridge-Newton, Food Away from 

Home as published on the date the renewal is prepared for the immediately ended school year.    

 

11.5 Guaranteed Return. Whitsons and SFA shall work together to ensure a financially sound 

Food Service Program.  Whitsons guarantees that the Food Service Program will operate profitably 

and at a Surplus $21,041.00 for the school year ending June 30, 2023, but before accounting for the 

cost of any other expense outside of Whitsons’ reasonable control (the “Guarantee”). If necessary, 

Whitsons will reduce its Management Fee to achieve said Guarantee. This will be the SFA’s exclusive 

remedy for Whitsons’ failure to achieve the Guarantee, and in no event shall Whitsons be liable for any 

amount in excess of 100% of its Management Fee.  The Guarantee for any Renewal Term shall be as 

mutually negotiated by the Parties and reflected in a duly executed Amendment to this Agreement.  

The guarantee for each subsequent Renewal Term will be established by mutual agreement of the 

parties prior to each Renewal Term based on the performance of the Program during the prior Term, 

any changes in operational parameters and the Operating Budget for the Renewal Term.     

 

11.5.1  Assumptions.  The Guarantee is based on, and subject to, the following 

conditions and assumptions remaining in effect throughout the Initial Term and/or the Renewal 

Term:  

 

(i)  reimbursement rates for National School Lunch Program and National School 

Breakfast Program meals, as the case may be, will not be less than the rates estimated in 

Whitsons’ Proposal (for the Initial Term) or in effect for any prior school year (for any Renewal 

Term), and the Program will receive the $0.07 federal reimbursement increase published by the 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 15 

USDA;  

 

(ii) the value of government donated commodities and/or cash in lieu thereof will 

not be less than the value of government donated commodities and/or cash in lieu thereof 

estimated in Whitsons’ Proposal or received during the prior school year, and the mix and 

quantity of government donated commodities shall not change from the mix and quantity 

received the prior school year so as to increase actual food costs over the level of projected 

food cost set forth in the RFP and Proposal;  

 

(iii) the number of days breakfast meals are served during the school year will be not 

less than 180 days and the number of days lunch meals are served during the school year will 

not be less than 161 days; 

 

(iv) the number of serving periods, locations, serving times and types of service will 

not differ from that listed in the RFP;  

 

(v) the student enrollment for the Term of the Agreement will be not less than 2,470 

students per school year; 

 

(vi) the level of wages, salaries, fringe benefits and health costs will not exceed 

those proposed and listed in the original Proposal;  

 

(vii) the actual costs charged to the Food Service budget by the SFA shall not exceed 

the projected Operating Expenses as set forth in Whitsons’ Proposal (for the Initial term) or the 

proposed operating budget (for any Renewal Term);  

 

(viii) service will not be interrupted as a result of fire, work stoppage, strike or school 

closing;   

 

(ix)  milk vendor prices shall remain constant throughout the school year;   

 

(x)   selling prices of Menu Pattern Meals and A-La-Carte selections will be not less 

than those included in the Proposal or the applicable Operating Budget;   

 

(xi)  SFA and its representatives, including but not limited to, school principals, 

teachers and SFA employees, shall fully cooperate with Whitsons in the implementation of the 

Food Service Program;   

 

(xii)   there shall be no competitive food and beverage sales immediately prior to, after 

or during the meal service times, and the SFA shall fully cooperate with Whitsons to limit the 

expansion of competitive food sales in order to maximize the gross receipts and other non-cash 

sales of the Food Service Program, and to ensure that any such competitive sales are in 

compliance with Federal, State and local law;   

 

(xiii)  legislation, regulations and SFA’s Wellness Policy or practice shall remain 

consistent with those at the time of the original Proposal;   

 

(xiv)   to the extent applicable, SFA shall approve Whitsons’ recommended changes 

relating to food service staff levels and/or staff schedules based on the operational needs of the 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 16 

Food Service Program;  

 

(xv)   The SFA shall have timely submitted and certified all claims for reimbursement, 

except where such failure or delay is due solely to an act or omission of Whitsons;  

 

(xvi) Whitsons has not taken into account the effect of meals and/or snacks distributed 

under the SFA’s humanitarian meal policy in establishing the Guarantee. Any meals and/or 

snacks distributed under such policy that would negatively affect the Guarantee will result in an 

appropriate adjustment thereof; and 

 

(xvii)  There shall be no change in any other operational parameters set forth in the RFP 

or in any other assumptions contained in the Proposal that would have a material adverse effect 

on the Guarantee. 

 

In the event the foregoing conditions are not met during the Term, the Operating Budget and 

Guarantee shall be adjusted by an amount equivalent to any increased cost or loss of revenue 

attributable to the change in such conditions. 

 

11.6 Surplus Revenues. Any surplus revenues existing after deducting the approved 

operating expenses, Administrative Fee and Management Fee from verified food service receipts and 

all Federal and State reimbursements shall remain with the SFA. 

 

 11.7 Investment. Whitsons will promptly fund certain improvements to the SFA’s Facility to 

facilitate the performance of the services hereunder in an amount not to exceed Twenty-Five Thousand 

Dollars ($25,000.00) (the “Investment”). The scope and specifications for such Investment shall be as 

mutually agreed in writing by the Parties. The SFA shall hold title to real estate fixtures, equipment, 

and other items funded by the Investment. Whitsons will amortize its Investment on a straight-line 

depreciation basis over a period of five (5) years, and SFA shall be invoiced for and shall repay such 

Investment on a monthly basis as an additional expense above and beyond the agreed upon Food 

Service Program Fee and other reimbursement costs of the Food Service Program. If the Agreement is 

terminated prior to the full amortization of the Investment, the SFA shall promptly select one of the 

following options: (i) retain any equipment or other items funded by the Investment and continue to 

make payment to Whitsons in accordance with the agreed monthly amortization schedule until the 

Investment is fully repaid; or (ii) retain any equipment or other items funded by the Investment and 

promptly pay (or cause any successor FSMC to pay) Whitsons the unamortized portion of the 

Investment in full within fifteen (15) days of termination of the Agreement. The right of Whitsons to 

charge interest for late payment shall not be construed as a waiver of Whitsons’ right to receive timely 

payment. 

  
SECTION 12.   USDA DONATED COMMODITIES  

12.1 Benefit of SFA Only. To the maximum extent possible, Whitsons shall utilize USDA 

donated foods made available by the SFA and shall not purchase foods that are available as USDA 

donated foods.  Whitsons agrees that any USDA-donated commodities received by the SFA and made 

available to Whitsons must accrue only to the benefit of and be used only in the SFA’s nonprofit school 

food service. All refunds received from processors must be retained by the SFA. [7 CFR 210.16(a)(6)] 

 

12.2 Proper Use and Handling. Whitsons further accepts liability for negligence on its part 

that results in any loss of, improper use of, or damage to USDA donated foods.  Whitsons shall 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 17 

maintain accurate and complete records with respect to the receipt, use/disposition, storage and 

inventory of donated foods. Failure by Whitsons to maintain records required under the Agreement 

shall be considered factual evidence of improper distribution or loss of donated foods. The SFA is 

responsible for obtaining restitution from Whitsons in connection with any claim for improper 

distribution, use or loss of, or damage to donated foods. [7 CFR 250.12(b)(4]) 

 

12.3 Value of USDA Donated Foods. Whitsons shall credit the SFA for the value of all 

donated foods received for use in the SFA’s meal service in the school year (including both entitlement 

and bonus foods) and include the value of donated foods contained in processed end products in 

accordance with the contingencies in 7 CFR 250.51 (a).  The method used to credit the District for the 

donated foods shall be crediting by disclosure, which will occur on the billing documents submitted 

each month. 

 

12.3.1 FSMC will ensure compliance with the requirements of subpart C of CFR part 

250 and with the provisions of the SFA’s processing agreements in the procurement of process 

end products on behalf of the District and will ensure crediting of the SFA for the value of 

donated foods contained in such end products at the processing agreement value. 

12.3.2  In accordance with 7 CFR 250.51 (a) and (b), Whitsons will credit the SFA for 

the value of all donated foods received for use in the SFA’s meal service in the school year, on 

at least an annual basis, through invoice reductions, refunds, discounts, or other means.  Such 

requirement includes crediting for the value of donated foods contained in processed end 

products if Whitsons, in accordance with its contract, procures such end products on behalf of 

the SFA, or acts as an intermediary in passing the donated food value in such end products on 

to the SFA.  All forms of crediting must include clear documentation of the value received from 

the donated foods.  In cost-reimbursable situations, Whitsons procurement of processed end 

products is restricted to those processors that have signed processing agreements with the State 

distributing agency of the SFA in accordance with 7 CFR Part 250. 

 

12.3.3  In accordance with 7 CFR 250.51(c) Whitsons must use the donated food values 

determined by the distributing agency in accordance with 7 CFR 250.58(e), or, if approved by 

the distributing agency, donated food values determined by an alternate means of the SFA’s 

choosing.  The method of determining the donated food values must be included in 

procurement documents and in the contract, and must result in the determination of actual 

values.  Negotiation of such values is not permitted. 

 

12.3.4  In accordance with 7CFR 250.51(d), Whitsons must use all donated ground 

beef, donated ground pork, and all processed end products, in the SFA’s food service and must 

use all other donated foods, or commercially purchased foods of the same generic identity, of 

U.S. origin, and of equal or better quality than the donated foods, in the SFA’s food service. 

 

12.3.5  Whitsons must meet the general requirements for the storage and inventory 

management of donated foods in 7 CFR 250.14(b).  In accordance with 7 CFR 250.52(a), the 

FSMC may store and inventory donated foods together with food it has purchased 

commercially for the SFA’s use.    It may store and inventory such foods together with other 

commercially purchased foods only to the extent that such a system ensures compliance with 

the requirements for the use of donated foods in 7 CFR 250.51(d).  Additionally, under cost-

reimbursable contracts, Whitsons must ensure that its system of inventory management does 

not result in the SFA being charged for donated foods. 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 18 

 

12.3.6  The SFA and Whitsons must maintain records of receipt of donated foods and 

processed end products, or crediting for the value of donated foods, and other records relating 

to donated foods, in accordance with 7 CFR 250.54.  The SFA must conduct a reconciliation at 

least annually (and upon termination of the contract) to ensure that Whitsons has credited it for 

the value of all donated foods received for use in the SFA’s food service in the school year 

including, in accordance with requirements in 7 CFR 250.51(a), the value of donated foods 

contained in processed end products.  Whitsons must return all unused donated ground beef, 

donated ground pork, processed end products and (at the SFA’s discretion) return all other 

unused donated foods in accordance with 7 CFR 250.52(c) when a contract terminates, is not 

extended or renewed. 

 

 12.4 Title to Donated Food. Title to USDA-donated food shall remain in the SFA.  

 

SECTION 13.   INSURANCE & INDEMNITY  

13.1 To the extent permitted by law, each Party shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 

the other, including, without limitation, its boards, commissions, committees, shareholders, directors, 

officers, agents, employees, affiliates and assigns, from any and all losses, damages or expenses, 

including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from claims or 

actions for bodily injury, death, sickness, property damage or other injury or damage if caused by any 

breach of this Agreement or by any negligent act or omission or willful misconduct of such Party. 

 

13.2 Notification of an event giving rise to an indemnification claim (“Notice”) must be 

given to the indemnifying Party within thirty (30) days following receipt of such claim by the 

indemnified Party and shall include a brief factual summary of the damage and cause thereof.  An 

indemnification claim is expressly subject to and conditioned upon compliance with the Notice 

provisions hereunder; provided that the provision of a late Notice to the indemnifying party will not 

relieve the indemnifying Party from any liability which it may have to the indemnified party under this 

Section 13.2, unless such delay materially prejudices the ability of the indemnifying Party to defend 

against such action or claim. 

 

 13.3 Whitsons shall maintain in force at all times during which services are to be performed 

hereunder the following insurance coverage placed with reputable company(ies) licensed by the 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts: Comprehensive or Commercial General Bodily Injury and Property 

Damage Liability Insurance in the Combined Single Limit of not less than One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000.00) for each occurrence, including, but not limited to, Personal Injury, Liability, Broad 

Form Property Damage Liability blanket Contractual Liability and Products Liability, covering only 

the operations and activities of Whitsons under the Agreement and shall provide SFA with a certificate 

evidencing such polices. The insurance policies shall contain covenants by the issuing company that 

the policies shall not be canceled without thirty (30) days’ prior written notice of cancellation. 

 

In addition Whitsons shall maintain the following: 

 

 Automobile Liability   Liability Limit $1,000,000 

 Workers’ Compensation:  Statutory Limits 

 Employers Liability:   $1,000,000 each accident 

      $1,000,000 disease policy 

      $1,000,000 disease accident limit 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 19 

 

13.4 Certificates of insurance for such coverage naming the SFA as an additional insured will 

be furnished within 30 days and Whitsons shall provide replacement/renewal certificate at least 30 

days prior to the expiration of the policy. Should any of the described policies be cancelled before the 

expiration date, written notice must be made to the SFA 30 days prior to cancellation. 

 

13.5 The SFA shall obtain and maintain insurance for the Facility, service equipment, offices 

and utilities against risks covered by standard forms of fire, theft and extended coverage in such 

amounts under such policies as appropriate. 

 

13.6   Limitation of Liability.  Notwithstanding anything herein contained to the contrary, 

neither Party shall be  liable  to the other or to any third party for any  lost profits or indirect,  punitive,  

special  or consequential  losses  or  damages  arising  out of or in  connection  with this Agreement. 

 

SECTION 14.   SFA RESPONSIBILITIES  

In addition to obligations set forth elsewhere in this Agreement or by law, the SFA shall be 

responsible for the following: 

 

14.1 Food Service Conformity. The SFA shall remain responsible for ensuring that the food 

service operation is in conformance with its agreement under the program and shall monitor the food 

service operation through periodic on-site visitations. [7 CFR 210.16(a)(2)&(3)] 

 

14.2 Advisory Board. The SFA shall establish an advisory board composed of parents, 

teachers and students to assist in menu planning. [7 CFR 210.16(a)(8)] 

 

14.3 Health Certification. The SFA shall maintain applicable health certification and be 

assured that all state and local regulations are being met by Whitsons preparing or serving meals at the 

Facility. [7 CFR 210.16(a)(7)] 

 

14.4 Control of Food Service Program; Pricing. The SFA shall retain control of the quality, 

extent and general nature of its Food Service Program, including without limitation (i) control of the 

food service account and financial overall responsibility for the Food Service Program, and (ii) control 

for the establishment of all prices, including price adjustments, for meals served under the Food 

Service Program, e.g. pricing for reimbursable meals, a la carte service, vending machines, and adult 

meals.  

 

14.4.1 Food Specifications. The SFA shall provide detailed specifications including, but 

not limited to, grade and weight for each food component or menu item as specified in by the 

USDA and include these specifications in all IFBs or RFPs. Specifications may also cover other 

items such as purchase units, style, condition, ingredients, formulations and delivery time. Such 

specifications shall be incorporated into this Agreement. [7 CFR 210.16(c)(3)] 

 

14.4.2 Non-Payment By SFA. No payment shall be made for meals that are spoiled or 

unwholesome at the time of delivery, do not meet detailed specifications as developed by the 

SFA for each food component specified in the School Lunch Pattern or do not otherwise meet 

the requirements of the Agreement; provided, however, that no deduction shall be made unless 

SFA shall have given Whitsons written notification within two (2) business days of the meal 

service for which the deduction is to be made, specifying the number of meals for which the SFA 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 20 

intends to deduct payment and setting forth the reasons for the deduction. [7 CFR 210.16c(3)] 

 14.5 Menu Cycle. The SFA shall develop and include in the invitation to bid or request for 

proposal a 21-day cycle menu. Whitsons must adhere to the cycle for the first 21 days of meal service. 

Changes thereafter may be made with the approval of the SFA. [7 CFR 210.16(b)(1)] 

 

14.6 Signature Authority. The SFA shall retain signature authority on the 

application/agreement to participate in the National School Lunch Program (NSLP), School Breakfast 

Program (SBP) and the Special Milk Program (SMP), including the SFA’s free and reduced price 

policy statement, and Commodity Order forms. [7 CFR 210.16(a)(5)] 

 

14.7 Internal Controls. The SFA shall establish internal controls which ensure the accuracy of 

lunch counts prior to the submission of the monthly Claim of Reimbursement. At a minimum, the SFA 

shall: (i) review worksheets and make comparisons of daily free, reduced price, and paid lunch counts 

against data which will assist in the identification of lunch counts in excess of the number of free, 

reduced price and paid lunches served each day to children eligible for such lunches; (ii) develop and 

implement a system for follow-up on those lunch counts which suggest the likelihood of lunch 

counting problems; and (iii) conduct an on-site review of the lunch counting and claiming system 

employed by each school within the jurisdiction of the SFA. [7 CFR  210.8(a)] 

 

14.8 Reimbursement Claims. The SFA shall be responsible for signing reimbursement 

claims. This responsibility cannot be delegated to Whitsons. [7 CFR 210.16(a)(5)] 

 

14.9 Contractual Responsibility. The SFA shall be responsible for all contractual agreements 

entered into in connection with the school nutrition program (e.g., vending meals to other SFA food 

authorities). [7 CFR  210.19(a)(1)] 

 

14.10 Financial Responsibility. The SFA shall retain control of the school food service account 

and overall financial responsibility for the School Nutrition Programs. The SFA shall be solely 

responsible for preparing and submitting all certification worksheets, statements, claims and other 

documentation required in connection with the USDA seven-cents reimbursement certification and 

validation process. [7 CFR 210.19(a)(1)] 

 

14.11 Program Review. The SFA shall be responsible for ensuring resolution of program 

review and audit findings. [7 CFR 210.9(b)(17) and 210.18(k)(1)(2)] 

 

14.12 Parent Letters. The SFA shall develop, distribute, and collect the parent letters and 

applications for free and reduced price meals and free milk. [7 CFR 245.6] 

 

14.13 Verifying Free & Reduced Meal Applications. The SFA shall be responsible for 

determining and verifying applications for free and reduced price meals or free milk benefits and the 

conduct of any hearings related to such determinations. This responsibility shall not be delegated to 

Whitsons. [7 CFR 245.6] 

 

14.14 USDA-Donated Food. The SFA shall assure that the maximum amount of USDA-

donated foods are received and utilized by Whitsons. [7 CFR 210.9(b)(15)] 

 

14.15 Commodity Processing Contracts. The SFA shall establish commodity processing 

contracts. This responsibility cannot be delegated to Whitsons. [7 CFR 250.12(f)] 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 21 

 

14.16 Losses. The SFA shall be responsible for any losses (including to USDA donated 

commodities) which may arise due to circumstances beyond the control of Whitsons, including but not 

limited to loss of electrical power, flooding or equipment malfunction. 

 

14.17 Inventory. The SFA will provide a physical inventory of supplies and equipment 

available for use by Whitsons prior to the commencement of this Agreement. 

 

14.18 Equipment Damage. The SFA shall be responsible for loss or damage (including repair 

and maintenance) not caused by Whitsons to equipment owned or leased by the SFA and located on its 

premises. 

 

14.19 Equipment Installation. The SFA shall furnish, install and maintain any equipment or 

make any structural changes needed to comply with federal, state and local laws. 

 

14.20 Fixture Repairs. The SFA shall be financially responsible for repairs to, and replacement 

of, all permanent fixtures such as faucets, lights, sewers, air conditioning, heating vents, hoods and all 

other electrical work to the extent that such repairs are not necessitated by the willful or negligent act 

or omission by Whitsons and/or its employee(s). 

 

14.21 Utilities. The SFA shall furnish at its expense, space, light, heat, power, hot and cold 

water, and other utilities (including high-speed internet and WiFi service) as are necessary for the 

operation of the Food Service Program hereunder. 

 

14.22 Food Service Areas. The SFA shall make available without cost to Whitsons areas of the 

Facility agreeable to both parties in which Whitsons shall render its services, such areas being 

reasonably necessary for providing efficient food service. 

 

14.23 Access. The SFA shall have unlimited access to all areas used by Whitsons for purposes 

of inspections and audits. 

 

14.24 Toilet Facilities. The SFA shall make available sanitary and adequate toilet and hand-

washing facilities for the employees of Whitsons. 

 

SECTION 15.   HEALTH CERTIFICATION  

15.1 Health Certification. Whitsons shall have state or local health certification for any 

facility outside the SFA Facility in which it proposes to prepare meals, and Whitsons shall maintain all 

such required health certifications for the duration of the Agreement. [7 CFR 210.16c(2)] 

 

15.2 Safety Regulations. SFA shall obtain and post all applicable health permits for the 

SFA’s facilities. Whitsons shall comply with all health and safety regulations required by federal, state 

or local law in preparing and serving meals at the Facility. [7 CFR 210.6(a)(7); 7 CFR 210.16c(2)] 

 

SECTION 16.   COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 

16.1 Whitsons shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations 

relating to the Food Service Program and sanitation, safety and health, including, without limitation, 

the following:  (i) National School Lunch Program (in particular Title 7, Code of Federal Regulations, 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 22 

Parts 210, 215, 245, and 250 et seq.), the Child Nutrition Act, as amended (7 CFR Part 220), all FNS 

instructions and policy governing the Food Service Program, Section 103 of the Federal Contract Work 

Hours and Safety Standards Act (addressing overtime and compensation), Section 306 of the Clean Air 

Act (42 USCA Section 1857(h)), Section 208 of the Clean Water Act (33 USCA Section 1368), 

Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations (40 CFR Part 15); 

(ii) Whitsons shall recognize mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency and shall 

comply with the Energy Conservation Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163);  (iii) Violations shall 

be reported to the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Services, and the EPA.  

Whitsons shall not knowingly utilize a facility listed on the EPA List of Violating Facilities;  (iv) 

Whitsons shall procure and maintain all necessary licenses and permits.  [7 CFR 3016.36(i)] 

 

16.2 Whitsons shall not participate in or cooperate with an international boycott, as defined 

in Section 999 (b)(3) and (4) of the Internal Revenue code 1986, as amended, or engage in conduct 

declared to be unlawful by Section 2 of Chapter 151E of the Massachusetts General Laws. 

 

SECTION 17.   DEBARMENT/ SUSPENSION CERTIFICATE 

17.1 Debarment/Suspension Certificate. Whitsons shall sign a Debarment/Suspension 

Certification. This certification assures the SFA that Whitsons has not been debarred from entering into 

contracts with the federal government, with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or any entity 

receiving federal funds or suspended from entering contracts during a time when Whitsons is being 

investigated for a legal action taken to debar Whitsons from contracting activities. [7 CFR  3017.510] 

 

17.2 Location of Certificate. The certification is attached to the signed Agreement and kept 

on file at the SFA. A copy of the certification will be forwarded to the state agency with a copy of the 

signed Agreement. [7 CFR  3017.510] 

 

SECTION 18.   CERTIFICATE OF INDEPENDENT PRICE DETERMINATION 

18.1 Independent Price Certification. Whitsons shall certify that the prices in the offer have 

been arrived at independently, without consultation, communication or agreement for the purpose of 

restricting competition. [7 CFR 3017] 

 

18.2 Certificate of Independent Price Determination. Whitsons and the SFA shall sign and 

submit a Certification of Independent Price Determination with the Agreement. Whitsons shall attach 

the certification to the signed Agreement and the certification shall be kept on file at the SFA. SFA 

shall also forward a copy of the certification to the state agency with a copy of the signed Agreement. 

[7 CFR 3017] 

 

SECTION 19.   LOBBYING ACTIVITIES/ OTHER CERTIFICATIONS 

19.1 Lobbying Certification. Whitsons will sign and submit a certification regarding 

lobbying which conforms in substance with and all applicable state laws. [7 CFR 3018] 

 

19.2 Location of Certification. The certification regarding lobbying shall be attached to the 

signed Agreement and kept on file at the SFA. A copy of any certification shall also be forwarded to 

the state agency with the signed Agreement. [7 CFR 3018] 

 

19.3 Disclosure of Lobbying Activities. Whitsons shall disclose lobbying activities in 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 23 

connection with school nutrition programs. [7 CFR 3018] 

 

19.4 Certifications.  (a)  Pursuant to Section 49A of Chapter 62C of the Massachusetts 

General Laws, Whitsons hereby certifies under the penalties of perjury that it has complied with all 

laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts relating to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, 

and withholding and remitting child support. 

 

 (b) Whitsons shall comply with M.G.L. c. 268A, the Commonwealth’s Conflict of Interest 

Law. 

(c) Whitsons hereby certifies under penalties of perjury that its proposal has been made and 

submitted in good faith and without collusion or fraud with any other person.  As used in this 

certification, the word “person” shall mean any natural person, business, partnership, corporation, 

union, committee, club, or other organization, entity, or group of individuals. 

(d) Whitsons certifies that it has not given, offered or agreed to give any person, 

corporation or other entity any gift, contribution or offer of employment as an inducement for, or in 

connection with, the award of this Agreement; 

(e) Whitsons certifies that, to the best of its knowledge, no consultant to or subcontractor 

for Whitsons has given, offered or agreed to give any gift, contribution or offer of employment to the 

SFA, or to any other person, corporation, or entity as an inducement for, or in connection with, the 

award of this Agreement; 

(f) Whitsons certifies that no person, corporation or other entity, other than a bona fide full 

time employee, has been retained or hired by Whitsons to solicit for or in any way assist it in obtaining 

this contract upon an agreement or understanding that such person, corporation or other entity be paid 

a fee or other consideration contingent upon the award of the contract to Whitsons. 

(g) By executing this Agreement, the SFA represents and warrants to Whitsons that it has 

complied with the requirements of 7 CFR 210.16(a)(9) and (10) and has obtained the requisite 

approvals of the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education. 

SECTION 20.   GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS  

20.1 Governing Law. This Agreement, its construction, validity, effect, performance and 

enforcement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts. 

 

20.2 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 

pertaining to the operation of the Food Service Program and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous 

negotiations, discussions or understanding regarding such subject matter. There are no representations, 

inducements, promises, agreements, arrangements or undertakings, oral or written, between the Parties 

relating to the matters covered by this Agreement other than those set forth in this Agreement.  

 

20.3 Severability. Each article, paragraph, subparagraph, term and condition of this 

Agreement, and any portions thereof, will be considered severable. If, for any reason, any portion of 

this Agreement is determined to be invalid, contrary to or in conflict with any applicable present or 

future law, rule or regulation in a final ruling issued by any court, agency or tribunal with valid 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 24 

jurisdiction, that ruling will not impair the operation of or have any other effect upon, any other 

portions of this Agreement; all of which will remain binding on the parties and continue to be given 

full force and effect. 

 

20.4 Assignment. Neither Whitsons nor the SFA may assign or transfer this Agreement, or 

any part thereof, without the written consent of the other Party, except the parties may assign this 

Agreement to an affiliated company or wholly owned subsidiary without prior approval and without 

being released from any of their responsibilities hereunder. 

 

20.5 Captions. All captions in this Agreement are intended solely for the convenience of the 

parties and none shall be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any provision of this 

Agreement. 

 

20.6 Construction and Effect. No failure of either party to exercise any power reserved to it 

by this Agreement or to insist upon strict compliance by the other Party with any obligation or 

condition hereunder and no custom or practice of the parties at variance with the terms hereof shall 

constitute a waiver of either Party’s right to demand exact compliance with any of the terms of this 

contract. Waiver by either Party of any particular default shall not affect or impair either Party’s right 

to exercise any or all of its rights and powers herein, nor shall that constitute a waiver by that Party of 

any right hereunder, or of its right upon any subsequent breach or default to terminate this Agreement 

prior to the expiration of its terms. 

 

20.7 Proprietary Materials. SFA acknowledges that the names, logos, service marks, 

trademarks, trade dress, trade names and patents, whether or not registered, now or hereafter owned by 

or licensed to Whitsons or its affiliated and parent companies (collectively “Marks”) are proprietary 

Marks of Whitsons, and SFA will not use the Marks for any purpose except as expressly permitted in 

writing by Whitsons.  Upon termination of this Agreement, SFA shall (a) immediately and permanently 

discontinue the use and display of any Marks and make or cause to be made such changes to the 

Premises as Whitsons shall reasonably direct so as to effectively distinguish the Premises from its 

former appearance (collectively “De-Image”), and (b) immediately remove and deliver to Whitsons all 

goods bearing any Marks.  If SFA shall fail to De-Image the Premises within 30 days of the termination 

date, Whitsons and its agents shall have the right to enter the Premises and De-Image the Premises 

without prejudice to Whitsons’ other rights and remedies. 

 

20.8 Notices. If any notice or other correspondence is required to be delivered under this 

Agreement, it shall be given in writing, and shall be delivered personally, by overnight delivery 

service, or by United States registered or certified mail, postage prepaid with return receipt requested, 

in which event it shall be deemed given upon receipt, to the parties at the following addresses (or to 

such other address as a party may designate by notice). 

 

To SFA:   Sudbury Public Schools 

   ATTN: Donald R. Sawyer, Director of Business & Finance 

   40 Fairbank Road  

Sudbury, MA 01776 

   Email: donald_sawyer@sudbury.k12.ma.us 

To Whitsons:  Whitsons New England, LLC 

   ATTN: Kelly Friend, COO, Contract Management 

   1800 Motor Parkway 

   Islandia, NY  11749 



Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 25 

   Email: friendk@whitsons.com  

 

With a courtesy copy to the same address, attention: SVP, Administration 

and General Counsel, legal@whitsons.com  

20.9 Waiver of Recovery.  Each Party hereto waives its rights, and the rights of its 

subsidiaries and affiliates, to recover from the other Party hereto and its subsidiaries and affiliates for 

loss or damage to such Party’s building, equipment, improvements and other property of every kind 

and description resulting from fire, explosion or other cause normally covered in standard broad form 

property insurance policies. 

 

20.10 Confidentiality.  In the course of providing the services hereunder, the Parties may be 

exposed to trade secrets or other confidential or proprietary information and materials of the other 

Party including, but not limited to, menus, recipes, signage, Food Service Program surveys and studies, 

management guidelines, procedures, operating manuals and software, all of which shall be identified as 

confidential (“Confidential Information”).  The Parties agree to hold in confidence and not to 

disclose any Confidential Information during the Term of this Agreement and at all times thereafter, 

except that the Parties may use or disclose Confidential Information: (a) to its employees and affiliates 

or others to the extent necessary to render any Food Service hereunder, provided that the other Party is 

first notified of the information that will be provided to any party outside of this Agreement and 

provided further that such information is disclosed only after such outside party is required and agrees 

to maintain it in confidence as required hereunder; (b) to the extent expressly authorized by either 

Party in writing; (c) to the extent that at the time of disclosure, such Confidential Information is 

generally available or known to the public, or after disclosure hereunder becomes generally available 

or known to the public other than by breach of the terms of this Agreement; (d) that is in the possession 

of either Party at the time of disclosure and is not acquired directly or indirectly from the other Party; 

(e) that is subsequently received on a non-confidential basis from a third party having a right to 

provide such information; or (f) as required by law or court order during the course of a judicial or 

regulatory proceeding or as required by a government authority.  The Parties agree not to photocopy or 

otherwise duplicate any Confidential Information without the express written consent of the other 

Party.  Each Party’s Confidential Information shall remain the exclusive property of the Party and shall 

be returned to the other Party upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, or at any time upon 

request.   

20.11  IT Security.  In connection with the services being provided hereunder, FSMC may need 

to operate certain information technology systems not owned by SFA (“Non-Client Systems”), which 

may need to interface with or connect to SFA’s networks or information technology systems (“SFA 

Systems”). FSMC shall be responsible for all Non-SFA Systems, and SFA shall be solely responsible 

for SFA Systems, including taking the necessary security and privacy protections as are reasonable 

under the circumstances. If FSMC serves as the merchant-of-record for any credit or debit card 

transactions in connection with any of the services provided hereunder, then FSMC will be responsible 

for complying with all applicable laws, regulations and payment card industry data security standards 

related to the protection of cardholder data (“Data Protection Rules”). If Non-SFA Systems interface 

with or connect to SFA Systems, then SFA agrees to implement forthwith upon request from FSMC, at 

its own expense, the changes to the SFA Systems that FSMC reasonably requests and believes are 

necessary or prudent to ensure FSMC compliance with the Data Protection Rules. Each Party shall 

indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other Party from all claims, liabilities, damages and costs 

(including reasonable lawyer’s fees) to the extent caused by the indemnifying Party’s failure to comply 

with its obligations in this section. 

mailto:friendk@whitsons.com
mailto:legal@whitsons.com




Sudbury Public Schools - Whitsons FSMC Contract – SY2022-23  ● Page 27 

APPENDIX A 

 

Accounts Payable Cut-Off Schedule 

 

Town of Sudbury Warrant Schedule 

FY23 

 

Submit Date Pay Date 

10/5/22 10/20/22 

11/5/22 11/24/22 

12/5/22 12/22/22 

1/5/23 1/26/23 

2/5/23 2/23/23 

3/5/23 3/23/23 

4/5/23 4/27/23 

5/5/23 5/25/23 

6/5/23 6/22/23 

7/5/23 7/27/23 

 

 



































Sudbury Public Schools

School Committee Meeting

Date: October 7, 2024

Agenda Item: 4f

Minutes (8/5/24, 8/19/24 and 9/9/24)

Recommendation:

Move to approve the Sudbury School Committee open session meeting

minutes from the August 5, August 19 and September 9, 2024 meetings

as presented / amended.

Background

Information:

Attachments:

080524_Sudbury School Committee Minutes_DRAFT

081924_Sudbury School Committee Minutes_DRAFT

090924_Sudbury School Committee Minutes_DRAFT

Action: XX Report: Discussion: XX



Sudbury School Committee

Meeting Minutes - DRAFT

August 5, 2024

Members Present:

Nicole Burnard, Chair

Meredith Gerson, Vice Chair

Karyn Jones

Mandy Sim

Mary Stephens

Also Present:

Brad Crozier, Superintendent

Don Sawyer, Director of Business and Human Resources

Annette Doyle, Assistant Superintendent

Chief Scott Nix, Sudbury Police Department

Executive Session

Chair Nicole Burnard opened the executive session at 7:00 p.m. She performed a roll call and made an

announcement that the session is being recorded, shared live for the public to see and hear and there

should be no expected right to privacy, as this is a public forum. Meredith Gerson, Mandy Sim, and Nicole

Burnard all affirmed in the positive.

1. Motion and vote to convene in executive session pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws chapter

30A section 21(a) for the following purpose:

a. Purpose (4) to discuss the deployment of security personnel or devices, or strategies with

respect thereto.

b. Purpose (7) to review and approve minutes from the Sudbury School Committee executive

session meeting of July 8, 2024.

i. Vice Chair Meredith Gerson moves to convene into executive session pursuant to

Massachusetts General Laws chapter 30A section 21(a) for the following

purposes. Purpose 4 to discuss the deployment of security personnel or devices,

or strategies with respect thereto and purpose 7 to review and approve minutes

from the Sudbury School Committee executive session meeting of July 8, 2024.

Mandy Sim seconded the motion.

1. ROLL CALL VOTE:

a. Meredith Gerson: Aye

b. Mandy Sim: Aye

c. Nicole Burnard: Aye

i. Vote: 3-0. Motion carries.

ii. Chair Nicole Burnard confirmed that the Committee will enter into executive

session pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws chapter 30A section 21(a) for

the following purposes. Purpose 4 to discuss the deployment of security

personnel or devices, or strategies with respect thereto and purpose 7 to review



and approve minutes from the Sudbury School Committee executive session

meeting of July 8, 2024 and will return to Open Session.

Regular Session Meeting

Chair Nicole Burnard opened the regular session meeting at 7:32 p.m. She performed a roll call and made

an announcement that the session is being recorded, shared live for the public to see and hear and there

should be no expected right to privacy, as this is a public forum. Karyn Jones, Mary Stephens and Nicole

Burnard all affirmed in the positive.

1. Public Comment

a. None

2. Special Matters

a. School Safety Update, Chief Scott Nix

i. Chief Nix gave an update on Sudbury Police Department staffing. He also

highlighted the strengths of the statewide ALERT program. This initiative fosters

collaboration between police and fire departments, to ensure a coordinated

response to active shooter events.

ii. The Bruce Freeman Rail Trail is slated for opening by the end of the month.

iii. Questions surrounded the collaboration with the Sudbury Police Department and

the Say Something program.

3. Educational and Operational Matters

a. District Reports

i. Director of Business and Human Resources Report

1. The Business Office is in the process of closing FY24 while revising the

FY25 budget to account for new hires and changes in staff.

2. An update on where ARPA funding is being allocated includes the SMILE

program, SEL salaries and classroom equipment.

ii. Assistant Superintendent Report

1. The SMILE, Explore and ESY programs celebrated their day last with

community partners including Sudbury Fire, Sudbury Police, Goodnow

Library and the DPW. They also collected food for the pantry. Mrs. Doyle

thanked all the teachers and leaders in the program for their hard work

and dedication over the summer.

2. Prepping for New Teacher Orientation is underway.

iii. Superintendent’s Report

1. Superintendent Crozier shared that staffing for the new school year is still

underway.

2. He was appointed to the state's Artificial Intelligence Taskforce, led by

DESE, which focuses on developing policies and providing professional

training related to AI.

3. Questions from the Committee included how many people are appointed

to the taskforce.



4. Business and Policy Matters

a. FY24 End of Year Budget Report

i. Mr. Sawyer reviewed recommendations and year to date transfers as well as

budget detail.

ii. Clarification on transfers was provided.

iii. The Committee's questions focused on the approval date of transfers, teacher

salary adjustments, clarification of category breakdowns, and details regarding

budget transfers.

1. Vice Chair Meredith Gerson moves to approve the Q4 Fiscal ‘24 transfers

as presented. Mandy Sim seconded the motion.

a. ROLL CALL VOTE

i. Meredith Gerson: Aye

ii. Mandy Sim: Aye

iii. Karyn Jones: Aye

iv. Mary Stephens: Aye

v. Nicole Burnard: Aye

1. Vote: 5-0. Motion carries.

b. ACCEPT and CASE Q4 Report

i. No action required. The Collaborations are required to submit their reports on a

quarterly basis. The CASE report will be presented at a future meeting.

c. Curtis Gift Approval

i. The Curtis Parent Organization would like to make a donation of a disc golf

course.

ii. The Committee sought clarification on the locations of the accessible holes and

raised questions regarding accessibility for students. Concerns were discussed

about whether all holes are accessible for students who use wheelchairs.

1. Vice Chair Meredith Gerson moves to approve a gift from the Curtis PTO

of a golf disc course in the amount of $1,409.98 with gratitude. Mandy

Sim seconded the motion.

a. ROLL CALL VOTE

i. Meredith Gerson: Aye

ii. Mandy Sim: Aye

iii. Karyn Jones: No

iv. Mary Stephens: Aye

1. Vote: 3-1. Motion carries.

d. Appointment of School Committee Representative to Educational Collaboratives, (CASE

and ACCEPT)

i. Superintendent Crozier shared that each year the School Committee needs to

vote to appoint him as the representative for both CASE and ACCEPT

Collaboratives. He has represented both for the last 6 years.

1. Vice Chair Meredith Gerson moves to appoint Brad Crozier as the

Sudbury School Committee representative to the CASE Educational

Collaborative. Mandy Sim seconded the motion.

a. ROLL CALL VOTE



i. Meredith Gerson: Aye

ii. Mandy Sim: Aye

iii. Karyn Jones: Aye

iv. Mary Stephens: Aye

v. Nicole Burnard: Aye

1. Vote: 5-0. Motion carries.

2. Vice Chair Meredith Gerson moves to appoint Brad Crozier as the

Sudbury School Committee Representative to the ACCEPT Educational

Collaborative. Mandy Sim seconded the motion.

a. ROLL CALL VOTE

i. Meredith Gerson: Aye

ii. Mandy Sim: Aye

iii. Karyn Jones: Aye

iv. Mary Stephens: Aye

v. Nicole Burnard: Aye

1. Vote: 5-0. Motion carries.

e. Hybrid Meeting Discussion

i. The Committee discussed the advantages of both hybrid and in-person meetings.

Noting that hybrid meetings offer flexibility for those who prefer to participate from

home, while in-person meetings foster relationship-building and collaboration. The

Committee also discussed the various types of hybrid meetings and clarified their

different formats and benefits.

ii. Superintendent Crozier will look into the technical details and seek clarification on

the installation plan and timeline for the SPS conference room's live streaming

capability. A Committee member requested that discussions on hybrid meetings

continue.

f. Liaison Reports

i. The Select Board had an ARPA fund recap. In addition, the potential for child care

questions may be posed to Committee members.

ii. The SPS website is currently being updated and a few links are temporarily

unavailable.

5. Adjournment

a. Chair Nicole Burnard moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:24 p.m. Meredith Gerson

seconded the motion.

i. ROLL CALL VOTE

1. Meredith Gerson: Aye

2. Mandy Sim: Aye

3. Karyn Jones: Aye

4. Mary Stephens: Aye

5. Nicole Burnard: Aye

a. Vote: 5-0. Motion carries.

Respectfully Submitted,

Julie Williams



Executive Assistant to the Superintendent

Documents Reviewed During the August 5, 2024 School Committee Meeting

1. Memo_SC_FY24 Q4 Budget Forecast_240630

2. BoD Quarter Four 23-24

3. CPO - Golf Disk Gift Donation



Sudbury School Committee

Meeting Minutes - DRAFT

August 19, 2024

Members Present:

Nicole Burnard, Chair

Meredith Gerson, Vice Chair

Karyn Jones

Mandy Sim

Mary Stephens

Also Present:

Brad Crozier, Superintendent

Don Sawyer, Director of Business and Human Resources

Annette Doyle, Assistant Superintendent

Sandra Duran, Combined Facilities Director

Regular Session Meeting

Chair Nicole Burnard opened the meeting at 7:01 p.m.

1. Public Comment

a. Kay Bell, Sudbury resident, asked the Committee to reconsider their decision on hybrid

meetings.

b. Karyn Jones, Sudbury resident, not representing her role on the Sudbury School

Committee, shared that SED was celebrating their 40th anniversary and mentioned

women's equality proclamation day.

2. Educational and Operational Matters

a. District Reports

i. Director of Business and Human Resources Report

1. Onboarding of new staff continues.

2. Bus routes are almost finalized and bus passes are being sent later this

week. In addition bus routes will be published online.

3. Questions from the Committee surrounded whether there are any

concerns about bus staffing.

ii. Assistant Superintendent Report

1. Congratulations to Michael Neagle who was selected as a representative

for all of Massachusetts to join the United States Institute of Peace’s 2024

cohort of Peace Teachers.

2. An update on both summer curriculum work and the Say Something

Sandy Hook Promise program were shared.

3. Questions surrounded the training for children and how long the funding

grant for the program lasts.

iii. Superintendent’s Report

1. A school readiness update was provided with the Sudbury Fire

Department testing fire alarms, kitchens and sporting equipment.



2. Hiring is nearly complete for certified staff.

3. Business and Policy Matters

a. Introduction of Cindy Marchand, Interim Noyes Principal

i. Ms. Marchand provided a brief background on the roles she has had and the

schools she has worked in.

ii. The Committee welcomed Cindy to SPS.

b. Medication Delegation Application

i. Vice Chair Meredith Gerson moves to approve the application for School

Personnel to administer EpiPens and for the lead nurse to delegate medication

permissions and to authorize the Chair of the School Committee to sign. Mandy

Sim seconded the motion. All in favor.

1. Questions from the Committee surrounded whether this application is

supported by the Sudbury Board of Health.

c. FY25 Budget Reset

i. Mr. Sawyer reviewed final budget revisions with the Committee.

ii. Vice Chair Meredith Gerson moves to approve the FY25 Revised General Fund

Operating Budget as amended. Mandy Sim seconded the motion. All in favor.

1. Questions surrounded enrollment projections, clarification on base budget

and initiatives, circuit breaker, professional development and operations /

maintenance.

d. CASE Collaborative Q4

i. Collaborations are required to submit their quarterly reports with participating

districts. No action required by the Committee.

e. Capital Projects Update

i. An update on the resurfacing of the Loring playground was provided.

ii. Recent Small Cap projects include carpet replacements at Loring, Nixon, Noyes,

and Haynes; tile replacement at Curtis; painting; and the design phase for the

Noyes school paging and bell system. Additionally, funding has been completed

for door replacements and updates to classroom instructional equipment.

iii. Disability Grant funds will be used to update public address and listening systems.

iv. Questions from the Committee surrounded the amount of controls not covered.

v. Ms. Duran spoke to the Committee about the HVAC projects and the challenges

with why there is an urgency for the project to be completed.

vi. The MSBA has invited Mr. Sawyer, Ms. Duran, and Superintendent Crozier to a

meeting regarding the Nixon and Haynes school roofs, along with scheduled site

visits to both schools.

vii. The discussion included clarifying questions about bid pricing, engineers' concerns

regarding the current HVAC systems, and the timeline for discovering additional

necessary work. The Committee also sought clarification on the estimated design

costs and the expected completion date of the facility condition assessment.

viii. A recommendation was made to have the Chair, Nicole Burnard, write to the

Select Board to consider ARPA funds.



1. Vice Chair Meredith Gerson moves to authorize Nicole Burnard as Chair

of the Sudbury School Committee to write and send a communication in

support of ARPA funds allocation to SPS HVAC projects in the amount of

$100,000.00. Mandy Sim seconded the motion. All in favor.

f. Future Agenda Items

i. Discussion of District Goals and to revisit changing Communications from Liaison

to Subcommittee were recommended.

g. Monthly Accounts Payable and Payroll Warrants Submission

i. No further action required by the Committee.

h. Minutes (7/22/24)

i. Vice Chair Meredith Gerson moves to approve the Sudbury School Committee

regular session meeting minutes from July 22, 2024 as amended. Mandy Sim

seconded. All in favor.

1. Recommended changes were made and agreed upon.

4. Adjournment

a. Chair Nicole Burnard moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:47 p.m. Mandy Sim seconded the

motion. All in favor.

Respectfully Submitted,

Julie Williams

Executive Assistant to the Superintendent

Documents Reviewed During the August 19, 2024 School Committee Meeting

1. school-mcsr-signature-page-2023

2. Epinephrine Application 2022

3. Memo_SC_FY25 Revised GF Budget_240816

4. CASE Collaborative Q4 Update (06.2024)

5. SC Meeting Warrant Summary - 081524

6. 072224_Sudbury School Committee Minutes_DRAFT



Sudbury School Committee

Meeting Minutes - DRAFT

September 9, 2024

Members Present:

Nicole Burnard, Chair

Meredith Gerson, Vice Chair

Karyn Jones

Mandy Sim

Mary Stephens

Also Present:

Brad Crozier, Superintendent

Don Sawyer, Director of Business and Human Resources

Annette Doyle, Assistant Superintendent

Melissa Morabito, SEA Representative

Executive Session

Chair Nicole Burnard opened the executive session at 7:00 p.m.

1. Executive Session

a. Motion and vote to convene in executive session pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws

chapter 30A section 21(a) for the following purpose:

i. Purpose (3) to discuss strategy with respect to and in preparation for collective

bargaining or litigation with the Nurses’ Union, because an open discussion may

have a detrimental effect on the bargaining position of the Committee.

ii. Purpose (7) to review and approve minutes from the Sudbury School Committee

executive session meeting of August 5, 2024.

1. Vice Chair Meredith Gerson moves to convene in executive session

pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws chapter 30A section 21(a) for

the following purposes. Purpose 3 to discuss strategy with respect to and

in preparation for collective bargaining or litigation with the Nurses’ Union,

because an open discussion may have a detrimental effect on the

bargaining position of the Committee and purpose 7 to review and

approve minutes from the Sudbury School Committee executive session

meeting of August 5, 2024. Mandy Sim seconded the motion.

a. ROLL CALL VOTE

i. Meredith Gerson: Aye

ii. Mandy Sim: Aye

iii. Mary Stephens: Aye

iv. Karyn Jones: Aye

v. Nicole Burnard: Aye

1. Vote: 5-0. Motion carries.

2. Chair Nicole Burnard confirmed that the Committee will enter into

executive session pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws chapter 30A



section 21(a) for the following purposes. Purpose 3 to discuss strategy

with respect to and in preparation for collective bargaining or litigation with

the Nurses’ Union, because an open discussion may have a detrimental

effect on the bargaining position of the Committee and purpose 7 to

review and approve minutes from the Sudbury School Committee

executive session meeting of August 5, 2024 and will return to Open

Session.

2. Regular Session Meeting

Chair Nicole Burnard opened the regular session meeting at 7:30 p.m.

3. Public Comment

a. Katelyn Griffin, Hudson resident and Sudbury Public School employee, advocated for

parity for Sudbury School Nurses.

b. Kay Bell, Old Lancaster Road, Sudbury, shared her thoughts on the Combined Facilities

MOA agenda item.

c. Pat Guthy, Sudbury resident, asked the Committee to consider a hybrid option for their

meetings.

4. Educational and Operational Matters

a. SEA Report (Melissa Morabito)

i. Ms. Morabito highlighted what staff are excited about for the upcoming school

year, including learning the new IEP system, participating in the ELA pilot, building

strong connections with students, witnessing student growth and progress,

pursuing continuing education, collaborating with team members, strengthening

relationships with families, and working with colleagues to bring fun and positivity

to both staff and schools.

b. District Reports

i. Director of Business and Human Resources Report

1. Buses are off to a good start to the school year. They are fully staffed and

minor adjustments are being made as things get settled. Currently 1,763

students are riding the bus (1,103 at the elementary level and 660 at the

middle school level.)

2. The revised budget approved during the August 19, 2024 School

Committee Meeting has been submitted to the town.

3. First quarter reports for FY25 are being prepared.

4. Questions from the Committee surrounded potential concerns about a

strike by First Student.

ii. Assistant Superintendent Report

1. Safety Review is part of the first ILAP day. This covers intruder training,

introduction to the Say Something Anonymous Reporting System and

suicide prevention awareness training. Mrs. Doyle thanked Betsy Grams

for her collaboration in helping to plan the training.

2. Open Houses for all schools are coming up.



3. The METCO Showcase is on September 21, 2024 in Boston. Leslie

Smart and Mrs. Doyle will be representing Sudbury hoping to recruit new

families.

4. Questions surrounded the number of students we are trying to recruit.

iii. Superintendent’s Report

1. Superintendent Crozier has made school visits that include the Pre K

program both at Nixon and Noyes as well as Curtis Middle School.

2. A reminder to the community that school is now open and to please slow

down and drive with caution.

3. The HVAC contract for Curtis and Haynes was signed following the

approval of ARPA funding.

4. Both EEE and West Nile Virus has been detected in mosquitos in

Sudbury. Spraying around the town as well as the perimeter of each

school has been conducted. Spraying may continue until the first hard

frost.

5. The Committee questioned the spraying schedule and shared their thanks

for being proactive in this matter. Superintendent Crozier shared his

thanks to Vivian Zeng, Sudbury Health Director.

5. Business and Policy Matters

a. MSBA Timeline

i. Superintendent Crozier reviewed the timeline for the MSBA funding project.

ii. He shared key dates and informed the Committee that SPS had both a call and a

site visit from MSBA. The next step is to be accepted into the program. That will

be determined towards the end of October.

iii. Clarifying questions from the Committee surrounded additional funding while we

wait for the decision and costs related to an MSBA Project Manager.

b. Grant Assurances

i. These are standard assurances done yearly. This is the first time the School

Committee has been asked to sign off on them.

1. Vice Chair Meredith Gerson moves to approve the Chair of the School

Committee, Nicole Burnard, to sign the Conditions of Assistance:IDEA

Part B Funding Certifications on behalf of the School Committee. Mandy

Sim seconded the motion. All in favor.

c. Short and Long-Term Capital Planning

i. All capital items are due to the town by October 11, 2024.

ii. We will be using the Facilities Condition Assessment Report to align capital.

iii. Meetings with facilities staff have occurred to review the capital plan.

iv. The next few School Committee meetings will include a review of capital projects.

v. Questions surrounded what cost information that will be used, whether facilities

are still reviewing estimates not included in the conditions assessment report, if

facilities will be reporting to the School Committee, and if roof design will be

considered while we wait to hear from MSBA.



d. SED Additional Space Discussion

i. Sudbury Extended Day is looking for additional space to expand their

programming.

ii. Superintendent Crozier shared the structure of the lease agreement.

iii. Questions from the Committee surrounded signatory changes on the agreement,

wait lists, interest from other third party vendors using the space, timeline for

discussing the new SED contract and space being used at Loring.

iv. Comments included the desire to see this as an amendment to the original

contract.

1. Vice Chair Meredith Gerson moves to authorize Brad Crozier to execute

additional space agreement with SED at Haynes and Loring at the rate

consistent with the original lease agreement. Mandy Sim seconded the

motion. All in favor.

e. Combined Facilities MOA

i. The structure of the Combined Facilities Memorandum of Agreement was

discussed.

ii. Questions and discussion surrounded whether to modify the agreement for

increased collaboration, the necessity of a full-time facilities director for SPS,

potential impacts on the town budget from restructuring, and understanding the

current allocation of time. Additionally, clarification was asked about whether all

efforts have been made to make the existing MOA effective, the need for data on

efficiencies and benefits of a shared position, identifying areas that are not working

well, and concerns regarding budget line items that SPS cannot control.

iii. Additional discussion surrounded how often meetings occur between SPS,

Facilities and the Town and whether facilities can present on this topic in the

future.

iv. The Committee tasked Business and Human Resources Director, Don Sawyer,

with the responsibility of identifying facility needs and outlining the workload of the

facilities director at SPS. This includes comparing larger projects at SPS with

those in the town, reviewing previous projects, capital projects, and clarifying the

roles of the facilities director versus the combined facilities director.

f. Liaison Reports

i. The SPS website is updated and all links are now working.

ii. The MASC/MASS conference is coming up in November.

iii. SEPAC had their first meeting of the year and they will be present at all open

houses.

iv. LSRHS recently reviewed their goals. Those similar to SPS’ include student / staff

well being; SEL; cell phone use policy and subcommittee / liaison updates.

6. Adjournment

a. Chair Nicole Burnard moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:38 p.m. Meredith Gerson

seconded the motion. All in favor.

Respectfully Submitted,

Julie Williams



Executive Assistant to the Superintendent

Documents Reviewed During the September 9, 2024 School Committee Meeting

1. Timeline for the MSBA Accelerated Repair Project Funding

2. COA_School Certification

3. SED Additional Space Lease Agreement_1 Year_240823

4. Facilities MOA


